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FOREWORD

N “ST. THOMAS AND ITS MEN OF AFFAIRS,” an
ctlort has been made to bring together historical data
of the city from its earliest days in an interesting and
readable form caleulated to make it a work of
reference on topics of everyday conversation in which
constantly recur conflicting opinions of dates, events
and persons that have tigured in the development of

the community from its earliest days.

The biographies of the men who in 1914, a year destined

o become memorable in the world's history, are most prominent in

the city's professional, official, railroad and business life, lend a

personal interest to its pages that will increase as the years pass, for

included in the more than two hundred is practically every one whom

a reader famiiiar with St. Thomas would expect to find, with the facts

of his life set forth briefly and without any attempt at elaboration. It

answers authoritatively the questions : Who is he 7 Where did he
come from > How old is he > His past attainments and his present
standing > And, finally, his personal appearance T'he next best

thing to seeing and conversing with a man is to see his portrait,
especially if a pen picture accompanies it as in the present plap

I'he various groupings of residences, street scenes publi¢
buildings, business places, manufactories, railroad shops, schools,
churches, etc., convey impressively to the reader the substantial
character of the city of today, and a perusal of these pages, will, we
believe, awaken in the average citizen a new pride in his home town
(perhaps the most happily circumstanced of any Canadian community
of importance), and its institutions,

To those whose co-operation has made possible “St. Thomas
and Its Men of Affairs™ in its attractive and permanent form, the
appreciation of the publishers is gratefully acknowledged.
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ST. THOMAS, PAST AND PRESENT

about it on two sides, the city of 8t. Thomas may claim

a distinetiveness and natural charm that any commun-
ity might justly envy. Though among the oldest in date
of settlement In Ontario, there is none which may be
pointed to as being more progressive than the “Rail-
way City” in its present appearance and life. Notably a
community of home-owners, its progress and development has
been of a permanent rather than a mush-room character.
Today, with a population of 18,000, it affords its citizens in
the essent al things for civie contentment, with practically all
those enjoyed by the large city without its disadvantages,

The history of St. Thomas goes back to the year 1910
when Daniel Rapeljie and David Mandeville erected their
pioneer homes on Talbot road, close to the spot where Kettle
Creek and the London and Port Stanley Gravel road intersects,
Others, who soon joined them and erected their modest homes
close by, included Willlam Drake, Jonas Barnes, Henjamin
Wilson, Leslie Pearce, Archibald MeNeil, and among their
co-temporaries on the ninth concession of Yarmovth were
Garrett  Smith, James T. Curtis, George Lawrence, Mr
Thompson, J. B, Miller and Mr. Mann. David Mande-
ville, with his sons, Henry, Abram, Richard and William,
from the Long Point settlement and located on
200 acres of land on the Southwold side of the creek. Mr.
Mandeville kept a tavern at the foot of the hill, where the
gravel road intersects Talbot street; the sons located on farms
nearby. The first marriage in St. Thomas was that of Richard
Mandeville and Ann Smith in 1818, Daniel Rapeljie was one
of the strong hearted ploneers; he imigrated from the state
of New York, first to the Long Point settlement ¢hen to lot 1,
Yarmouth, south side of Talbot street.  His log house was near
the site of what until recently was the residence of Mr. John
Farley; he built the first mill at 8t. Thomas. This alterwards
passed into the hands of the late Mr. Paul, and later to the
Turville Bros. Mr. Rapeljle la’d out part of s farm into
village lots in 1821, and gave the land where the picturesque
churchyard and church erected prior to 1825, and now the
oldest church edifice between the Grand and Detroit Rivers,
Is still to be moved in 1823 to Yarmouth
Heights, where he died in 1828, The trials of these
early settlers are recounted elsewhere, and those who read or
think of them must conclude that 8t. Thomas, then and now
are widely different A bushel of wheat for a yard of cotton,
and eighteen bushels for a barrel of salt, seems a strange tale
in 1914, but it was true in 1817

SET UPON a plateau, with picturesque ravines winding

came

seen ; he

S8t. Thomas received its name in honor of Colonel the
Honorable Thomas Talbot, the founder of the Talbo! settle-
ment, the Saint being added for euphony. Embraced in the
settlement which began in 1803 when Col. Talbot took up his
residence at what is now Port Talbot was the whole of the pres.
ent county of Elgin and parts of Essex, Kent, Middlesex and
Norfolk. This immense tract of land was granted to Colonel
Talbot, an Irishman of good family, upon the recommendation
of Lieutenant Simcoe, for whom Talbot had acted as private
secretary from 1791 to 1794, and had with him visited this part
of Upper Canada, landing at Port Talbot, and penetrating the
wilderness to the forks of the Thames, London now
stands. Talbot was so pleased with the country that he applied
for, and was granted, five thousand acres of land on condition
of conveying ffty acres out of every two hundred to an actual
settler. He was also commissioned to settle other parts of the

where

western peninsula, and thus became possessed of vast property
estimated to have been worth from £75,000 to £1006,000 at
the time of his death in 1853

The position of 8t. Thomas upon Kettle Creek and the
Talbot road at the intersection of such a thoroughfare as the
London and Port Stanley road, and surrounded by one of the
best agricultural distriets in the Dominion, soon made it a
place of importance. House was added to house, and store to
store until a thriving village covered the hillside, and even
essayed to stretch itself northward over the ravine, many of
the principal places of business being built on long piles that
found a foot hold far down the precipitous side of the hill

Among its early vicissitudes was its occupation during the
War of 1812-13 by the American General, McArthur, with a
force of more than a thousand men, who bivouacked on the
Rapeljie property, and devastated the crops and levied upon
the live stock of the settlers,

James Hamilton, for many years sheriff of Middlesex,
was the first merchant of 8t. Thomas. In 1817 he brought a
few goods by water to Port Stanley, and later took in as his
partner, John Warren. Bela Shaw and Lucius Bige'ow also
served the early settlers in similar capacity, and from the
files of an early newspaper published in St. Thomas, it would
appear that at this time the only mercantile firm was that of
Shaw & Co. Goodhue and Duncombe also sold goods as well
as formed a partnership in the practice of medicine

About the year 1825 St. Thomas had a beginning as a
village. At the time the village commenced at the foot of the
hill near the bank of the creek, and extended on Talbot street
to Mr. Shaw's store, which was on the north side, near the
erest of the hill, and flelds of wheat and corn and uncleared
land occupied the site of the rest of the town

In 1832, Talbot street was used as a race course, the half
mile reaching to the site now oceupied by the eity hall. Stanley
street was at that time a corduroy road, and none of the other
streets were opened

The high prices of farm produce, especially wheat, during
the Crimean war, in 1854 and '5 made every one rich and
resulted in much speculation The first substantial brick
blocks, the Metcalfe buildings, were built at that time by
Benjamin Drake, Esq. and were first occupied by the Roe
Brothers in 1

8t. Thomas was first incorporated as a village in 1853,
with a population of 1,300; in 1861 it numbered 1,631, and
in 1866 not many more; In 1870, it was less than 2,000

Mrs. Jameson, the well-known authoress, in her “Sketches
in Canada,” gave the following description of the town as it
appeared in 1837: “8St. Thomas is situated on a high eminence
to which the ascent is rather abrupt. The view from it, over
a fertile, well-settled country, is very beautiful and cheering
The place bears the christian name of Colonel Talbot, who
styles it his capital, and, from a combination of advantages, it
I8 rising fast into importance. The climate, from its high
position, is delicious and healthful ; and the winters in this
part of the Province are milder by several degrees than else-
where. At the foot of the cliff, or eminence, runs a deep,
rapid stream, called Kettle Creek (1 wish they had given it a
prettier name), which, after a course of eight miles, and turn-
ing a variety of saw-mills and grist-mills, ete,, flows into Lake
Erie at Port Stanley, one of the best harbors on this side of
the lake. Here steamboats and schooners land their passen-
gers and merchandise, or load with grain, flour and lumber.
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ST. THOMAS, PAST AND PRESENT-—Continuecd

round, and the Talbot road, carried ary, 1874, and the offices of the Canada Soutiiern taken

The roads are good al
directly through the town, is the finest in the Provinee possession of in the same year, although trains had been

The population of 8t. Thomas is at present rated at running irregularly on both roads during the greater part of

seven hundred, and it has doubled within two years. There 1872

are three churches, one of which is very neat, and three 8t. Thomas first hecame incorporated in 1852, and the old
tarern Two newspapers are published, one violently Tory,  town hall, built the previous year by the township of Yarmouth
the other violently Radical 1 found several houses building 1 ty as town and city hall until 1898, when It was super
and, in those I entered, a general a‘r of cheerfulness and well ded by the present handsome new municipal building By
being very pleasing to contemplate I was very act of llament passed in 1 the county of Elgin was
much struck with this beautiful and cheerful little town created from part of the county of Middlesex, and in 1556
more, 1 think, than any place | have yet seen the first court house was erected on a beautiful site given by

St. Thoma now ywn as the “Railway City,” but  Benjamin Drake. In 1898 this fine edifice was so damaged hy
there are citizens who still recall the time when the four-lorse  fire as to necessitate its being practically rebuilt, with nec
tage coach, heralded by a blast from the coachmar rn ury additions, the handsome cut-stone front being, however
dashed up to the “Mansion H s W n Por retained as a central feature
Stanley or Lo the event of the day. A larger number The growth of the eity eastward following the erection
remember the opening of the first rallway London and if the Canada Southern shops and yards continued rapidly
Port Stanley Line d the devastation which it broug N though greatly to the chagrin of the earlier settlers who

1857, or was charged with bringing. to the business of the  fought the inevitable from year to year by every means in
thriving little town-— how the taxes increased and the popula thelr power, and not until the erection of the efty hall on the
tion decreased.  Though present site did they give up the fight as lost. Since then
The never falling brook, the bhusy mill IN8 the growth ¢ the eity has continued without exeiting
T'he decent church that topt neighborin ] 1 i feeling, an 1 result has been the bringing into
till remained, rows of empty shuttered shops and  grassy efu of vacant spaces and the knitting together of the
treets nttested the welght of the blow which the former traggling city of the eighties and nineties. The erection of
prosperity of the town had recelved. Not until the seventis the Re reet subway in 1908 aided in this natural develop
when the rival throug nes of railway—Canads Southers nent and prevented what for a time appeared might develop
and Canada Air L'ne  came, did $t. Thomas revive ito & split between the north and south sides, such as the
There are those who still recount the struggles of W. A iistoric east-end versus west-end controversy that had kept
Thompson from 1867 until 1870 in procuring a charte; for the  the rapidly growing town f two decades in a state of
( 3 R ow he afterward vent to one capitalist afte continuou fe
another represent the advantage f a straight through With the inecrease of several thousand in popuiation in

the past decade, the result of the coming of new manufae

T Ontario how, a i o I the
Oreit Western Company: butlt at \ sme time thelr Loop 10! nd the constantly increasing development of its rail
E:te Peomm (168 throiigh 8t. Thomas & to the Nikg ways, the eity has kept pace by providing improved facilities
Rive \ vell known. and t ‘ X was the and  accomodation 1 chool churches, parks, etc and
ture fn 8 s oF hobdveda: ot thoassnde of Hollave: th throu ts municipally owned utilities of waterworks, light
staglopiant i N S aE ke e : . y et and power | ants and street railway, its eitizens are enjoy
Gihaic) e st PR % P Athida ol 1e convenlences of lern eivie life at a minimum cost
\ ) corporat % f th Today. with a population of 18,000, 8t. Thomas looks
xtende to the t ot far distant when it will be the home
1 p Line was forn ¥ 1 for traflic I prople

Todny
the |

Was

Centenl Talhat
W That the Ranee

Street M

Were Loented
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D, J. HUGHES
Senlor Judge, County of Elgin (Retired)

Born at Kingsbridge, South Devon, England, May 7th,
1820, His father was a dissenting minister and emigrated to
Canada in 1832, settling at Montreal, where he died shortly
afterwards. The fatherless boy was adopted by Mr. Gideon
Ackland, a lawyer, who lived in Perth, but owing to a change
in Mr. Ackland’s circumstances, Mr. Hughes then entered the
employ of the Hon. Maleolm Cameron in the publication of
the Bathurst Courier

In 1835 he removed to the London distriet where he was
adopted by his brother-in-law, the late Hon. John Wilson, the
leading lawyer of the western circuit. Here he received his
education in the London grammar schools and afterwards as
a student in Mr. Wilson's law office

Mr. Hughes was called to the Bar in Michaelmas term in
1842 settled at Woodstock and practiced his profession there
until 1847, when he entered partnership with the Hon. John
Wilson. remaining in London until October, 1853

He was appointed Judge of Elgin County upon its separa-
tion from Middlesex in the year 1853 and was retired hy Act
of Parliament on account of age in 1903,

Juds Hughes ranks as probably the oldest distinguished
resident of 8t. Thomas

He was present at the laying of the corner stone of the St
Thomas court house in 1852 and held the first court of the
new county in the old town hall, and the first court in the new
court house in 18564,

He is a protestant to the backbone and in politics a Baid
win Reformer

Residence 114 Metealfe street,

CHARLES WESLEY COLTER
Senlor Judige, County of Flgin

Judge Colter was born in York County, N.B., in 1846
He was educated in the public schools, Sackville Academy and
the University of New Hrunswick, Iin Fredericton. He gradu
ated from the University at the age of nineteen, winning
scholarships in English and the Classies.

For several years he taught in high schools in New
Brunswick, also at Cayuga and Dunnville. In 1874 he was
sent by the Dominion Government to England in the Immigra-
tion Service.  After several years spent in this service, bhoth
in Canada and abroad, he took up journalism and published
the Monck Reform Press

In 1876 he undertook the study of law; was admitted to
the bar three years later and began practice in Cayuga, where
he made his home until his appointment as Senfor County
Judge of Elgin

Judge Colter became prominent in Liberal polities and
several times contested for his party the seat for Haldimand
County in the House of Commons. He was elected member
for Haldimand in 1886 and 1889 In 1892 Judge Colter was
appointed Crown Attorney of Haldimand County and held that
position until 1903 when he received his appo'ntment a
County Judge of Haldimand to succeed the late Judge Mae-
Millan. Transferred to Elgin and made Senior Judge in 1904
suceeeding Judge Hughes,

Judge Colter has held numerous positions prior to his
appointment to the bench He has been County Clerk ana
County Solicitor and in the forty years of the existence of the
Cayu High School Board, it has known but two chairmen,
Judge Stevenson and Judge Colter

CHARLES OAKES ERMATINGER
dunior Judge, County of Elgin

Born, St. Thomas, February 5th, 18561, son of
Ermatinger, M.P., and Aschsah, daughter of Hon
Burnham, of Cobourg, Ont,  Educated St. Thomas and
public schools and Osgoode Hall. Called to the Bar, 1 H
appointed Q. €., 188G, Judge, 1880; Member Provincial
Assembly for East Elgin, 1882-86 Publications: Canadian
Franchise and Election Law, 1886; The Talbot Regime of
the first half century of the Talbot Settlement, 1904

Member Elgin Golf, Century and 8t. Thomas Clubs

Married Miss Charlotte, daughter of Hon. Hugh Richard
son, of Ottawa.  One son, Captain Perey, of 8t. Thomas, and
one daughter, B. Muriel Moorhead, wife of U'. 8. Consul In
Rangoon, Burmah

Residence: Bella Vista, 45 Stanley street

SAMUEL PRICE

rman Onta Waorkmen's Compen

Naristers ( n Hoard

Born, 1863, brought up on farm in Caradoc, Middlesex
County. Attended Strathroy and 8t Thomas High Schools.
Taught school five years. Entered study of law in 8t. Tho
in 1890, Called to bar in 1885, with honors and gold meda
obtained B.C.L., Trinity, with gold medal, same year.

Practiced law in 8t. Thomas alone and with Mr. (now
Hon.) T. W. Crothers. Prominent as a hard fighter in the
Conservative Interests in parliamentary elections,

Performed with general satisfaction duties of Mining
Commissioner for Ontario, 1906 to 1912, Acted as govern-
ment Commissioner in various matters, including Mining Dis-
putes, Timber Frauds, Eight-Hour Law for Miners and Van
couver Island Mining Troubles Author of much mining
legiglation and of Mining Tax Act and Ontario Eight-Hour
Law for Miners. On recommendation of the late Chief Com
missioner Mabee, was employed to consolidate and revise
Dominion Railway Act: recommended by Chief Commissioner
Mabee also for appointment as a member of Dominion Rail-
way board. Refused acceptance of chairmanship of Ontario
Railway and Municipal Board. Appointed Chairman of Work-
men's Compensation Board of Ontario in 1914,

Member of K. of P.; COCF.; CCOF.; A F. & A, M.,
Elgin Golf and Country Club; 8t. Thomas Club. Anglican
unmarried.

HON, T. W

Minister of

ROTHERS

nhor, Cannda

Born at Northport, January, 1850; received nis early ed-
ucation in the public schools and Albert Colle Belleville,
being a classmate of Premier Roblin of Manitoba: was head-
master of Wardsville Collegiate for a few years and then
took up the study of law. While still a student he was an un-
successful candidate for the Ontario legislatuve for West
Elgin in 1879, First came to St. Thomas as a speaker in the
interests of the late Thomas Arkell in 1878 and ever since that
date has been prominently before the people as a speaker in
Conservative Interests

Mr. Crothers was the successful candidate in West Elgin
in 1908 and again in 1911 when the Borden government
came into power; accepted the portfolio of minister of labor
on the formation of the Borden cabinet. Has served for years
as member of St. Thomas board of education and is a member
of the board of control of Toronto University

HON, F. Go MACDIARMID
Minister of Public Works

Born, New Glasgow, Aldborough township, Elgin county,
October 11th, 1869, son of Finlay and Margaret (Munro)
Maediarmid.  Educated in the public school and Ridgetown
Collegiate Institute. Served as a member of the Township
Council of Aldborough for four years. entered the field of
Provineinl polities in 1898: at present a member of the
Executive Councll of Ontario, holding the portfolio of Public
Works.

Member the Preshyterian Chureh, A. F. & A. M, and K

of P
Marricd, December 25th, 1885, Miss M'nnie McGugan

There is one son
Residence: Rodney

MARSHALL BREWSTER JOHNSON

Mayurs Conl Merchant

Born, Mareh 2 St JVatharines, Ont, son of
Willam H. and Sarah (Fox) Johnson Educated in St
Catharines and Dunnville.  Worked on the farm until he was
™ are four children in the family: A. W, the junior mem
twenty-one years of age.  Entered the service of the old Great
Western Rallway as telegraph operator, 18761888, train agent
and express messenger, Canada Southern and Michigan Central
Rallway Co's, 18881011 I and wood business, St. Thomas
1911-1914. Served as member of the eity couneil, 12081914
Elected mayor of 8t. Thomas, January, 1914

Member Knox Preshyterian church

Married, February 14th, 1878, Miss Annle Agnes MeNabh
There are four children in the ily: A, W, the junior mem
ber of the firm; Mrs H. E. McDonald, Jackson, Mich.; Miss
Lulu Johnson, kindergarten teacher, and Fred. M. Johnson
medical student, Toronto University

Residence: 48 Gladstone avenue
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DUGALD MceCOLL
Sherift, Elgin County

Born in Southwold township, 1846; son of Nicol and
Jeannette (Campbell) MeColl. Educated in the publie schools
of Southwold and engaged in farming in that vieimty until
1891. Removed to St. Thomas in 1892 and two years late
entered the service of the Southern Loan Co., as Inspector
until 1905 at which time he received his appointment as
Sheriff of Elgin county. Mr. McColl served as Deputy Reeve
of Southwold for one year; Reeve for four years, and in 1899,
was elected to the local legislature, defeating Angus MeCrim-
mon, serving four years for West Elgin.

He is a Past Master, Prince of Wales Lodge, A, F. &
A. M., member R. A. M., and the Presbyterian Church

Married, Miss Black, of Southwold. There are two
daughters, Mrs. Emily Horton, of 8t. Thomas, and Mrs. Jean
nette Pease, of Buffalo.

Residence: 53 Queen street.

IAM FRANKLIN LUTON
Governor, Elgin County Jall

W

Born in Yarmouth township, 1850; son of Willlam and
Eliza Luton, of Yarmouth. Educated in the Yarmouth schools.
Has spent the major portion of his life as a farmer in North
Yarmouth

Member County Couneil from 1893 to 1907; six years
Chairman of Poorhouse Commissior; appointed Warden o°
County of Elgin in 1907 Removed to 8t. Thomas in 1912 al
the time of his appointment as Governor of County Jail, sue-
ceeding Governor Moore.

Has been a member of the Masonic craft for 30 years,

Married Miss Wilcox, daughter of the late Henry Wthleox
of 8t. Thomas. There is one daughter and five sons in the
family, four of whom are practicing physicians in various parts
of the United States and Canada

Residence: 79 Stanley street

HORACE FAULCONER JELL

lee Magistrate, Clty of St Thomas

Mr. Jell was born in the township of Delaware, Middle
sex county, Ontario, April 5, 1862, son of Horatio and Susan
Jell Received his education in private schools of Delaware
village, London and Wardsville high school. Studied law with
Hon. T. W, Crothers and the late Colin Macdougall, K. ¢,
and in London with Cronyn and Betts. Graduated in May,
1886, started practice in Rodney, Ont., in the same month
and remained there until the spring of 1889, when he came
to 8t. Thomas and identified himself with the Municipal World,
Ltd. Bix years later started practising his profession in St
Thomas. From 1887 to 1899 was clerk of the township of
Aldborough, appointed police magistrate in and for the eity
of St. Thomas on the decease of the late James M. Glenn, K
C., in 1913 Is also secretary of the Municipal World, Ltd.,
and associate legal editor of “The Municipal World." Mem
ber A F. & AM. (past P.D.D.G.M. of Erie District No. 1), 1LO.O
F., LOF. and AO.UW. and of Trinity Episcopal Church. lle
is unmarried

ANGUS MeCRIMMON

County

" Attorney

Born in Lochiel township, Glengarry county, Ontario,
14th September, 1846 He is the son of Alexander and Jane
{Rosg) MeCrimmon

Received his education at the Cornwall High School and
the Toronto Normal College. Spent six years teaching school
being stationed at Teeswater, Durham and as Head Master in
St. Thomas in 1874

He studied law in the offices of Edward Horton, of St
Thomas and Thomas Hodging, K. €', of Toronto; was ealled to
the Bar in 1886 and has practiced in St. Thomas for the past
28 years Was appointed Crown Attorney and Cleck of the
Peace in  February, 1904 Contested West Elgin as the
Liberal candidate at the election of 1889, and was defeated
by Dugald McColl. He again contested West Elgin as Liberal
candidate in the year 1902 in a triangular fight, Hon, Gay
lord Wilshire being the Soclalist candidate, and Finlay G
Macdiarmid, Conservative, the latter being elected

Address: 141 Wellington Street, St. Thomas

DAVID McLAWS

Hegintrar, Surrogate Court

Born at Bannockburn, Scotland, November 12, 1839; son
of Willlam and Mary McLaws, Came to Canada, settling at
Fingal in 1844; attended public school and farmed in Dun-
wich until 1860; engaged in the carriage business 1874-78
when he removed to 8t. Thomas. Elected to township council
of Dunwich 1867: served as deputy reeve for three years;
elected reeve 1878; member of the Ontario legislature, 1878;
appointed to his present position 1879 and has served contine
uously since, ranking as the oldest public servant in office.

Married, 1870, Miss Elizabeth McCrank, of Oxford. To
them were born one son and one daughter. After the death
of his wife he married again in 1883, Miss Mary Barr, of St
Thomas. They have five children, three sons and onv daugh-
ter

Residence:  Elgin street

FRANCIS HUNT
Pullee Magistrate, County of Blgin

Born in Montreal, 1841, of Irish parentage; removed to
8t. Thomas when a boy and learned the blacksmithing business
which he followed for many years. His education was for the
most part self-acquired and he early showed a strong leaning
for the law. There is no one in Elgin county more widely
known that “Squire” Hunt, He has been in turn a blacksmith,
school teacher, oil speculator, contractor, merchant, reporter,
editor, railroad foreman, alderman and preacher. Ie was
appointed a magistrate in 1878 and has served continuously
since.  He has been very active in politiels his entire life, and
has made hundreds of addresses in the interests of Liberal
candidates,

He has been councillor, deputy reeve and reeve of the
township of Southwold; member of many sessions of the
county council; for many years a prominent alderman in 8t
Thomas, being on the council at the time the first sewers were
laid as well as when the gas works was first built, and an
unsuccessful candidate for the mayoralty on the central
market issue in 1881

Married, January 19th, 1864, Miss Mary Ellen James, of
Norwich. Celebrated his golden wedding, 1914, with his five
children and thirteen grandehildren, His sons are: Arthur
St. Thomas: Edward 8., of London: Fred F., of Cle nd;
the daughters: Mrs. George King, and Mrs. Salathiel Curtis.
of Southwold

Residence: 32

ast street

JOHN MeCAUSLAND,

Treasurer, Elgin County

Born November Gth, 1828, township of Malahide; son of
Andrew and Katherine McCausland. Was educatea in the
public schools and devoted his life to farming until the age of
nfty-thres As a farmer he did much to improve the breed
of dairy cattle by introducing a milking strain of Durhams
that were known throughout the county

Served as member of the County
of the township of Malahide, 18 1881; appointed justice of
the Peace, Malanide Township, 18 Warden of the County
15 1874 appointed treasurer of Elgin County in 1881, suc
ceeding the late John A. Kains. Removed to 8t. Thomas the
ame year

Married Miss Mary A. Wrong. of Vienna. There are three
sons and two daughters in the family

Member of the Methodist church

Residence 92 Metealfe street

ouncll as representative

Born, Cortland, New York, October 12th, 18564; son of
David and Mary (Noyes) Gooding. Educated at Groton, New
York: spent some time in Iinois;: came to Canada In 1871
and engaged in farming in Elgin county,

Appointed superintendent of Elgin House of Industry
1900, Member LO.OF.; AF. & AM.: St. Thomas board of
trade: Canadian Club and First Methodist Church

Married, November 2nd, 1881, Miss Jennie Mills, There
are three daughters in the family

Address:  St. Thomas
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DAVID MeLAws
Hegintrnr, Sunrognte Court

ANGUN MeCKRIMMON JAMES H. COYNE
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JAMES HENRY COYNE
County Registenr of Deeds

Born at 8t. Thomas, October 3, 1849, His grandparents
on both sides were among the ploneers of Elgin, The Coyne
were originally from the Isle of Man. Henry Coyne settled in
the Township of Dunwich in 1817 at the place since known
as Coyne's Corners. Among the pioneers from Argyleshire
who arrived in Aldborough in 1819 was Donald Patterson,
who took up a farm near Eagle. Each had a considerable
family. Two of Henry Coyne's sons, James and Wilham, en-
gaged in the business of general merchants at the then small
village of St. Thomas, in 1839, under the firm name of J. &
W. Coyne. James afterward removed to London. Willlam
carried on business for half a century at St. Thomas until
shortly before his death in 1895, In 1846 the pioneer families
were connected by the marr.age of Willlam Coyns and Chris
tina Patterson.  Of their seven children, Dr. Coyne was the
third

Dr. Coyne was educated at the 8t. Thomas common and
grammar schools and the University of Toronto, graduating as
B A, with the gold medal in Modern Languages, a silver
medal in Classics, the French essay prize, and the Prince of
Wales' prize for general proficiency, after carrying off a
number of scholarships and prizes during his undergraduate
course. His fellow-graduates elected him in 1884 as a mem
her of the University Senate, a position he still holds, having
been re-elected in October, 1914, for a further term of four
years. In 1905 the University conferred the degree of M. A
with honors and in 1909 Queen's University bhestowed upon
him the honorary degree of Doctor of Laws. In 1871 he was
Head-Master of the famous Cornwall High School. At the
expiration of his year, however, he resumed the study of law
in the office of the late Colin Macdougall, Q.C.  He completed
his studies under the late James Bethune, Q.(', at Toronto,
ind was admitted to the bar in 1874, passing without an oral
examination at the head of his class both as barrister and
solicitor. He at once entered into partnership with Mr. Mac
dougall, under the firm pame of Macdongall & Coyne. Leaving
the firm in 1880, he became head of the firm of Coyne &
Mann, which continued until 1889, when he gave up practiec
on his appointment to office.

Taking a somewhat prominent part in politics. he con
tested West Elgin unsuccessfully in 1886 for the Local Leg!
lature, having previously filled the offices of President of the
St. Thomas and later of the East Elgin Reform Associations
In January, 1888, ne entered upon the duties of Registrar of
Deeds for the County of Elgin and City of 8t. Thomas. Since
1892 he has he'd the additional office of Loeal Master of
Titles under the Torrens system of land transfer

In 1881 he founded the Elgin Historical and Secientific
Institute, of which he was the first and is the present president
In 1897 he was elected president of the Ploneer and Historieal
Association of the Provinee of Ontario. This Association he
ized on a wider basis under the name of The Ontario
al Society in 1808 He was president of the new
ety until 1902 and has been ex-officio, a member of ity
Council ever since

Dr. Coyne has heen connected with many public crganiza
tions both in the city and province.  Sine: he has heen a
member of the Board and Executive of Alma College.  For
several years he was Chairman of the rutive. Among other
positions he has Id may be mentioned those of first presi
dent of the 8t. Thomas Children's Ald Society;: President of
St. Andrew’s Soclely in 1883 of the Veterans' Association
since 1906 of the Handel Choir in 1905-7; of the University
of Toronto Alumni Association for the county of Elgin: Hon
orary President of the 8t. Thomas Operatic Society and of the
Philharmonie Choir.  He was for some time a director of the
Farmers' and  Traders’ Assurance Company: of the ol
Mechanies' Institute, and of the Free Library Hoard, and a
member of the Exceutive of Convoeation of the University of
Toronto.  He was also cne of the original Viee-Presidents of
the University of Toronto Alumni Association

E

In 1866, ax a lad of 16, Dr. Coyne served as a private in

the 8t. Thon Rifles, and was at the front at London, Port
Stanley and Thorold.  The camp at Thorold was undor
the of Wolseley For th services Dr. Coyne

holds the Fenlan Raid medal and the V
160 acres

In 1892 he was o member of the Provincial Central Com
mittee to eelebrate the Centennial of Upper Canada. He is a
member of the Committee of the Centennial Pence Celebration
Assoclation, a corresponding memler of the Buffalo Historieal
Soclety, and a member of the Methodist Historieal So ty, the

deran’s land grant of

American Historical Assoclation and of the National Geograph-
jcal Society of the United States.

In 1906 he was eected a rellow of the Royal Society ol
Canada, and in 1909 President of the English Section of the
Soclety.

Dr. Coyne has contributed many articles on historiea
bjects to periodicals, and has also published the following:
he Country of the seutrals from Champlain to Talbot,” “A
Century of Ach.evement,” “First Steps in the Exploration of
Ontario,” “kxploration of the Great Lakes by Dollier de Cas-
son and de Galinee,” “Richard Maurice Bucke—a Sketeh,”
“The Talbot Papers,’” ete,

In 1877 Dr. Coyne married Matilda, third daughter ol
the late John George Bowe formerly Mayor and M, P, P
for Toronto. Their family consists of four sons and two
daughters

WILLIAM R, JACKSON
Alderman; Heal Estate

Born in 8t. Thomas in 1866, Educated in the public and
high schools of S8t. Thomas and the Michigan Military Academy
at Pontiae, Mich. In the year 1881 engaged in the jewelry
business and established the widely known firm of Jackson s,
Limited. Three years ago he retired as an active member of
the firm and since has been engaged in the real estate business.
Elected to the St. Thomas city council 1913-14.  His fraternal
affiliations are 1.0.O.F. and he is & member of Trinity Anglican
Church.

Married in 1889, Miss Jennle Rateliffe, of Portland,
Oregon.  There (s one boy and one girl in the family

Residence: 6 Wellington street

E. A HORTON
\ W Flour

Born June 11, 15867, at Frome; son of Andrew and Eliza
Ann (Dougherty) Horton. Educated at the Frome public
school and St. Thomas Collegiate Institute, Assisted his par-
ents on the farm until 1895, in which year he came to St
Thomas and for three years was inspector for Ontario of the
Old Providence savings Life, of New York He then pur-
chased an interest in the Oriental Flour Company, and ftor
two years represented the company as travelling salesman,
at the end of which time he assumed the management. Has
been very prominent in municipal, board of trade and fra
ternal cireles. First elected to the city couneil in 1905 and
after serving one term retired; was a candidate again in 19114
and elected; chosen chairman of the fire and light committee
and in this capacity has rendered very valuable services to the
city. Urged and secured the addition of an auto truck to the
fire department equipment: has brought the department up to
4 high standard of efficiency and largely through his efforts
the new system of lighting was installed on Talbot street. As
president of the board of trade in 1912-13 headed a whirl-
wind campaign raising $5,6500 for use in advertising the
city and the securng of ncw industries

Canadian representative of Supreme Lodge K. of P
1906-08 and 10, At the 1910 meeting in Milwaukee elects]
supreme master-at-arms and attended the convention in Den
ver, 1912 in his official capacity. In 1914 was sent as com
missioner to the golden jubilee in Winnipeg. Member of St
David's Lodge A. F. & A M. and Chapter; C.O.F.; W. 0. W
St. Thomas Club, Talbot Club and the Ontario Liberal Club
Toronto. Member of Knox Presbyterian Chureh.

Married in 1895 Miss Isabel Allison, of Southwold. There
are two boys and two girls in t family

Resldence Lynhurst

ALFRED E. HOOKWAY
\ Hallway

Born, Aldborough township, 1871, son of Francis and
Maria  (Cavanaugh) Hookway Educated in the publi
schools of West Lorne: worked on the farm in West Elgin
until 1885 removed to St. Thomas, North Dakota, where In
remained untll 1889: returned to St. Thomas, Ont., and en
tered the serviee of the M.C R as brakeman 1888-190%; v
gaged in the cigar business in 3t. Thomas. 190306 re-entered
the ML.C.R. servicw as conductor, 1907, which position he still
holds.

Has taken prominent part in advancing the interests of
his fellow railwaymen and also an active part in clvie
life as alderman. 1o which position he was first elected in 1905
and several times sinee

e e
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JAMES AL B

County Hugineer

Born in the township of Lobo, county of Middlesex, in
1861, Educated in county schools and by private tuition.
Graduated as an Ontario 1and survevor in 1875,  Eleected
member of Canadian Society of Civil Engineers in 1887, Came
to St. Thomas in 1876 and has resided hvre since.  Engaged
in surveys of Canada Southern Railway and had charge of
erection of Cantilever bridges over the Niagara river in 1883
Was city engineer of 8t. Thomas from 1882 to 1891 and from
1896 to 1911 and enginver for the county of Elgin since 1882,
Now engaged in private practice under the name of Jas, A,
Bell & Sor

Was married to Kute Darrach of 8t. Thomas in 1882
Family consists ot fiv ns
Kesidence: 81 Elm strew:
WALKER €. CAUGHE
Clerk, Yurmouth Townshi
Born near Yarmouth Centre January 5, 1859, Mr

Caughell received his education at Yarmouth Centre publie
school and until his appointment to the position which he now
liolds, in 1901, assisted nis parents on the farm. His father
John C. Caughell, was assessor for the township of Yarmouth
and Mr. Caughell gained considerable knowledge of town
ship affairs through his parent whom he used to assist in his
official capacity. For the ten years prior to his appointment
as clerk Mr. Caughell was anditor for the township, He Is
secretary-treasurer of the Elgin Municipal Association. as
sociate anditor of Elgin ty, second vice-president of the
Municipal Association of Ontario, treasurer and a director of
the St. Thomas Y. M, ¢, /

He is a member of the AF
byterian Chureh

& AM. and of Knox Pres-

Married in 1883 Miss Annie Marlatt, daughter of the
late Joseph Marlatt armouth
Resldence 27 Regeat street

PATRICK MEEHAN
Vidermans Shoe and Lenther Mereh

Rorn in Ireland, 1848, son of Frank and Catherine Mee
han.  Educated in Ireland and came to Canada, settling in
St. Thomas in 1872, Spent eleven years in the service of the
Canada Southern Railroad, 1872-1883; entered the boot, show
and leather business in 1884 and has been engaged in it ever
since, occupying one stand on Talbot street for over thirty
years ed alderman of St Thomas 1882 mayor by
acclamation, 18889, re-elected, 1900, by the largest majority
ever given a mayor in the eity . was very active in locating the
city hall on its p et site, th by connecting St. Thomas
East and Wesc and removing the sectional feeling that exist
ed previously: appolnted justice of the p 1905

A member of the Catholie Chureh and a Conservative in
polities

Married Miss Julia Regan, of London
four boys and four girls

Resldence 36 Talbot str

1882, There are

't

LEONARD GEORGE THOMPSON

Viderman

Born in Walkerton, Bruce county, 18658, Educated in the
public and grammar schools his native town and removed
to 81 Thowas I8SSS, where he began his railroad ¢ r. Mr
Thompson has had o wondertally varied and  interesting
career, serving in the transportation departments of upwards
of a dozen rall Is and steamship lines throughout North
and South America, visiting Scotland and Ireland in the pur
sult of his numerous duties; served with U 8. regiments with
distinction during the Spanish American War and was wound
ed at the battle of San Juan Hill; served with his regiment
with Gen Funston during the guerilla warfare in the
Philippine Islands, returning via San Francisco He received an
honorable discharge with rank of sergeant major and record
of distinguished service.  Return'ng to St. Thomas he again
entered railroad work as conductor on the Wabash: after his
resignation he engaged In business for six years

Past president of the B of K. T member 1. O, 0. ¥.;
charter member and trustee L. O M. No. 989; elected alder
man 1914

F. L. BRINKMAN

\ T v Pere “

Born in Michigan City, Indiana, August, 1869; educated
in the public and high schools of his native city.

Entered upon an active career at an early age, starting
as o messenger for the M.C.R.; has been connected with the
United States Rolling Stock Co., of Hegewick, Ind.. the Pull-
man Car Co., Pullman, 111, for two years; the Featherbone Co.,
at Three Oaks, Mich, and removed to St. Thomas in 1889
with the last named concern with whom he continued till the
dissolution of the firm,
ntered the service of the Grand Trunk I R in 1892
served with the M.C.R. for nine years, both in the Western
and Canadian division until 1903, When the Pere Marquette
opened their Canadian division in 1903 Mr. Brinkman went
with them as a conductor and has risen until today he holds
the position of yardmaster with that road. As an alderman
in the city for the past six years he has always stood for the
best in clvie government and enjoys the goodwill of his fellow
citizens to a marked degree

He is a member of K. of P

LOOF:, LOOM: B

of ' T Canadian Association Trades and Labor Council,
Married Miss Middleton of 8t. Thomas, in 1887, There is
one son in family
Address: 79 Elgin street
4T, WEBSTER
Vidermang Antomobile Denler
Born in 1863 in Ekfrid township, Middlesex, Ontario;

edveatod ar public school section No. 1. Ekfrid.  Mr. Webster
camv to St. Thomas in 1880 and secured employment with the
Canada Southern Rallroad, now the M.C_R.. in the bridge con-
struction department In 1881 he was appointed general
foreman, which position he held until 1910, when he resign-
ed and purchased a livery on Elgin street and the garage of
the Elgin Automobile Co. at the rear of the Grand Central
Hotel.  While in the employ of the M.C.R. Mr. Webster was
also active in other lines, opvrating the Palace Livery for a
few years and in 1889 bought the greenhouses on St. Anne's
Place, which he conducted until 1904, when he sold out to
Ralph Crocker.  His Ilvery was destroyed by fire two years
ago and since he has devoted all his time to his garage which
Is one of the most up-to-date in Elgin county. This year a
large addition has been made to same in order to accomodate
his rapidly growing business. Agent for Reo and Russe'l mot
or cars Now serving his second consecutive term in the
city council.  Chalrman of *he public works commitive 1914

Member of Alma Street Presbyterian Chureh and K. of P

Married in 1884 1o Miss Mary Lethbridge
boy and one girl in the family

Residence:

There is one

99 Gladstone avenue

O HAMMOND
Mdermnn

Born 1860 in Oro township, East Simecoe; son of Willlam
and Vielet (MeKinley) Hammond. In 1870 he removed ‘o
Hartford Mills. New York State, with his parents, and after
passing through the public school there, assisted his parents
on the farm until 1880, in which year he weat to Bergen, N
Y. In that same year he came to 8t T us and was employed
as yard switchman on the Canada Southern Rallroad In
ISS1 he entered the employ of the Lehigh Valley Rallroad
as brakeman, with headquarters at Auburn, N. Y. In 1882
returned to St Thomas and entered the serviee or the M. ¢
R R oas brakeman: four years later he was promoted to
conductor on freight and construetion trains; in 1890 Mr
Hammond received severe injuries in a wreck and never re
entered the services of the company: in 1893 he entered the
wholesale and retall cigar and toba business, whieh he
condueted for 20 years at the corner of John and Talbot
streets, disposing of same in May. 1913, to W. Martin. Elected
to city counell in 1914; elected chairman of the Board of
Health and as such has inaugurated one of the best garbage
fystems in the country

Member of A, Foand A. M., R

In religion a Latter Day Saint

Married in 1900 to Anna Loulse
ceased ). Has one daughter

Residence: 57 Alma street

AMand ¢ O W

MeQueen, (sinee do-
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ALBERT MORRISS

Aderman | Contractor

Porn October 28, 1866, in the town of Croydon, Surrey,
England, son of Richard and Eliza Morriss. Ald. Morriss has
been engaged in carpenter work all his life. At the age of 21
he came to Canada, locating at Fingal, securing employment
with Jas. A. Powers, carpenter contractor. Eight years later
he came to St. Themas and was foreman for Sanders and
Powers, planing mills, and carpenter contractors, for seven
vears., In 1902 he engaged in business for himself and today
i% one of the prominent contractors o! the city

Elected to the city council, January 1st, 1914, Member
of several lodges: A, F. & A. M., LOOF, 8.0E, LOF. A
member of Knox Preshyterian church

Married in 1888 to Elizabeth J. Melntyre, of Cowal, Ont
There are four children in the family, one boy and three girls

Residence: 68 Elysian street

WILLIAM TROTT
Mderm:

Born Novewmber 8, 1850, in the town of Hillsburg, Wel-
lington County; son of James and Susan Trott, Educated in
the public school at Hillsburg and remained there five
He then removed to Guelph and for the following nine years
was & grain buyer for the firm of MeCrae & Hortop, Came to
St. Thomas in 1887 and conducted a very successful grocery
business on Ross street until 1907, when he retired Ala
Trott has dealt extensively in real estate; has always
been prominent in municipal affairs and has served eighteen
ars in the city council, for a number of years belng
hairman of the fire and light commitee Elected presi
dent of the Amasa Wood Hospital board 1913-14, and
a member for a number of years. Member 1. O.0. F. and
L O.F. and of the Church of Christ

Ald. Trott has been iwice married. First in 1873 to Miss
H. Ball of Ayr Township. who died a few years after mar
riage.  Married again in 1880 to Mary E. Cook of Caradoc
Township. There are two boys and two girls in the family

Residence 43 White stree:

W. K. SANDERSON

Hydroe Commin

er

Born Cait, Ontario, Janaary 13th, 1863; son of John €, and

Mary (Taylor) Sanderson.  Hisx grandfather came to Canada
in 1812 and his father, now ninety-six years old, served for
forty-seven years as superintendent buildings and bridges on

at Western R R Incated in Central School at Galt,
entered employ of Great Western Rallroad at London as call

hoy when twelve years of age: rose to position of fireman
and freight engin promoted to passenger engineer with
headquarters at Thomas, which position he now holds

as aldern
191

Served
commission

p 1008-10-11-12; el
cha'rman

‘ted to Hydro-electrie
Hydro-eleetric commission 1914

Member LOF . K. of P LOOM . B of LF. & E.. member
executive board Horticultural Soclety and  the  Methodist
Church

Married, 188 Miss Fannie Foster Reeves, daughter
J h F. Reeves, of Hamilton

There are three sons and five danghters

Residence 1 Owe street

GILBERT ROCHE

Mderman @

murnnee

br. W

Gllbert
of the
Village

Roche, brother of Hon
interfor of the Dominfon of Canada, wa< born in the
of Clandeboye, Middlesex county, in 18567 Edueated
n the Lucan schoo's and taught school one year hefore enter
ng upon mercantile pursuits. At the age of 19 he started as
a commercial traveler with a Montreal elothing frm and
tinued with them for seven years. Thereafter he lived in
Suringfield, Elgin county, until 1887, when he came to St
Thomas and entered upon his present business, insurance
and real estate. For 27 years Mr. Roche has been identified
with the growth and progress of the elty Served as alder
man for a number of years and Is always returned with a large
majority. though he never personally makes a canvass for

Roehe, minister

support of the voters

Married Miss Flora Black, of Springfield Hax three
daughters

Member of the Masonic Order. 1OF and W.OW

Residence 15 Willlam stre

K
Mannger, Clty L)

CAUGHELL
. Heat and Power Departmen |

Born 1865 in Yarmouth township, three miles east of
St. Thomas; son of John €. and Martha Green Caughell. Mr
Caughell in his early days assisted his parents on the farm. 1In
1882 he went to 8t. Joseph, Mo., and was engaged in railroad
contracting for five years. He then returned to St. Thomas
and was connected with the Provincial Provident Institution
Insurance Co., for some time and for several years was local
manager of the Mutual Reserve Fund Life and later secretary-
treasurer of The J. Mickleborough Co., which position he
resigned in 1909 to enter the service of the Light, Heat &
Power Department, as assistant to the then manager, George

L. Oill. In 1912 Mr. Oill resigned and Mr. Caughell succeeded
him

He is a member of the A. F. & A, M.; K. of P €. 0. F,
and A, O. U, W.; member of Trinity Anglican church and of

the choir there for twenty years
Married in 1893 to Mary Willlam
Williams, founder of the Thomas Williams'
falks.
Residence 26

Thomas
for old

daughter of
Home

Regent street

GEORGE K. CROCKER
Water Commissioner

Born in Devonsaire, England, July 18, 1844; son of John
and Jane Crocker., Educated in the publie schoois of England
and Central School, St. Thomas. Came to Canada with par-
ents, settling in St. Thomas 1856, learned the tanning trade
with William Lipsey; worked at that business for a number
of years pefore engaging in the leather business for himself,
which he conducted 1864-1 After the burning of his fac
tory in 1878, he opened a leather store on Talbot street which
he sold to Meehan & Regan in 190 Has been very active
m the upbullding of the eity: served on the public library
board for twenty-one years, being chalrman for sixteen years;
member of the water board 1900-1914 and chairman for
twelve years: past clty councilman: member Alma College
poard for twelve years. Is now Viee President of the South-
ern Loan Company; president St. Thomas cemetery board;
adherent the Methodist Chureh; charter member 1. 0, O, F,, and
member Elgin Kneampment

Married, 1868, Miss Mary Newcombe, of Yarmouth Cen
t1v. There are two sons: Ralph, of 8t. Thomas and Stanley, of
Vancouver

Residence a

Wellington streeq

THOMAS ALLAN
Englueer, Clty Water Waorks

Born in Sterling, Scotland, September. 18610 son  of
Thomas and Jane (Riggs) Allan, of Scotland.  Removed to
Canada and settled in 8t. Thomas in 1873 worked in Haggart
Brothers' foundry, 1873187 appointed engincer of the eity
water works In May, 1878, which position he has held continu-
ously for the past thirty-six years, ranking as the o'dest elty
cmploye

An adhierent of Alma street Preshyterian chureh, member
of the L 0, O, F, and the Sons of Scotland
Married, 1877, Miss Martha Ary of England.  There

are two daughters ard three sons, W. 1, und Gordon, of St
Thomas, and Thomas of Rochester, N

Residence: Water Works Park, 8t
WILLIAM J. SHAW

Thomas

Henlth Officer
Born January 31st, 1854, at Brantford: son of Thos. and
Elizabeth Shaw Educated in the Brantford publie schools

At the age of sixteen left school and learned carriage painting
with Adam Spence, Ltd., Hrantford Three years later Le
secured employment with the Great Western Railroad at Hamil
ton and in 1874 removed to London with the same company
me to 8t Thomas in 1877 and was employed by the M. C. R
1L for three and a half years,  He then opened a paint shop on
Tulbot street, which he ¢ fucted until May, 1892, June 3,
18 pted a position ex Sanitary Inspector of 8t Thomas,

which he still holds.  During his term of office, has proven
himself one of the most efficient oMeials the city has in its
employ and established an envi standard in his depar

mnt Secretary of the Chlldren’s Ald Soclety; member Ky w
chureh and 1. 0. 0O, F

Married, August, I8S78, Annie M. Dick, of London, There |
are four sons and four daughters in the family

Residen 142 Wellington strest
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W, ATKIN REV. K. L. WARNER

Sehool Inwpector Prinelpal, \lmn College

JOHN A, DALF F.oC POOLE
Sehool  Principal ARTHUR VOADEN sehool Principal
Princlpnl Colleginte Institute

EWIN CAMERON 1. A EDMINTON J. M. ROSSER
ol 1"

Peinelpnl, | Retired.) sehool  Princlpal ustness College  Prinelpal
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WELBERNE ATKIN J. A TAYLOR

Sehool Innpee sehool Inspeetor

Born in Yarmouth township, January 16, 1856; son ol
Isaac and Jane (Leeson) Atkin of Lincolnshire, England,

Educated in the public schools of Malahide and Collegiate In-
stitutes of Hamilton and St. Catnarines,

Born at Bowmanville, in Durham county; son of John
and Mary Taylor. Educated at Goderich Collegiate lustituie
and Queen's University. Graduated with degree of B. A, from
Queen's University in 1895; served as Classical Master i
started teaching school in school section Pickering College, 1894-1896; took post-graduate work in
taught in Toronto Normal School; at Avon for two years; geiapee at Queen's University, 1896-1898; was Science Master
St. Thomas for two years: mathematical master at St. Cath- j, purton High School, 1898-1900: Principal of Dutton High
arines Collegiate Institute until 1884, when he was appointed  gopool, 1900-1907; Principal of Wingham High School, 1907-
school inspector of Elgin county. In this capacity Mr. Atkin  1910; appointed School Inspector of St. Thomas and West
has given thirty-one years' continuous service. He is a mem-  Rigin in 1909
ber of the First Methodist Chureh and the Canadian Club His fraternal affiliations are Masonic and he is a member

Married, 1884, Miss Luella Graham, of St. Catharines of the Presbyterian church,

The:e is one son: Welberne Graham, a barrister of Sault Ste He
Mar.e w.th the firm of which Premier Hearst is the head, and
two daughters: Edith, a teacher of languages in Ingersoll
Colieglate, and Mrs. F. A. Bell, of 8t. Thomas,

Res'dence: S8 Metealfe street

married in 1902 Miss Emma Glasgow. There are
two sons in the family
Residence: 40 Willlam street

THOMAS MEEK
JOHN A, DALE Tax Collector

sehool Principnl Born in Southwold township, 1847; son of Thomas Meek.

p 8 . ) . b
Born in Glendale, Middlesex county; son of Solomon and Edu :‘ll in ‘”"; !h l"“l‘,"‘ ",""I I. o H:“':IP" ,p"(h“( - ;":M" ?n':
Malvina (Burdick) Dale. Educated in the Glendale public 488isted his father, a Port Bruce gra ':'"‘” oM SL &FS O
schools, London Collegiate Institute, Toronto Normal School, ”:“""" l‘: “‘;‘""“"f' he ”“'l" m;ll": s "l ;“m'""“ "“d‘ Ivarnml
Brantford Collegiate Institute and Western University, Chiea the harness business with late Heary Borbridge, 1861 -
go. graduating with B.A., and later proceeding to degive of tablished a harness business with his brother, known as \Iwk
(D) Paed.) from the sume institution. Began teaching at the “r"”“,'r"' Which concern ke ""}l SWAR.
age of seventeen and has bevn closely associated with educa- Elected to city council 1892 and served fourteen years
tional affairs ever since; served as principal of the schools at continuously, ,I"’"'.“ elected mayor in 1905; appointed m.‘
Burteh and Mount Pleasant: for five years headmaster at the “0llector for St. Thomas, succeeding J. C. Ponsford, 1906,
Central School, Brantford, teaching entrance class and contin-  Which position he still holds
uation work; principal of the schools at Grimsby and New Member the Methodist Church and 1.0O.O.F.
market; since September, 1912, he has been principal of the Residence 16 Isabel street
syrtle Street School, St. Thomas
A Congregationalist; member Ontario Historieal Soclety; FRANKLIN . POOLE
member the executive the Canadian Club: member Scotland
Lodge No . AP & A M Court Mount Pleasant No
164, C. O F Born In Burford, Ontario; ron of Will'am and Emiiy
Married, 1886, Miss Eva Melntyre, of Mount Pleasant (Dayton) Poole. Educated in the Brantford and Woodstock
TlLere is one son and one daughter Colleginte Institutes: Ottawa Normal School and Toronto
Residence 35 Wellington street College, graduating in 1896, Mathematical Master of Kenora
High School, 1896-1%03; Principal Keewatin  Continuation

e s o ~ - School, 19 08; Commerelal Master, Ottawa Public Schools
ROBERT IRONSIDE WARNER, M.\, Db, 1908-12; appointed Principal Wellington street school, St

Scehool Principal

Principal, Alma College Thomas, September, 1912, which position he now fills

Member A, F. & A M. Palestine Chapter, St. Thomas,
Carlton Lodge, LOOF, Ottawa: A O. U, W, and the First
Method st church

Born, October 22, 1848, Niagara Tp., Ont.; eldest child
of Joseph Warner and Catherine M. Lampman; grandfathers,
reter Warner and John Lampman, officers war 1812-15; great-
grandfather, Christian Warner, sergeant Butler's Rangers and Married Miss Florence Brown. of Ottawa. There are
inter first Methodist class leader and local preacher in Upper WO *ons and one daughter
Canada; direct ancestors, Warner (Switzerland), VanEvery Residence Rosebery Place
(Netherlands) Lampman (Mechlinburg), Secord or Sicard
(Huguenots from Normandy came to America in 17th cen EWIN CAMERON
tury, His four great grandfathers from these families wers
U K. Loyalists, settlers in Niagara, Canada, after American
Revolution Born, Elgin county, Ontario, 1832; ron of Ewin and Ellea

rrine pal Warner wus edueated in Nlagara public schools Cameron Educated in the public schoo's of 8t. Thomas and
Thoro d grummar school, Albert College Graduated PA Ohio.  Studied four years under the late President Garfield
77, (Valedictorian), 'S3, D.D, 1900, (Vie.); entered Metho ¢f the United States. Entered upon a career as school teacher
dist minstry 1877 and was ordained 1881 Taught school n his twenty-fourth year. teachirg three years in Watson's
at St. Davids for four years As probationer preached in  Corners. three years in Fingal. and five years in 8t. Thomas
Beverly, Seatorth. Forest, kmbro circults four years Ap as princinal of the Central (now Wellington street) school

Ifited protessor modern lunguages in Alma College 1581, and He numbers among his pupils many of the best known men 11
slected principal 1897, which office he still holds. During these the eity At the age of thirty-seven, Mr. Cameron settled on
seventeen years the college has been freed of debt and its work M8 farm in Southwold and for forty years devoted himself to
much  enlarged  and over $70,000 raised for improve agriculture.  He took a lively interest in local affairs, serving
ments,  Was delegate at general Conferences 1806, 1910 on the Southwold and County Councils for five years, and
1914, presicdent London Conterence 1911-12 Is member was largely instrumental in secur'nz the Port Sianley bridge
general board of education; deaconess b d; Alma College In I8 present location. Mr, Cameron has alvo taken a very
board, Vietoria University sena U. E. Loyalist Soclety. On active part in the political life of West Elgin, and for more
tario Historical Society, Canadian Club, 1.O. O F, R.T. of T than forty years has attended practically every Liberal conven-
Was at one time three years member St. Catharines cavaley  Hon.  He was one of those who brought the late George E
troop.  While his time now 18 largety taken with genera! man. ‘asey into the political arena and had a very large part in his
uzement of the College he teaches the classes fn re.iglou early successes in West Elgin. In 1910, Mr. Cameron returned
knowledge and psychology to 8t. Thomas where he now makes his home.

Married, Mareh & 1879, Catherine . Parsons, young He Is a member of Knox Preshyterian church
est daughter Rev. R Parsons and Saral J. Griffin; chil Married, in 1859, Miss Myra Willilams, of Fingal. Thers
dren; two living, R. 1. Warner, junior, accountant, and Wil-  are three sons and two daughters
frid Warner, medical studwnt Residence: 27 Willlam street

Schont ¥ clpnl  (Metiecd
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ARTHUR VOADEN
P

Born May 13th, 1870, son of James Voaden, of South-
wold, Ont. A graduate of the St. Thomas Collegiate Institute;
graduate in Medicine (M. D.), of Western University, Londen;
graduate in Arts (M. A of Queen's University, Kingston
specialist in Fnglish, History and Commerce.  Actively con-
nected with the schools of the county and ecity for tweuly
years.

Past President of the Canadian Club and the Y. M. C. A,
member of the Central Methodist church, A, F. & A M,
W. 0. W, and Royal Arcanum,

Married Miss Louisa Ba'e, December 25th, 1864
are three sons and ore danghter in the family

Residence: 110 Metealfe street.

There

JAMES A, EDMISTON
Sehool Principal

Born in Blenheim township, Oxford county, Ontario: son
of the late Archibald and Lydia A. Edmiston. Educated in
the public schools of Oxford; the Brantford and Woodstock
Collegiate Institutes: matriculated 1885, at Toronto University
with honors in Mathematics, English, History and Geography
and received first-class certificate from Toronto Normal College
in 1893, His carecr as teacher ineludes: Principal Embro publie
school, Oxford county, 1890-93; Commercial Master Perth
Collegiate institute, 1893-1910; Principal Continuation School
Cookstown, Ont., 1910-12; removed to 8t. Thomas upon his
appointment as Prineipal of Balaclava street school, 1912

Member of Knox Preshyterian chureh: Horticultural
Society: L O, F.; Canadian Club

Married, M'ss Theresa L. Foe, of Blenheim township. Of
the three chi'dren born to him, the clder daughter and a son
are deces Miss Miriam Elaine, the younger daughter, is
res'ding with her parents

Residence: 60 Cuartis street

4. M. ROSS

Born, September 17th, 1885, at Allsa Craig, Middlesex
county; son of David and Pheobe Rosser. Edueated in the
public schools at Ailsa Cralg, the Parkhill Colleglate Institute
the Model 8chool, of London, and the Westervelt Business (ol
lege, London. Taught publie school, 1902-07, in and about
Aflsa Cralg. Was engaged, 1908-11, in the accounting depart-
ment of the Grinnell Music Co., at Petoskey, Mich. In 1811
entered the Westervelt Business College for a commercial and
shorthand course with a special view to teaching these sub
jects.  Removed to 8t Thomas in 1912 and assumed charge
as principal, of the St. Thomas Business College, an institution
which has been in successful operation for the past twenty-
three years

Active in chureh eireles: a member of the Centre street
Baptist church and Superintendent of the Sund senool

Married, 1906, Miss Lillian Johnson, of Ailsa Craig
There is one son and one daughter in the family

Residence: 31 Metealfe street

4. B DAVIDSON
Narrister

Born in 1865, on farm near Belmont, Ont.; son of Sam
wel and Annle Davidion Educated at the Belmont public
school, Hamilton and St Thomas Business Colleges and Os
gowde Hall, Toronto After securing his matriculat'on he
took up law and studied in the offices of the late J. M, Glenn
St Thomas and Fmelly & McCrae. Toronto aduated in
1858 and opened an office in 8t. Thomas the same year, Dur
ing the years 1899 to 1903 held the office of police magistrate
Hus always taken a prominent part in polittes, being «
staunch Liberal.  President of the West Elgin Liberal Aso
¢ ution and chalrman of the St Thomas Liberal Assoclati n
Folicitor for the Star Loan Co. during the ten years of its life
Weldman Corporation of Brooklyn while operating in Canada
for twenty-one years solleitor for the local branch of the Mer-
chants Bank of Canada and one of the solleitors of the South
ern Loan and Savings Co

Member of Rathbone
O.U. W, and of Knox Presby

Married, 1881, to Annle ¢
are two hoys in the family

Res'dence: 34 Rosebery Place

adge, K oof P L O F and A
terian Chureh
Risdon, of 8t Thomus

Tiere

Born in Beaverton, Ontario, Nov. ¥, 1%60; son of John
and Jane Cameron. Educatea in the public schools of Beaver-
ton and Osgoode Hall, Toronto. Artic.ed with Nicol Kingsmill
of Toronto, having cnarge of the legal work for the Michigan
Central R. R., in 8t. Thomas until 1887 in which year he was
ealled to the bar and established his practice m Porc Arthur
where he continued 1887-1894; removed to 8t, Thomas 1893,
founding the firm of McLean, McLean & Cameron; since the
death of the other partners, Mr, Cameron has carried on the
business alone. He is solicitor for various firms and muniel-
palit'es; organized and Is secretary-treaurer of the St Thomas
Curling Club; organized the Athletic Association, purchasing
and deeding to the eity the present athletic field to be main-
tained as a playground.

Married, 1887, Miss F. J. McLean, daughter of late John
McLean, of St. Thomas. There ure three sons: Allan, Hugh
and ian and four daughters, of whom Miss Muriel gradua'ed
in 1914 from Toronto University with degree of B.A

Resldence: 32 St. George street,

EDGAR ¢, SANDERS
Marrister

Porn in St. Thomas, 1872, and attended St. Thomas
pubiie schools and Collegiate Institute.  He was an honor man
at Osgoode Hall Law School, and in his B.C.L. course at Trin-
sity, Toronto. He was a law student with the late
J. M. Glenn, K.C, and with Blake, Lash & Cassels and J. M
Roeve, K.C, of Tcronto, and after final examinations prae-
t'ced with tle latter for upwards of a year. He began practice
on his own account in 8t. Thomas in 1900, In 1911 he built
his handsomely appointed office building on Southwick street
and in January, 1913, entered into partnership with Mr
Andrew A. Ingram

Before entering upon his law course Mr. S8anders was for
four years a publie school teacher in Yarmouth Township at
the Seminary and Yarmouth Centre schools where he formed
many friendships which will be lifelong.

St. Thomas has no more public spirited citizen, Mr. San-
ders being always found in accord with any movemen! having
for its object the advancement of public welfare, Notwith-
standing his busy professional life he has given gool service
to the city as member of the Board of Education for eight
years, having been Chairman of the Hoard for two years, 1905
and 1908, and an Alderman for five years. While a member of
the City Counell he was Chairman of the Board of Health and
Chalrman of the Finance Committee for three years

On July 4th, 1905, he married Jane K. lles, of 8t
Thomas.  Thelr family comprises a daughter, Edra, and two
sons, Richard and Frank

He is a member of Knox Chureh and Masonie Order,
Royal Areh, K. of PLA O F,C. 0. F,and 1. 0.0, ¥

Residence A9 Wellington street.

LIEUTC0L, J. 8. ROBERTSON
Marvister

Born 1861 at Toronto, Ont.,
(Cook) Robertson. Educated in the public and high schools
ut Newmarket, Ont. At the age of 18 entered the law office of
Pelamore, Black and Reesor, Toronto, and three years later
the office of Judge O'Brien at L'Original, Ont. Two years later
e passed his examinations in the Law Society of Upper Canada
and came to 8t. Thomas forming a partnership with the late
Colin MeDougal,  Upon the death of his partner in 1899 Mr
Robertson moved to 2 Talbot and shortly afterwards to his
it locaticn in the Southern Loan chambers.  During
ears of 1904-5 he was in partnership again with E, ¢
Handers, now of the firm of Sanders and Ingram. Mr. Robert-
son has been clerk of the villages of West Lorne and Port
ey for several years. In 1897 he entered the 256th Regl
ment as second leutenant, passed through all the ranks and
commandcd the regiment for five years. Three years ago he
on the reserve list of officers retaining rank. In 1
les Mr. Robertson is quite prominent. He is a life
member of old 44, AL F. & A M, member Palestine Chapter;
Rathbone Lodge: K. of P.o A O U, W.: 0. F.; Inverary
Camp, 8 0. 8., West Lorne :

Member of Trinity Anglican Church.

Married in 1897 to Mary E. Higgintm of L'Origloal
There are two girls in the family

Resldence: 26 Rosebery Place

son of Jumes and Sarah
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COLIN ST, CLAIR LEITCH
rh

A native of Dunwich, Elgin county. Mr. Leiteh is a son
of the late Malcolm C. Leiteh of Dutton. FEducated in the
Dutton High School and 8t. Thomas Collegiate Institute,
Articled with the late J. M. Glenn, K.C., as a student for five
years; was called to the bar in 1893; practiced in Dutton
several years under the firm names of Leitch & Payne; upon
the removal of Mr. Payne formed the firm of Le'teh & Kirk-
land.

Mr. Leitech came to St. Thomas in 1906, forining a part-
nership with John R. Green, under the firm name of
Leiteh & Green until 1912 when the partnership was dissolved
since when he has practiced his profession alone. Mr. Leiteh
enjoys a very large municipal practice. He is solicitor for the
County of Elgin; Township of Aldborough; Township of Dun-
wieh; Township of South Dorchester; Village of Dutton, and
in 8t. Thomas for the Canadian Bank of Commerce, Imperial
Bank of Canada and Southern Loan and Savings Co.; also
the Royal Bank of Canada and Molsons Bank, Dufton, and
Imperial Bank of Sparta, also attorney in Canada for P. M, R.

He is a past president and was for 20 years secretary-
treasurer West Elgin Reform Association, and for many years
a member of the High School Board, Dutton. Member A, F
& A. M, Sons of Scotland and LOF. An adherent of Knox
Church, St. Thomas. Mr. Leitch is colonel and commanding
officer of the 8t. Thomas Home Guard Association

He married Florence, daughter of A, M. Mclintyre, Esqg.,
Dutton, and has a family of two daughters,

Residence: 20 Margaret street,

WILLIAM LLEW YN WICKETT

Barrister

Born at Holsworthy, Devonshire, England; son of Richard
Wickett, of England; removed with his father to 8t. Thomas
in 18 Educated in the old Central school, under N. M
Campbell; the 8t. Thomas Collegiate Institute, and Toronto
University, taking his degree (B, A) from the latter institu.
tion in 1888, Taught school for three years at Yarmouth
Centre; studied law in the office of J. M, Glenn, K. ") ealled
to the bar in 1891; established his practice in 8t. Thomas in
1891, since which date he has built a large and successful
clientele,

Is solicitor for the township of Yarmouth; the Alma
College Board; the Dominion Bank, and many others. Treas
urer the Elgin Land Association; Director the Southern Loan
& Savings ( member the Alma College Board; President
the St. Thomas Golf and Country Club: Past Master, A F. &
A. M.; member the Masonic Grand Lodge, and Sons of England

Residence: 105 Metcalfe street

M. D MeCRIMMON
Barrister

Born in St. Thomas; son of Angus (present Crown At-
torney) and Alice (Morclen) MeCrimmon, of 8t. Thomas, Edu
cated in 8t. Thomas and graduated from the law school of
Upper Canada, Toronto.  He established his practice in St
Thomas and removed his offices to the Royal Bank Building
upon its completion In September, 1914, 18 solicltor for the
Royal Bank of Canada and several other corporations

Member of the Presbyterian Chureh, local fraternal socle
ties and the Ontario Club of Toronto

Married, Junv 2, 1914, N Clara J. Ellison, daughter of
George Freeman Ellison, of St. Thomas

Restdence St. Thomas

GORDON BOWES COYNE
Burrister

Born, St. Thomas, September 23rd, 1889, son of James
H. and M. (Bowes) Coyne, of Toronto. Eduecated in the St
Thomas public schools, the Collegiate Institute, University of
Toronto, (B A 18110, and Osgoode Hall, graduating from the
latter institution, 1914, He won the Bankers' Scholarship,
U'niversity of Toronto, 1909, Served as Deputy Registrar in
St. Thomas during the summer of 1911, Practiced as a stu
dent, 19111914, in the office of Dewart, Maw & Hodgson, of
Toronto. Instituted his law practice in 8t. Thomas, 1914,
with offices in the Royal Bank Chambers

Bachelor;: attends First Methodist Chureh: member Zeta
Psi, Toronto

Residence: 95 Metealfe street

ANDREW AL INGRAM, BA
"

Born in St. Thomas, March 3rd, 1883, Son ol Andrew
B, ex-M. P, and Elizabeth Ingram. Educated in 8t, Thomas
Public Schools, 8t. Thomas Collegiate Institute, Toronto Uni-
versity, receiving his B, A, in 1906, three years later gradu
ating from Osgoode Hall

Entered the firm of Kingsmill, Saunders, Torrence and
Kingsmill. Had charge of the Solicitor's office for the M.
R. R. from 1909 1o 1913

Entered into partnership with Edgar C. Sanders, form-
ing the firm of Sanders & Ingram in 1913,

Active in chureh and fraternal cireles. Member of St
David's No. 302, A, F. & A.M.; Palestine Chapter No, 64 R
AM Burleigh Preceptory No. 21; Mocha Temple, Mystic
Shrine; Chancellor Commander for 1914 K. of P.: member
of the 8t. Thomas Club; Elgin Golf and Country Club; St
Thomas Curling Club; Bowling Club, ete

JOHN FARLEY, Q. ¢,
Harrister

ntee

Born, 1837, in township of Nissouri; son of Turner and
Georgina Farley. Educated in St. Thomas public schools;
studied law with Edward Horton in St. Thomas 1860-656; call-
ed to the bar 1865 and has practised his profession in this
city ever since.  Appointed Queen's Councillor 1885,

Has been important factor in affairs of the city; served as
member city couneil 18745 and 18846 ; chairman com-
mittee that bullt first clty water works; member committew
that built present water works; member water commission
1891-1900; president board of trade 1899-1%02

Member First Methodist Churcli; Masonie Order and St
Thomas Club.

Married, 1867, Miss Fannie A, Berry, (died 1914), daughter
of Rev. Francis Berry of Muncey, There are two sons and four
daughters.

Residence:

121 Stanley street.

W, K Ibsann
Henl B nnd |

e

Born in 1844 at Ternard, Holland; eame to America in
1849, He received his education in the publie schools of New
York and the Bryant and Stratton Business College at Buffale
He turned his attention to farming and eivil engineering and
came to Ontario during the construction work of the Canada
Southern Rallroad. It was in 1871 that Mr. Idsardi first came
to St. Thomas, where seven years later, in 1878, he forsook
railroad work to engage in the real estate business Many
honors have come to aim. As alderman he served the ety ably
for many years and has twice bewn chosen for mayor. He has
served for six years on the street rallway commission and sev-
eral years on the water commission,

Has one son and two daughters

Active layman in Trinity church

Member St. Thomas Lodge No, 44 A. F. & A. M.; Palestine
Chapter No. 54, R. A, M.; Minerva Couneil No. 12 and Burleigh
Preceptory No. 21

ADAM WILSON GRAHAM
Nursers man

Born, Aldborough township, September 29th, 1847
of Samuel and Ann (Wilson) Graham of Scotland. Educated
i the Aldborough schools and night school and worked on
the farm until the age of twenty-two; removed to Manitobs in
IN69 and took up land at Portage la Prairie. Joined the
volunteers at Winnipeg to put down the Reil rebellion and in
December, 1869, was taken and kept for ten weeks a prisoner;
in 1870 he decided to leave that country and with a party of
others made a four hundred mile overland trip to 8t. Cloud;
removed to Oklahoma in 1870, spending three years as sur-
veyor among hostile Indians: returned to Elgin county in 1878
and engaged in nursery business with his brothers, Robert and
Frank: in 1882 his brothers went West and he has sinee e
tinued the business alone

Member the Baptist Chareh, 1. 0. 0. F., and a Liberal in
polities rved twenty-one years on school board as cha'r
man in 1888 was for many years member 256th Battalion,
retiring with rank of captain: Is a crack rifle shot and has
taken many medals, one of which was presented by Princess
Louise; won a place on the Wimbledon team, now called the
Bisley team, and went with them to England in 1880, winning
the prize on Wimbledon Common

Married, 1878 Miss Caroline Stevenson, of N. Y

Residence 11 Margaret street

i oson
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RICHARD SANDERS
Bullder and Con

Born 1847, Lifton, Devonrhire, England, a son of Law-
rence and Agnes Sanders. Received his education and learned
his trade in Devonshire and afterwards worked three years in
London, England. He came to Canada in 1871, and settled in
St. Thomas and worked as a carpenter until 1873 when he
undertook a general contracting and building business for
himself. He conducted this business alone for 26 years; was
in partnership with Samuel Hawes for one year and in 1900
the late James A. Powers and he formed a partnership and the
firm known as Sanders & Powers continued until Mr, Powers’
death i 1906, Then Mr. Sanders continued along undl 1905
when his son, A. R. Sanders, joined him. The following year,
1909, the present company of Sanders & Bell, Limited, was
organized, with Richard Sanders, President; Fred C. Bell,
Vice-President, and Arthur R. Sanders, Secretary-Treasure;

In addition to building many residences in St. Thomas
and surrounding country and having contracts on some large
buildings, the subject o this sketch has had a share in the

etor

publie affairs of 8t. Thomas, having served as alderman 18

years. He has been always prosperous in business, which he
n'ml enjoys and takes a keen interest in the advancement of
the ecity,

Mr. Sanders is a member of the A.0.F., S.0.E., and of
Knox Church. He married in 1871 Miss Eleanor J. Edmonds,
of London, England, who with his only daughter, Miss Ada E
Sanders, resides with him at 22 Hincks street. He has two
sons, namely, A, R. Sanders, above-mentioned, and Edgar ¢
Sanders, barrister

Born, North Easthope, Perth county, April 15th, 1852;
son of Peter and Jeanette Stewart Educated in the public
schools of North Easthope, entering upon his active career at
the age of mineteen, spending two years at Petrolea;: entered
the service of the Canada Southern Railroad in 1872 and was
i the construction department from Courtright to 8t. Thomas
IST2-1875; brakeman, 1876-1880; since 1880 Mr. Stewart has
held the position of passenger conductor with the Credit Valley
(now Canadian Pacific) Railroad, having been on the one run
for over thirty years Has always taken an active part in
civie and political life, and in 1904 contested West Elgin
unsuccessfully for the federal house in the Liberal interest
but held the Conservative majority to 387

Member Knox Chureh; O. R.C. and C. O, F

Married, 1880, Miss Adelia Ward of Southwold. There
are two sons: Peter and J. W, and two daughters: Mrs, John
Gray and Mrs. G. M. Fulton, of 8t. Thomas

Residence 15 Barnes street

ROBERT b, EMSI

Hanehall tmplre
Born at Guelph, Ontario; son of Alexander and Mary
Emslie; educated i the London schools; removed, with lus

parents, to London as a boy, residing there until 1881, when
ne moved to St Thomas; has spent practically his entire hie,
sinee age of seventeen, i baseball. He began the game as
pitcher for the old Atlantics of London; then went with the
tamous Harriston (Ont.) HBrowns, Canadian champions in
IS80; came to St Thomas as pitcher for the Atlanties in
ISNLI-820 spent part of 18823 with Camden, interstate team,
witich disbanded after having lost only three games; finished
ISNE-S4-85 with Baltimore team of American Association

lelt Baltimore in middle of the season and finished with
Plndelphia  Athleties; with the Savannah team of the
International lLeague 1886 and started umpiring in that

league July 1, IS8T, remaining with them 188889 at Toronto
and Hamilten, In 1880 he jolned the American Assoclation
and in 1891 the umpiring staff of the National League, with
which he has been continuously for 23 years.

Member A F.oand A, M. Granite Curl'ng  Club; St
Thomas Gur Club, of which he was president for two
years; won the Grand International Handicap (Gilman-Barnes
Trophy in 1905, winning over 80 profesisonal shots from all
over the United States

Married, 18503, He'ena
one son and one daughter
51 Elgin street

Ward, of 8t. Thomas, There s

Residence

JOHN FREDERICK LANGAN
nlint

Born in 8t. Thomas, 1869; son of Edward and Elizabeth
Langan. Educated in the St. Thomas schools and Lake Forest
University, Chicago, graduating (B.L.), from law department
In 1900, Early life spent in St. Thomas: removed to Chicago,
1895; admitted to the Bar, 1900; practiced law in Chicago
until 1907; in 1903 became identificd with American organiza-
tions promoting emigration to Western Canada and continued
in land selling and colonization work until 1910; is one of
the ploneer developers of the Queen Charlotte Islands, B.
now identified with a number of corporations in Kindred lines;
is vice-president and one of the organizers of the Royal
Financial Corporation of Vancouver,

Liberal in politics; member Presbyterian church and of
Masonic orders.

Residences: St. Thomas and Vancouver,

JO
Hel

N MIDGLEY
d Merel

Born in Bradford, Yorkshire, England, 1834; educated
end spent his early life in Bradfora; at the age of fifteen
entered the employ of W. Peel & Co., of Bradford and remain-
ed with them for seven years; came to America in 1856, coming
to Toronto by way of New York; to London in 1857 where he
remained in the drygoods business for five yeass eame to St
Thomas, 1862 and entered the employ of Henry Caldwell, pur-
chasing the drygoods business in the same year: established
the east end brancu (now George W. Midgley) 1883, When
he retired from business he was the oldest merchant in the eity
Represented the ratepayers as councilman for many years;
elected mayor, 1887, and succeeded in bringing to an end the
bitter fight that existed between the East and West ends of
the city over the market question; reelected mayor 1888 by
acclamation; served as member school board for thirty-one
years, and member of the cemetery board for forty-five years

Member Trinity (Anglican) Church and A, F. AM,of
which he is at present oldest 8t. Thomas member,

Residence: 68 8t. George street,

LUMAN DAKE
Netired

Born, Oxford county, on the seventh concession, May 2
1847; son of Luman and Margaret (McCarthy) Drake. Edu-
cated in the public sehools of Oxford county and lived on the
farm until 1867, when he removed to Hamilton, Ont., and
learned blacksmithing with Willlam Cavanaugh, engaging in
that business for the fifteen years following. He came to
8t. Thomas in 1876; conducted the Dominion Hotel, 1876-79;
built the Dake House 1881, conducting that business until
1904, having spent two years of the intervening period in
Chicago during the World's Fair. In 1904, Mr. Drake retired
from the hotel lusiness and has constructed a number
of building bloeks on Talbot street

Married, 1877, Miss Alison Black of Guelph. There Is
one son: Willlam H., of 8t. Thomas and one daughter: Mrs.
Amos Armitage of Saskatoon

Res dence: 21 Talbot street

WALTER ROSS e

Merchant

Born in St. Thomas, son of Willlam and Flora Ross; his
father was one of the oldest business men and largest prop
erty owners of the city. Educated in the 8t. Thomas schools
and entered the employ of James Walthew, where he learned
the decorating bus ness: spent twenty years with W, R. Bevitt
in the wall paper anc decorating business and in 1900 estab
lished his own store at 437 Talbot street where he continued
until 1914 when he removed to his present location, establish
ing the Hiawatha Art Shop at 11 Hiawatha street.  Mr. Ross
served on the school board for two and one half years as chalr
man of the purchasing committee; five years as chalrman of the
license board and was appointed license inspector in 1913

Member of LOF. and Sons of Scotland,

Married, 1885, Miss MeGraw, of Elgin county
one son, Willlam P, and one daughter, Mrs, K. L
Ottawa

Residence

There I
Wiley. of

100 Talbot street
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CALVIN LAWRENCE
ol 1

Lenis ve Heprese

Born in Windham, Norfolk Ont,, January 30
son of William ¥. and Elizabeth Ann Lawrence. Edu
cated in the public school of Windham Centre, Came to St
Thomas in October, 1879, and obtained employment as brake
man on the Canada Southern Railwg transferred as fireman
in January 15882, sud in 1888, promoted to locomotive engin
eer, he still retains this position by the law of seniority
Married Miss Margaret Davidson, of St. Thomas

county,

sons

sent

In 1884 local Divisicn No. 1 oot 1 Mr
Lawrence as delegate to their international convention at St
Paul, Minn., where he was elected first grand assistant engin
eer, holding the position for two years. In 1896 he attended
the convention at Ottawa as grand officer, also the convention
at Norfolk, Virginia, in 1902, as delegate from Division 132
Served as chairman of the local committee for Division 132
almost continually from 1893 until 1910, and five or six years
acted as secretary of the general committee of adjustment on
M R

the system
Served as alderman 1902.04-05; elected mayor of St
Thomas 1906-07; again as alderman 1908, Once when mayor
of St. Thomas and again in 1910, Mr. Lawrence had the unique
distinction of acting as engineer on a M. . R, locomotive
pulling train of freight and passenger cars on the track of
the St. Thomas Street Railway, loaded with mechanies work
ing at their trade, and city officials, celebrating labor day At
the formation of the Dominion legislative board of the B. of
L. E. at Ottawa, in January, 1908, Mr. Lawrence was chosen
chairman Elected legislative representative of the Brother
yod for Canada by the Canadian delegates at the international
convention at Columbus. Ohio. in May, 1908, also elected
chairman of the Ontario legislative board of the Brotherhood
at Toronto in 1817: re-elected leglslative representative and
connsel and chairman of the Domin‘on legislative board at
Ottawa in 1910-12, to devote his whole time to the interests
of the Brotherhood. before the Dom'nion government and
board of rallway commissioners

Active in «
st Chureh
&AM:R
and Division

hureh and fraternal socteties.  Member of the
board of trade and Canadian Club.  Mem
A M K. T and K. M.; Mystic Shrine;

B B 132, B.oof L E
Besides taking an active interest in a4 number
societies, Mr. Lawrence is also a well known advoeat

Methe
ber of AL F

of fraternal
of social

and labor reform and deeply intereste in matters tending
to the amelioration of the conditions of the working classes
Athough remired to move to Ottawa, nevertheless, on ac
ount of « many interests in the eity of St. Thomas, Mr
Lawrence #till deeply concerned in its welfare and proiper
ity

Residence 200 Elgin street, Ottawa

J. ML CASSERLY
Phasicinn and Surgeon

torn in Totterham. 8'meoe county, Ontario, 1882, Edu
eated In the public schools of his native town and the 8t
Catharine Colleginte Institute Fntered the University of
Toronto and took his degree from that institution in 1908

Dr. Casserly took his hospital work at 8t. Michael's Hos
pital, Toronto. ard instituted his practice in Hamilton Mon

spent six vears there as a generil practitioner before

1914

tana He

coming to St Thomas in

Iw Ca rly sounds & new note in professional cireles
He is an advanccd thinker avd progressive to the last degree
He has fixed upon 8t. Then ar a fertile field for the estab
lishment of } futnre avrd he voiees the belief that a profes

stonal man should corduet his practice on business prineiple

While his ethieal beliefs are of the strictest character, Dr
Casserly has definitely undertaken to secure for himself as
lnrge a practice as possible in the shortest space of time.  Hi
means to ths end will be the introduction of the most ad
vaneced methods known to his profession and v utigable
never-ending hard work

He is consulting and examining physician for C. M. B A
CoOF K. ot ¢ Capital Life Insurance of Ottawa and
Anclent Order of Hibernian A member 8t. Thomas Golf and
Country Club A\ bachelor and an enthusiastic horseman

Address: 607 Talbot street

LEWIS MERTON M
" A

Born 1868 at Alma, Ontario; son of late Henry and Mary
Miller, of 8t. Thomas. Removed to 8t. Thomas with his par-
ents in 1871 and has made his home here since that date

Educated in 8t. Thomas public schools and entered the
service of Michigan Central R. R. when 18 years of age as a
clerk in the freight department. Spent 28 years continuously
in the company's service, 17 years in the freight department
and Trainmaster's office; resigned from the latter position in
1903 to accept position as Superintendent of Railroad Hospital
Association with headquarters in 8t. Thomas Mr. Miller
has under his charge all the sick and infured of the company’s
employes on the Canadian division

Member St. David's, No. 302 A F

& AM.1LOOF

and K. of P
Married Miss Mary B. Ferguson, daughter of the late
Duncan Ferguson, of 8t. Thomas. There is one daughter in

the family Residence, 88 Gladstone Ave
CHARLES FITZSIMONS
Dentnl Surgeon
Born in Elgin county, near 8t. Thomas, 18556, educated in
the 8t. Thomas public schools, Professor MeClure's Grammar

School riculated for Toronto Medical School
College an advanced student of medicine at time of
graduation; received degree of L.DS., 1878 ietablished his
dental practice in 8t. Thomas immediately thereatter and has
been a successful practitioner for thirty-s'x years ranking as
the oldest dentist in the city More than twenty successful
students have graduated under his preceptorship. Has had an
active part in the growth of the city and built many stores
and residences: is an ardent athlete and former star of the
lacrosse field: a clever hoxer and believer in all out door sport

and Dental

A Protestant Episcopal and a member of numerous fra
ternal societies

Married, Miss Pullen, of 8t
and one daughter in the family

Residence: 74 Southwick street

Thomas. There is one son

ARCHIBALD LEITCH

Physicinn wnd Surgeon

Born in Yarmouth township, December 25th, 1846; sor

of Donald and Nancy (Camplell) Leiteh  Educated in Yar
mouth public schools and Trinity Medie College, receiving
his degree (M. B.) 18 Came to 8t. Thomas in 186 u
Acting Devuty Registrar, under John MeKay, until 1872
Established his medical practice in 8t Catharines in 18756

eral
here

spending twenty-four years there as a ge
retnrned to 8t Thomas in 1899, practicing
since when he has en retired.  Dr. Leiteh
Catharines Couneil, 1890-94, two years as
Finance Committee

He is Past Master, St

practitioner
until 1910
served in the St
Chairman of the

Thomas Lodge, A, F. & A. M, Past
7., Palestine Chapter; Past Preceptor, Burleigh Preceptory
Past Prov. Prior. London District: Shriner, Mocha Temple
London: Thirty-second degree in Scottish Right An adherent
of Trinity ehurch
Married
Address: 40

Wellington street

FREDERICK GUEST

" Me

ol \rmy | Corps

orn in London township, 1868%: sgon. of Richard W

Guest Edveated in London Collegiate Institute, graduated
from Western University, 1880 He began the practiee of
medicine in Southwold in 1890, removing to St. Thomas in

1900, where he
continuously from 1903 to
re-elected in 1911 ranks as
Ambulance Unit, AL M. (

continued Served as alderman
1910, elected mayor, 1910, and
Lieut-Col. in Fifteenth Field
Past Distriet Deputy Grand Master
Masonie Distriet No is on Board of General Purposes Grand
Lodge of Canada: Pres'dent Alumni Society Western Unive

sity: Past  President Medical Association of St. Thoma

member K. of Po LOOF; A0 U W, WO W, €O

F..and C, 0 F

Married. Miss Alice

son and one daughter
Residence 12 Metealfe

has s nee

Sileox. of Elgin connty There

one

street




ST. THOMAS AND ITS MEN OF AFFAIRS

REV, O, C. ELLIOTY

H. M« RAY VEND ARCHDEACON AL C, HIL)
or, Knox Chureh Heetor, Trinlty Church

REV. N, . SINCLAIR REV. W, F. BROWNLES REV. W, A BREMNLR

Hetired Minister Heetor, N Jobn's Church Pastor. A\lma Street Chureh

R4 COLVILLY REV, 4. K. GUNDY THOMAS STACEY
ral Seeretary, Y. M. €, A Hetlred WMinister Wetived N
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O LUMLEY,

Dental Surgeon

Dr. Lumley is a native of Elgin County Born in lona,
December 1874, he was educated in the publie schools
of lona um| taught at Wille Corners and lona 1893-4. He
attended the St. Thomas Collegiate Institute and entered the
dental offices of Dr. J. J. Teetzel in 1885, He graduated
from the Toronto Dental College, receiving his D. D, 8. in
1809, He then entered MeMaster University and graduated
there with i3, A. degree in 1903, The same year he located in
St. Thom and established his present very successful prae-
tice

In 1912 the MeMaster University conferred the degree of
M. A. on Dr. Lumley

Dr. Lumley is a prominent figure in public and profession-
al life of the eity and his activities in uplift work is worthy
of note.  President of the Y. M. €. A, Board in 1914; also
president of the Diseiples Church Board: chairmun of the St.
Thomas School Board in 1913

Dr. Lumley made a most energetic campaign as the Lib.
eral candidate for West Elgin in the provincial contest on the
Abolition of the Bar campaign during the present year

Married, 1904, Miss Maud Westren, of Toronto

Member of the S8t. Thomas Club and K. of P

Residence 71 St George street

DAVID K. STENTON
"y

nn and Surgeon

Born in Harwich township, Kent county, Ontario, March
Gth, 1869; educated in the rural schools and started teaching
in 1877, holding various positions throughout Ontario;
received his professional teacher's certificates from Elora high
school July. 1881, and his degree (M. D), from Western
University, 1890; took up the practice of medicine in Wilkes
port, Lambton county, 1890, after fourteen years of successful
work he sold his practice and removed to St. Thomas where,
since 1904, he has continued the practice of his profession

Elected member School Hoard, 1912; president of St
Thomas Medical Association, 1914; member Chosen Frienas,
Home Cirele and 1. O F

Residenee: 106 Wellington street

RICHARD MASON LIPSEY, M, b,
Physielnn and Surgeon

Born in Yarmouth township, River Road; son of Andrew
and Jane Lipsey Educated in school section No, 17, Yar
mouth; Central High School, and Collegiate Institute, St
Thomas; graduate of Toronto Normal School and Toronto
University Taught school in Shedden and St. Thomas for
three years and instituted his medieal practice in 8t. Thon
June, 1894

Has served as Chalrman of Board of Education; President
Board of Governors, Amasa Wood Hospital; Pres:dent St
Thomas Medical Association; treasurer 8t Thomas Gun Club
member A F. & A M A M K. of PP City Rifte Associa
tion and is a member and trustee of First Methodist church

Residence 26 Muary streel

FREDERICK W IAM WRIGHT, J. P,

Foreman, W .0,

Born in Southwold, Elgin county; son of late Thomas B
and Grace M. Wright, of St. Thomas

Educated in public Is of 8t. Thomas and Ontario
School of Art, Toronto lulvrq-«l service M C. R, at an early
age and Is at present foreman, a position he has held for
twenty-hive years: served as mayor of city 1897-95; member
of board of education continuously since 1885, member city
council eleven years: tooX prominent part in forwarding
pavement of Talbot street, building water works, Wellington
and Balaclava street schools; was member building commit.
tee Collegiate Instiute; fo ny years president Children’s
Ald Society: member Royal Soclety of Arts, London, Eng.:
past president trustee department Ontario Education Associa
tlon: past master St. David's AF. & AM.; past noble grand
LOOF.; past chief patriarch Odd Fellows: past president 8
0K

Married, 1 Margaret, daughter of the late Thomas
Stuart of 8t. Thomas. There Ix one daughter
Residence Metealfe street

WILBUR ELIPHALET HONSINGER

Dental Surgeon

Born, St. Thomas, November 2nd, 1880; son of Waite and
Margaret (Drake) Honsinger and grandson of Benjamin Drake
who deeded the city the ground upon which the present court
louse now stands. KEducated in the local puvlic schools, Col-
legiate Institute; graduated trom Toronto University (D.D.S.)
and KRoyal College of Dental Surgeons (L.D.S.) 1000; estab-
lished present offices in the Journal Building where he has
been a particularly successful practitioner,

He 15 an ex-chairman of board of education and at present
time an active school trustee; one of the first to cffer his
services in European War; was gazetted as lleutenant in Army
Medieal Corps, dating from August 21st,

Past master St. David's Lodge No, 302; past Ilrs( principal
Palestine Chapter No. 64; past grand superintendent London
Dist. No. 2 for Canada; member Lodge Perfection, 8. R. M
Rose Croix Chapter; 8.R.M.; Shriner, member Mocha Temple,
London, Ont.; member Moore Consistory, supreme council of
thirty-third degree Masonry, Hamilton, Ontario. Also a mem-
ber Anglican Churen.

Residence: 35 Wellington street

ARTHUR N,
Henl Estnte § Ol

Born in London, England, 1854; came to St. Thomas
in 1875 and engaged in the panting and decorating business
in what 15 now the Dowler tiock, at that time occupled by
Hamniton and Stote; selling that business, Mr. Smith devoted
himself to horses and real estate. For many years there was
no better known nor more popular horseman in Ontario. He
spent two years in the real estate business in Hamilton and
then returned to 8t Thomas where he has been prominent in
business ever since. He purchased the St. Thomas Journal
from James 8. Brierly in 1905, and after a short proprietor-
ship, finding the duties too confining, he sold it to the present
owners, Since that date he has devoted himself to real estate
and horses. He has been very successful and s now one of the
largest real estate owners and tax payers in the city. He was
elected to the School Board in 1912 again in 1913 and elected
chairman in 1914

Member the Sons of England and Royal Arcanum.

Married, August 27, 1884, Miss Maria M. Dewey, There
are two daughters

Residence: 72 Southwick street

FRANK, K. BENNETT

Dental su

con

Born in St Thomas of parents who were among the
eariiest pioneers of this section; eduvcated in St Thomas
sehoals, graduated from dental department Toronto Universi
and received his degree (DDS) from Trinity University
Established Lis dental practice in St. Thomas in 1898 and for
sixteen years has practiced on Hincks  street Elected to
school board 1912-15; served as chairman manual training
and domestic selence; reelected 1914-15; now serving as chalr-
man of finance and supplies committee; secretary Elgin Dental
ety and chairman of its education department; member
Dominion Dental Society: honorary member Middlesex Dental
Soviety

As president of the 8t Thomas Hortienltural Soclety, Dr
Bennett has been the chief factor in bringing its membership
to over 1,100 making it the banner society in the province
Hundreds of flower beds throughout the eity and the very
general interest taken in city beautification bear witness to the
able work of the society

Married Miss Annle E. Barraclough of Ingersoll. There
are three sons and vae daughter in the family

Residence 17 Hincks street

Born In the city of 8t. Thomas some forty years ago and
one of the oldest business men of the eity, Mr, Conley is pro-
bably best kaown throughout the provinee as a public speak-
er and lecturer, his services being much in demand. He i« a
member of the board of education, the representative of the
Separate sciool board

Is a widower and lives with his family of five children at
Lis home on Hiawatha street
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BART

nl Surgeon

Born, Mount Brydges, Middlesex county. Educated in the
public schools and University of Toronto, receiving his L.D.8
in 1884; studied under Dr A. Teskey for several years;
established his practice in Woodstock and after fourteen
years removed to St, Thomas, buying out Dr, 1. P, Cunningham
on Talbot street; since 1900 Dr. Bartlett has practiced in St
Thomas

He is past master A, F. & A. M
Home Cirele: right eminent commander Knights of Malta;
second principal Oxford Chapter R. A. M. member K. of P.;
prominent in Church, Sunday school and Y. M.C.A. circles and
has served on the board of education

supreme warden Canadian

Married Miss Bennett of St, Thomas
Address Southwick street
Wo L SHAW, JR.
Civil Englueer

Born, London, Ont., June 9th, 1880; son of W. J. and
Annie (MeP.) Shaw “dueated in the public schools of
London and St. Thomas and the St. Thomas Colleginie Insti
tte,  Spent four years in mercantile work before entering
the service, in 1901, of the M. ¢, R, as rodman in the
engineering department; has spent thirteen years in that
bhranch, having held the positions of rodman, draughtsman
instrument man and, in 1907, his present appointment, assist
ant division engineer of the Canadian division. Elected, 1914

to the Board of Education, being the youngest member of that
hody
Member A, F. & A M R A M K. T

Mocha Temple

and K. M, and

Married. 1905, Miss Mary A Anderson, (deceased )
daughter of the late Henry Avderson. There is one daughter

Residence: 142 Wellington street

REV, O, ¢, orr
Pastor, Centre Street Haptist Chureh

Born, Kingston, Ontario, June 26th. 1867 educated at
Kingston: spent ten years there in business: entered Y. M
C. A, work in 1890 as assistant seeretary at Toronto; organ
ized the N. W, branch there: served as secretary and physical
director at Woodstock, 1890-93; resigned to enter the minisiry

in 1893 as pastor of churches at Tavistock and West Zorra
ordained to the ministry, August, 1894; resigned his pastora:e
in 1896 to enter MeMaster University, completing an engineer

ing and sclentific course in 1900; served as pastor at Grimshy
and Peterborough: was called to the church in Belleville
1901, and to Stratford in 1905 Removed to 8t Thomas
1910 as pastor of the Centre street Baptist chureh. where he
is still stationed
Married. 1903, Miss Addie L. Scott, of Peterboro. Thers
are four daughters and one son in the famiiy
Residence: 16 Mitchell street
WALTER A\, BURNS
tnl Surgeon
lorn In St Thomas, April 24th, 1867; son of late Dr
I A and Salome (Eedson) Burns Educated public schools
and St Thomas Collegiate Institute, the Model School, Royal
College of Dental Surgeons, Toronto: an honor graduate of

Philddelphia Dental College, 1894, and a graduate of Phila

lelphia School of Anatomy
of M. ¢, R in

accounting department
accountant at
student of

189499

Entered the servies
Thomas 1888.80; as cashier and fre
188091 articled with his father as a
practiced in Montreal and St John, N. B

at 8t
Detroit
dentistry

returned to St Thomas and succeeded to his father's prac
tice in 1500 Ihe present practice was established by Dr
LA Burns in 1859 and is the oldest in Ontario

Served ax member eity couneil and chalrman committee
member Street Rallway and its chalrman
at the time past member board of education

1906 commission

past master St e No, 302; AF. & AM; R A
M.: past chancellor K member Court Royal Vietoria,
C 0. F.; adherent of Anglican Chureh

Residenes 8 Southwick street

D. A MeKILLOP
Physielan and Surgeon

Dr. MeKillop was born in West Lorne, Elgin county, Ont
and educated in the public schools and 8t. Thomas Collegiate
Institute; graduated in 1890 from the Detroit College of
Medicine; from the Western University of London in 18984,
from the College of Physicians and Surgeons in Toronto in
1806 He established his practice in 8t. Thomas, in 1888
after devoting a little over & years to his profession in
Detroit.  Since 1908 he has been Medical Officer of Health
of the city Is Viece-President of the St. Thomas Medical
Association; a member of the Elgin County Medical Assocla-
tion

LOUIS VICTOR SAVAGE

Dentnl Surgeon

Born in St. Thomas in 1883, of one of the oldest families
in Elgin county. Educated in the 8t. Thomas Separate school
St. Thomas Collegiate Institute; graduated from the University
of Michigan, (D.D.S.), 1813, and the Royal College of Dental
Surgeons, of Toronto, (L.D.S. ), a Post-graduate course, 1914
Left the Collegiate Institute in 1905 and was employed in the
mechanical offices of the M. €. R, 1905-10, resigning to attend
his practice in St

the University of Michigan Established
Thomas, 1914; has finely appointed offices at 493 Talbot street
Member K. of ('.; supreme chapter Delta Sigma Delta

C. O F

VRAY

REV, NORMAN H. M¢

nox Chureh

Pastor,

Born in Whitby, Ontario, 8t. Anne's Eve, 1871; son of
George MeGilliveay of Scotland, who came to Canada in 1830
and brother of late Col, John A, McGillivray and Judge Me
Gillivray of Whithy Educated in the publie schools and Col
legiate Institute of Whithby and Toronto University: he was
an honor man, winning scholarshipa in Knox College and
graduating from that institution in 1900 He was licen
by Whithy preshytery: ordained by Ottawa preshytery, his
ordination and induction taking place July 10, 1900, in the
village of Carn, where he lived three and one-half years; from
Carp he was called to 8t. John's Church, Cornwall, Ontarlo,
suececd' ng the late Rev. Dr. Neil MeNish: from Cornwall he
was ealled to Taylor Church, Montreal, and in 1912 to his
present charge, Knox Presbhyterian Chureh, 8t Thomas

Married, 1901, Mizs Mary R. Mitchell, of Whithy
are two daughters: Margaret, age twelve, and Jean, «

sed

There
e six

REV. COLIN SINCLAIR
Hetired Minister

Born in township of Lobo, 1834, Graduate of Bethany
College, Vi, (M.A); entered the ministry in 18 giving his
first few years to evangelistic work av being ealled to the
Christian Church at Ridgetown in 156 where he mained

until 1885 resigned and took up supply work with the chureh
in 8t. Thomas, 1885-87; ealled to the church at Collingwood
ISNT-08; called to the ehurch In London, 1898-1901, resigning
of the heavy work of this charge, he devoted
work until 1912 when falling  health

on  account
himself to supply

compelled him to lay down his much loved work
Miss

Mr. Sinclair married in 1865 Flora
Nell Campbell of Kent County
Family: Four sons

Res'dence: 48 Rosebery Place

Rev, w.
e

imbton county, Ontario, 1866; educated In the
public Western University and Huron College of Lon
don, taking his degree in 1881 He was ordained by Rt Hev
Bishop Baldwin, Deacon in 1881 and to the Priesthood I
1892 undertook traveling mission work, covering the whole
of the Bruce peninsula; during the following years he wa
located in Biddulph and Ridgetown, and In 1909 again vent

Born in |

to Bruce county as rector of the parish of Southampion
in Novembe=, 1910, he came to St. Thomas as rector o 8t
John's Anglican Clureh, which stat'tn he now nlls

Married, 1892, Miss Lillian Hamley, of Harriston, On
There are five daughters and one son fu the family
Res'dence 14 Flora street

tario

daughter of §
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ARCHDE

Heetor, Tr

CON HILL
¥ Uhnreh

Archdeacon Arundel Charles Hill is the second son of
the late Rev. . B. Hill, M.A., an honor graduate of Huron
College, Dublin, who came to Canuda in 1838, and for 23
years faithfully performed the arduous duties of a ploneer
missionary on the Grand River, preaching in the churches
which he built in Cayuga, York and Caledonia on Sunday and
every evening in the week wherever he could gather a congre
gation. The boundaries of his parish were those of the county
of Haldimand

Archdeacon Hill was educated it home by his father and
matrienlated at the University of Toronto in 1863, winning
the scholarship in classics

In 1867 he graduated as gold medalist in classies and
received the degree of B. A, He was made an M. A, in 1868

He entered Huron College, London, in 1867, and was
ordained deacon by the late Bishop Cronyn in 1869, and priest
in 1870

His ministerial appointments were:
St. Paul's Cathedral, London: 1870-1873, curate of St. James
Cathedral, Toronto; 1873-756, assistant minister. Church of
Ascension, Hamilton; 1875, assistant at Chapter House, Lon
don, for a few months: 1876-1878 incumbent of Burford
Mount Pleasant and Catheart: 18781885, rector of Church of
St. John the Evangelist, Strathroy, 1885, rector of Trinity
Chureh, 8t. Thomas

Archdeacon Hill has been signally honored by Bishops
under whom he has served Honors conferred by the late
Bishop Hellmuth: Canon of the Cathedral; Senator of West
ern U Member of Huron College Couneil.  Honors
conferre the late Bishop Baldwin: Bishop's Examining
Chaplain; Rural Dean of Elgin, and Archdeacon of Elgin

Honors conferred by election: Member of Executive Com

1869-1870, curate of

consecutive years), member of General Synod and
of Provineial Synod
On June h, 1913, the Western University, at the re

quest of Huron College Council, conferred on Ven. Archdeacon

Hill the degree of D. D

Shortly before that ds Hon

he was promoted to

Major, as Chaplain of the Twenty-fifth Regiment, Elgin In
fantry

Residence: The Rectory, Wellington Street, St ‘I homas

HEV., WILLIAM ALEXANDER BREMNER.
o Almn Street Chur

Born, Banfishire, Scotland, February Jth, 1867 son of
James and Barbara (Hendern ) Hremner Removed  with
lis parents at the age of seven years (o Grey county, Ont
Educated in the public schools of Keady, Owen Sound Colle

glate Institute, Toronto University and Knox College, graduat
ing from the latter institution in 1901 Was called to Knox
chureh, Bracebridge, Muskoka, 14 07: Knox chureh, Ripley
Hru county, 19061 removed to St. Thomas and was in
ducted at Alma  street  Preshyterian  church Augnst 1sth
1912, succeeding Rev. Hall-Woods

Member of the Bons of Scotland

Married, Jan. 25th, 1902, Mizs Grace Echlin Richard oo
of Chatham, Ont. There are two daughters

Restdence: 7 Hughes street

ROBERT JAMES Ol
Necretary, VoML G0N
Born In City of Quebee, November 14, 1852 son of
James and Margaret olville. Educated in London and Toronto
and upon leaving school entered the dry goods business in
Toronto In which line he was engaged for nearly eighteen
years; was called into Y. M.C.A. work in Toronto September
1858, and served Peterboro Y. M.C.A. for three years, during
which time the present association plant was secured . wturn
ing to Toronto he served the West End Y. M.C for eight
years and Rallroad Association for eight years: ealled to or
ganize assoclation work on the Lake Superior Divislon of C. P
R., where he spent four years. On March 1st, 1911, Mr. Col
ville came to 8t. Thomas as general secretary of the local Y
M.C.A.. where he has continued to the present time
Member the Baptist church
Married, March 5. IST3, Miss Margaret
are two sons in the family
Residence: 36 Mvtcalfe street

Acton.  There

REV. JOUSEPH R, GUNDY
Methodist Minister (Retired)

Born at Mountmelick, Ireiand, 1838; son William
Gundy, a Methodist preacher, three of whose brothers were
also in the ministry His primary education was acquired
in the public schools of Ontario, and continued at the
St. Catharnes Academy and Toronto University. His first
ministerial appo.ntment was Owen Sound, then Montreal
Lindsay, Yorkville, London, Omemee, Waterford, Cainsville,
Harriston, Lxeter, Ridgetown, Aylmer, Essex Center, Sarnia,
London, W.ndsor, Strathroy, Wingham, and in June, 1905,
to Gra Methodist Chureh, 8t. Thomas, and by his untiring
forts the present handsome structure was erected in 1909
He took an active part in union work in 1874 and 1883, has
held office of chairman in Ridgetown, Aylmer, Windsor and
Sarnia and at the conference of 1890 was elected president;
was a member the first general conference and has always
taken active part in conference work

Married, September 26th, 1865,
of Willlam Eve'eigh . of Cote 8t

Residence: 24 Horton streot

Miss
Leonard,

Isabella, daughte
near Montreal

THOMAS ST
Hetired Merchnnt

Born at Great Torrington, Devonshire, England, Novem
ber 5th, 1827; came to Canada and settled in St. Thomas in
1842 and engaged in the blacksmithing business, At that
time there were no houses in the ecity east of Willlam street
tallow ecandles furnished the only means of lighting and @t
was in the early fiftles that Thomas Warren brought the first
coal ofl lamp ev seen in the d'strict. In 1876, Mr. Stacey
built the first wagon with iron springs and axle made in St
Thomas; founded the Stacey Hardware Co

He led the Methodist choir for over forty years;
vears has led and is still leading a Bible class in the First
Methodist Church: has served on the board of the first gas
works: Alma Colleze board a Southern Loan Society, and
is a charter member of Antiauity Lodge, A. O

for sixty

Married Miss Joanna Weeks, of Devonshire, England
There were eleven children, of whom there are now living
three sons and five daughters

ANLEY ©

Orgnnist nnd (

IWER

r Mas

v

17th, 1881
Educated i

Horn I Eccles, Kent county, England, July

n oof Willlam H. and Leah (Hawkes) Oliver
public schools of Kent Co.. and with Dr. 1. F. Henniker, AR
A M. of England. Began the study of music with his fathe
at very early ag been organist and choir master since four

teen years of age: taught volee production and simging s
Wateringburg School for two years: came to Canada a
settled at Leamington, Essex county, spending one year w

organist and choirmaster First Methodist Chureh, removed to
St Thomas as choirmaster First Methodist Church, 1912
1e of the largest private practices in elty and makes sp
of singing. during five years his pupils have won forty lll
prizes: organized and trained (under board of edueation
'AO0 volees for the enterta nment for the Duke of Connanght
1918
Married
Res'dence

TH14, Miss Clara Chapman
54 Elysian street

JAMES GALLOWAY

Orannist nnd Cholr Master

Horn in London lnulun-l
at Ashford and Bedford Grammar Schools; undertook
study of pano at 1) of five: left school when seventees
and became a professional pupil of H A, Harding, F. R. C 0
with whom he studied continuously for six years, heing at the
tme conductor of an orchestra of forty-five pleces; sub
sequently organist and choir master, 8t. James church, White
haven, for five years. He came to Canada in 1907, serving
for five years as member the Plano and Organ Faculty, Toronte
Concervatory of Musie: Prinecipal of Music Department 1'iek
erng College, Newmarket 10 member the plano stafl 8

August 17th, 18 Educated

same

Margaret’s Ladies” College. Toronto; organist and cholrmuster
at the Church of 8t. Mary Magdalene.  Removed to St. Thoma
In 1912, as organist and  cholrmaster Knox  Presbytrias

church He s conductor of the . Thomas Philharmonk
Cholr and an associate the Royal College of Organists, Lordon
England.  Has shown himself to be o suceessful teacher and
executive artist of ability
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J. HJON
Orgnnist and ¢

Native o1 Northampton, kngland; son of John Jones,
the Biue Coat School of Northampton, mdaucated with pri
tedchers; became an organist ac age of tweive; had 1w charg.
as organist and cno.rmaster of St. Pewer's Cnurcn, Norchamp
ton at age of fifteen; came to Canada as organ.st Church oy
St John the Evangeist, Toronto, 1872, later of Queen's Ave
Church, London, and in 1877 removed to St. Thomas taking
charge of Trinity Church al its open.ng serv.ce as organist ant
cholrmaster, wh.ch pos.ticn he still filis
Opened .n St. Thomas the first conservatory of music |

Elgin county: taught for ten years in the publ.e schools and
Collegiate Instituie; has goven numerous concerts with upwards
of 1,000 chi.dren s vo e s, has staged and produced over twenty
operas and has done more than anycne ese to educate the
musical taste of the city: has handied more than three thous
and private pupils and numbers Dr. Vogt of Tor.nto among
his earl'er studenis
Member Trn'ty Church: LOOF.. Royal

A, 0. U W, and 8t. Thomas Go!f Club
Married, 1874, Mss El'lzabeth Cupples of Boston To
them were born two sons and four daughters Mrs. Jones
died in 1897 and in 1902 Mr. Jones married Misy Wilmot
Elliott of W Sarum
Residence 75 Wellington street

o

Arcanum: W

0w

4. W, FEATHERSTON

Orgnnint and ¢ r Master

Born in Langford, Irelard, 1858; son of J. W. and Mar
Featherston; the family came to Montreal when Mr

Featherston was a chi'd.  He was educated in the schools of
that city His piano instructors were Calixa Lavallee and
Dom nique Ducharme, a pupil of the celebrated Francis Ma
montel.  His violin teachers were Carl Reichling and F. Jeh'n
Prune, while his composition and singing ma ter was Gullium
Couture

Mr. Featherston has always been successful as o singing
teacher, many of our leading vocalists having studied with
him exclusively He came to St Thomas in 1905 and has
resided and taught here since

Married, in 1887 to Miss Hattie E. Forsythe, of Dundas
Ont.  His three sons, F. Howard, a cellist and basso; Elmer 8.,
a flutist, and Douglas E., a viol n'st of note, the last two resid
ing in Vancouver, B O, and his dwughter, Edith M., a sopras
of excellence.

Studio: 185 Ross street

garet

JOUN SPEIGHT

Porn, East Morton, Yorkshire, England, April 1620, 1886
son of William-and Margaret Speight. of England.  Edueated
in the schools of East Morton and studied harmony and theory
w.th Professor Riley, of Kelghley, Yorkshire. He engaged in
orchestra work in Carlisie, England, 1905-7; came to Can
ada and settled in St Thomas, 1908, engaged part of his time
n mercanti work: organ zed Spelght's orchestra, 1909, the
first ard only organization of its kind in the city. Mg
pored numerous instrumental seleetions

M mber Arglican church;: I O, F
of St Thomas Musicians’ U'nion

Married, 1908, Miss Eliza
England. Has one son

Restdence: 51 Flora street

com

one of the organizors

th Shuttleworth, of Kelghley

Ebwakrp

U SPARKMAN

Comedinn

(NED SPARKS)

Born in Guelph, Ontar'o, November 1910 1850 son of
Willam and Mary A Sparkman, of 8t. Thomas. Fduested in
St Thomas end began his stage career ‘n 1905; d for
three years with permanent and traveling stoe) companies in
Alaska and along the Pacific const; appeared v with Walker
Whiteside and in ruch plays as “The Witchinrg Hour,” “Hrow.
of Harvard,” “A Gentleman from M ssissippi made his first
distivet success 'n “Over Night,” in 1911: ‘n 1912 made one
of the greatest hits of the New York season in “Little Miss
Hrown™: has s'nee been featured in “The Charm of Isabel,’
and “Sylvia Runs Away": recently prucipal comedian with
Perfect Lady”; now playing in “The Spotlight.”

Residence Wilson avenue

K. W, SUTHERLAND
Pablishes

Born . K.ng, Ontario, 1876; son of Andrew and Margar-
et (MeBride) Sutherland; eduecated n the publie schools of
seaforth and St. Thomas and St. tnomas Collegiate Institute,
Learned the printing and publshing business with James 8
Br.er.ey, tormer proprewt of the sournal; embarked in the
pook and job prancng wrade on own account in St Thomas,
1896, and enjoyed a large measure ol success,; amalgamated
with the sun.c.pal Worid, Lam.ted, m 1903, disposing of in
terests in that concern three years ater 1o head the company
which purchased The Journai from A, 8. Smith in 1906; beca
presiaent and manag.ng director of the company which position
he still retains,

Has taken an active part in the civie and political life of
Thomas ; was a.derman and chairman finance committee
of ¢ty counel in 1906-7 and contested West Elgin in the
Liberal interest for the Ontario leg.slature in 1908,

Member A F. & A M. K. oof P LO O.F, and C. 0. F;
past president Y. M. . A, and vice-pres.dent Granite Curling
Club.  Member of St. John's Anglhican Cuarch and organist
there for past twenty years

Marr.ed, 18§ Margaret E. Kingswood, of St
There are three sons and three daughters
Place

Thomas

Residence: 37 Rosebery

WILBUR JOHNSON
\ecountant

ROBEN

biorn at Port Hope, unar.o, 18745 son of William and
it iutee Johnson oiiloved Lo SL O Toomas, I8N, A8 ASSs-
Lant MACHemanca: master at che Codegiate ansctue; obu.n
CCil SReCLS Slana.ug, 1901, b ony successiul
PN U NGAr0 Laat year; organized the commercial de-
ate Institute; resigned to take up
studed 0 the L. S at the 1nstituie o
Coartered accoun.ans, pass.ng first o order ot merit both
incermed. a.e and tinal exam.nations; established his account-
Ing bus.ness in St Thomas, 1904; has bu.dt up a large clientele
throughout Western Gntario; o aud.tor and systematizer for
nearly all the lcad ng business houses of the eity

Past master A F. & A M. No. 44; member Palest.ne
Chapter R. A M. enthusiast.c sportsman; captain local golf
c.ub, ex-champion bieyelist and thorough athlete; botanical
enthus.ast, having a large natural history collection

Marr.ed, 1849, Miss Belle MeCrone, daughter of late
James McCrone.  There is cne son

Residence 23 East street

P uent of
docounaney, vt

ACE, D
Physicinn

Born in Brantford, Brant county, Ontario, 1888, son of
Willam and Rebecea k. Walaee, his father being one of the
oudest and most successtul farmers in Brant councy.  Educated
in the public schools of Brantford, Day s Bus.ness College,
the Paumer-Gregory College at Omaha City and  Roba's
Institute of Chiropractic Sault Ste
degree in 1912, He was reared n the country and spent s
arly Hfe on his father's farm Removed to St Thomas
1912 and assoc ated himself with Dr. Cotton in the practics of
Wiw professicn on which he has met with dostinet suecess. He s
unmare.ed

es dence and office

14 Horton street

JoH HOPRKRINS
Photographer

Born, 8L Thomas. Apr:l 18th, 1867; son of Henry and
Mary «MeNetl) Hopkins. Educated in the public schoois of 8t
Thomas and entered the photograph business when fourteen
years of age, work.ng for W. A, Cooper for six years, later for
W. E. Lindop, as a4 partner in the firm of Scott & Hopk ns,
until 1883 when he tcok over the business himself, conducting
it under b s own name ever s'nee. Built his present building
at 3556 Talbot street in 1893, organized the amusement com:
pany and bu'lt the Stan'ey Beach Casino, Port Stanley, 1509
Member Knex Chureh: K oof P 1 VP and AOUW, e
one daughter and two sons: Henry, of New York and Chester
of Winnipeg

Residence

50 Stanley street

Marie, receving his |
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W. K. COTTON, D,
Drugless Phyx

Born in New York city, in 18 JWducated in publie
schools of Ontario and Waterford High school.  Received his
degrees from the Palmer-Gregory college of Omaha city and
the Robin's Institute of Chiropractic of Sault Ste. Marie, th
International College of Osteopathy, of Elgin, 1L, and the
International College of Somopothy, of Elgin, 1L In addition
to the above sciences, Dr. Cotton makes a specialty of spondy
lotherapy. He came to St. Thomas in 1912 and instituted hi
present very successful practic

Married, in 1898, Miss Lillie Pettit

Address: 14 Horton street

Lo W DINGMAN

President and managing director of the Times i'rinting
Company, of 8t. Thomas, Limited, was educated in the public
and high schools of S8arnia and Strathroy, his introduction to
the printing trade being made in the office of the Strathroy
teh, then owned by his father, the late A, Dingman In
due course he was assoclated with his brother, W. 8. Dingmun
in the conduct of the Strathroy Dispateh, removing to Stratford
in IS8T to be again associated with his brothers W. 8. and
Charles in the conduct of the Stratford Herald, taking an active
part in the founding of the Stratford Daily Herald in March
ISST. In April, 1889, Le left the Herald to accept the business
managership of The St. Thomas Journal, from which Mr
Brierley had severed his connection to take charge
of the Montreal Herald, Tn April, 1902, Mr. Dingman headed
the company that bought the St womas Daily nes from
Messrs. A E. Wallace and John W. Eedy Under Mr. Ding
man’s control the Thomas Times has moved forward until
it | attained a very gh rank among the small papers in
Canada. A twenty-four page Hoe rotary press has just been in
stalled for the more rap'd issue of The Times' circulation. Mr
Dingman is a native of Lambton county, both his parents be
ing of United Empire Loyalist descent

Jumes

He s a member of the Masons and Knights of Pythias
and attends the First Methodist Chureh

WILLIAM U, LATORNELL
Hanker

it at Meaford, Grey county, Ont., 1871; son of Rohert
ated in publie
intere

I
and Isabella (Montgomery) Latornell Educ
schools of Meatord and Owen Sound Business College
service of the Molsons Bank at Meaford, 1881 s bes
identified with branches at Meaford, Owen Sound, London
Clinton, Ridgetown and twice at 8t. Thomas, first in 18895 an
is manager in 1905 when he established the East End branch

Member Trinity chureh and choir, A, F. & A M. R A M
K. T & K. M, treasurer St Thomas Tennis Club and Philha
monie choir

Married, 1903, Miss Edith Holliday Combe, of Clinton
Ilhere one daughter
s Welling

Residenes on street

H. K TYLor

unker

torn at Tewkesbury, Gloncestershire, England. Educated
e schools and Collegiate Institute of It, Ont.  Enter
service of Bank of Commerce, Berlin, Ont,, 1808; en
1901 and served with the Canadian Mounted Rifles
during South African War until 1902; returned to Canada ano
reentered service of the bank at Galt; transferred to Wood
tock, later to Vancouver and, in 1903, to Yukon, spend.ng
one year at Whitehorse and two  years at Dawson ity
Berved on inspecting staff covering Pacific stountil 1908
n which year he opened a branch at Forest, Ont., and a sub
branch at Camlachie, Ont.  Removed to 8t. Thomas, establish
ing the local branch and also « at Port Stanley, 1912
Member Anglican Church; Elgin Golf and Country Club

Masonie Order and K. of . and an officer in the Twenty
fifth Regiment

Married, 19085, Miss Catherine Marshall, of Toronto
are Is one danghter

Hesidence 9 Wellington street

W, HoMURen
nher

Born in Plymouth, Devon, England; comes from an old
English family; came to Canada with his parents woen a lad
and settled in St. Thomas His first venture in life was
photography and after three years he forsook this art and
devoted his time to literature, entering the employ of the
late Archibald McLachlin, then publisher of The Journal, and
conduetin a large book and stationery business After six
vears' experience he embarked in business for himsell and
continued with marked success for twenty-one years, fng
known as one of the leading bookmen in Westarn Ontario
In 1901 he was appo!nted manager of the Southwestern Loan
Company and continued so until its amalgamation in 1904
with the Southern Loan Co., when he became identified with
the management of The Huron & Erie, which opened a bransh
in 8t. Thomas, a position he still holds

Mr. Murch has given of his time freely to the public
life of the elty He was elected alderman in 1894-5, and on
the formation of the Industrial Committee, was appointed
secretary and continued in office for five years, during which
t'me a number of industries were brought to the city In
1905-06 he was elected president of the Board of Trade, and
about the same time appointed a member of the Board of
Management of Alma College. He was one of the founders
of the Elgin Historical Society in 1891 and has held office as
president etary or treasurer continuously siu The
Public Libra finds an earnest worker in Mr. Murch whe
takes a lively interest in this advanced form of public educa
tion; he is at present chairman of the board. In 1903 he was
made seeretary and director of the Times Printing Company
and ix a frequent contributor to the local press. He has always
identified h'mself with musical, literary and art societies and
is at present engaged in writing a history of Methodism in
St. Thomas, that may come out in book form later on

In religion he is a Methodist and prominent in the life
of the First Methodist church. He was the first president of
the Epworth League and the Men's Civie Club, and is now
chairman of the musie committ and teacher of the Adult
Bible Class Mr. Murch was for many years a director of
the Y. M. C. A ard among other honorary pos‘tions held wa
that of Grand Chancellor of the Knights of Pythias for the
domain of Ontario

Mr. Murch has traveled cons'derably and in lition
having traversed Canada from ocesn to ocean, he has visite
the greater part of Europe. the Mediterranean, Egypt and the
Holy Land

He married Anpa Cathar'ne Macpherson, daughter of the
fate Hugh Macpherson, of Westminster

W T Gove
Hanker

Born in Lambton County, son of Henry Gough, Kdueated
at Strathroy Collegiate Institute

Mr. Gough taught school for a number of years. Taugh
acconnting in a rumber of business colleges; connected with
the Armour Packing Co. for several years: coming to St
Thomas at Christmas time, 1888

Owned and operated at 8t Thomas for 11 years one of
the most suceessful Business Colleges of the Dominion
out to Mr. J. W, Westervelt in 1911 Was auditor for ihe
Southern Loan Co. for several years: City Auditor sinee 1905
Manager of the St. Thomas branch of the Home Bank sinee
Tane, 1911

LUCIUS EDWARD TATE
Haunke -

Born, London, England, May 11th, 1852, educated i
Christ’s Hospital, London, England, and visited Australis
Fefore coming to Canada in 1874 In April of that year he
entered the service of the Molsons Bank, in Montreal, and
ranks as the third oldest member of the service, having hees
with them continuously for forty-one years He bas heen
In Windsor, Toronto, Ridgetown, Owen Souand and
mas.  Has held overy position in the bank from clerk
o manager.  Was first appointed manager at Ridgetown, 1583
and held that position in Ridgetown and in 8t. Thomas sine
1893

A member of the Anglican church and one of the organ
Izers of the 8t. Thomas Curling Club

Has one son and one daughter

Residence: 4 Pearl street
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R, F. A GIVBERT
Banker
Born in St. Thom 1883; educated io public schools,

Ridley Coliege of St. Catharines, and rinity University, at
Toronto kntered the service of the lmperial Bank in St
Thomas branch, 1903; spent two years in the bank at Toronto;
returned 1o St Thomas as accountant and was promoted to
the managership, April 1st, 1911,

President >t ‘I nomas Board of Trade, and of St. Thomas
Curling Ciub, 1914, member St. Thomas Golf and Country
Ciub; K. of v faipot Club, and Trinity Anglican church

Marr.ed, March, 1912, Miss Laurier, daughter of Judge
Colter, of St. 1ucmas. There Is one son

Kesidence: 10l Metealf street

NEIL ¢, SINCLAIR
Muanutncturer

Born in Brooke township, Lambton couundy, Qutario, vu

Aprit Z, 1868, son of Colin and Filora (Uampoea) Sibcir
kaucated in tne public schools and Coliegiate insututes ol
Hidgetown and St Thomas, securing teacuer s certihbcaty in

Haggart distriet
Scnool in Winnipeg, o

1850 Spent one year teaching n CHoo.
Manitoba, and atter attending Normal
1887, taugnt at Milibrook, man,, tor one year, Heturned to
St Thomas and was located at lona Station for a year as
grain buyer for John Campbell In 188Y, purchased Aylmer
Flour Mills in partnership with H. J. Stevens, and the following
year represented the firm in the West Indies, being the first
to open that market to Canadian flour. Keturned to St
Thomas in 1892 as accountant for John Campbell, and on
the organization of John Campbell, Ltd., in 1900, became a
member of the company, and on Mr. Campbell's retirement
from active hfe, assumed the managership of the concern
On the organization of the Empire Flour Mills, Limited, in
July, 1911, which took over the business of John Campbell,

Ltd., and other flour mills at Brownsville and Blenheim, was
made manager and treasurer of the company, which position
ne now holds

Member of K. of P, Toronto and St. Thomas B of
Trade, Canadian Club, and Christian Church

Married, 1900, Miss Jean M. Miller of St. Thomas

Residence Rosebery Place

ALK PONSFORD
Manufn nrer

Born in Southwold township, 1867; son of George and
Sarah Ponsford. Educated in the public schools and learned
the bricklaying trade with his father. At the age of 21 he

formed a partnership with three of of his brothers, J. C,
T.., and E. Ponsford being the other partners, the firm doing
a general contracting business. He entered the contracting
business for himself in 1908 maintaining his offices for four
years on Talbot street west. He later removed to John street
and in 1911 to his present location, 605 Talbot street He
organized in 1912 the firm of A Ponsford, Ltd., of 1ich
he is president, the firm being the largest of its character in
Western Ontario and maintaining a large brick and tile yard

in connection. Mr. Ponsford has constructed practicaily all of
the most important structures in the city, including City
Hall, Collegiate Institute Mickleborough's store, Grace
Methodist Church, Just Wright Shoe Co. and Noble Mfg
factory bulldings

He s a Methodist

Married Miss R. Spurr, of 8t Tiiera are two sons
and four daughters in the family

Residence: 106 Elgin street

JOHN LYLE

Manufacturer

1851
night
snger boy in Glasgow
cksmithing  trade in
1862 salled  from

Born in Sterlingshire, Scotland, August &
Alexander and Ann (Dow) Lyle. Educated in
of native eity: started to work as a mes
Scotland, in 1561 prenticed to bl
Carron Iron Works, Falkirk, Scotland

son of

schools

Glasgow to New York in 1870; came to 8t. Thomas and found
employment in a saw mill, afterwards buying a farm in
Southwold in 1872; organized the 8t. Thomas Packing Co

in 1887; removed to 8t. Thomas in 1898
shyterian Church: Odd Fellows and 8. of 8
December 25, 1874, Miss  Helen Hay of

tland
nee: 34 Metealfe street

WiLLIAM H

Manu

Born in 1874 ot Warminster, Wiltshire county, England;

son of Charles and Sophia V. (Morris) Moody. Came to St
Thomas in 1892 and for several years was employed by 8
Dubber, butcher, and later conducted a grocery and butcher
shop on St. Catharine street with George Searle; in 1903
entered into partnership with Ernest Clark forming the firm
of Moody and Clark, butchers. In 1905 this firm opened a
cold storage on Talbot street west, and started packing pork
where now stands the plant of the St. Thomas Packing Co.,

MOODY,

nrer

Limited, which firm bought out their packing interests, Mr
Moody being appointed manager of the new company and has
been largely instrumental in building up the business and

plant, which is one of the largest in Western Ontario

Member of the Baptist Church
Evans

Married in 1899 to Miss V of London

Residence: 145 Elm street

wWiLLIAM

Manufae

Born, Delaware, Middlesex unty, 1861; son of W. 8
and Priscilla (Risdon) Rogers, of England. kducated in the
public schools of Delaware; apprenticed to the tinsmithing
business with his father as junior member of the firm of W

8. Rogers & Co., where he remained for twenty-two years,;
engaged in the hardware business in Woodstock for two
years; came to St. Thomas, 1904, as president the Erie Iron
Works upon the reorganization of that firm, manufacturing

hardware specialties and farm implements
Member Trinity chureh; Glencoe Lodge, 1. O. O. F

Married, 1897, Miss Helen Kerr, of Woodstock Ther:
are two daughters

Residence: 44 Centre street

ROBEY NORMAN PRICE,
Munufncturer

Born in Erin, Wellington County, Ont., March 18, 18564
son of William and Louise (Lang) Price, of Canada; educated
in public schools of Erin and lived on the farm until 1879
Spent a number of years in leading mills throughout United
States and Canada, becoming an expert in his line, having
charge as head miller of some of the largest plants in the
country; removed to St. Thomas in 1888 as head miller for
Campbell-Stevens Co At the dissolution of this company he
rema.ned with John Campbell as head miller; in 1907 in con
nection with N. C. Sinclair, organized The John Campbell

Mling Co., Ltd., taking over the interests of John Campbell
in 1910 purchased the Adeock Mills on Southwick street and
converted them into a cereal mill; in 1911 amalgamated with
I'he Rutherford Milling Co., of Blenheim as the rmpire Flour
Mills, Lid,, of which he was elected President.  Mr. Price has
erved as alderman for five years, heading the polls 1910-11;
chairman No committee during the installation of hydro

electrie; chairman hydro, light, heat and power, and stre
rallway committees 1911 chairman public works
during construction of subway: opening Balaclava street

instigator of the open air rinks; installation sewe
plant, ete.; elected mayor 1912-123
only mayor having this distinetion

Member the Disciples Chureh

ke disposal
both times by acclamation

Married, Dec 1S54, Miss Marion Ferguson, Wellington
County. There is one son, Lloyd Merlyn, and two daughters,
Marion F., (a teacher), and Cora (harpist), both at home

Residence: % Forest avenue

Born in Elgin county, Ontario, 1876, son of the late J
and Alice E. Ferguson, of Elgin. Educated in 8t. Thomas |
publie schools, Collegiate Institute and Business College
Entered the employ of Ellison & Lewis, in 1887, spending »

year and a half with them as bookke:

'r. Employed as junior

clerk with the St. Thomas Car Wheel Co., 1899-1901; chief
clerk with Hamilton Wheel & Foundry Co., 1901-03; chief I
clerk with Buffalo (N. Y.), Car Wheel Co, 1903-04; chlel |

clerk with Canadian Iron & Foundry Co., 8t. Thomas, 1904-06
Appointed manager the Canada Iron & Foundry Co., 1908
which position he still holds.

Mr. Ferguson now serves on the Industrial Committee of
the School Board, is a member of the Anglican Church, a char
ter member and Past President the Talbot Club, a member of
St David's Lodge, No. 302, AL F. & A. M, and K, of P

Residence: 72'% Southwick street
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JAMES B, POTTS

Manufne

irer

Born at Buffalo, N. Y., 1870; son of Robert and Isabel
Potts Removed to St. Thomas at an early recelved
his education in the Buffalo schools and 8t. Thomas Collegiate
Institute. Entered the service of the M. C. R, in 1887
ing ten years in the car department In 1887 Mr
resigned to accept an appointment as Manager of the St
Thomas Brass Co., (now the 8t. Thomas Bronze Co.), with
headquarters in New York. The'r 8t. Thomas plant manufac
tures rallway castings, babbits, ete, and employs an average
of twenty-five mechanics

Mr. Potts is a member of the First Methodist church
and the K, of P

Residence: Wellington street east

JAMES BRISTOW

Muanufucturer

Born, Mitchell, Ont ISTH; son of James and Sarah
Bristow Eduecated in the public schools of Bright, Ont., and
spent his early lite on the farm. Entered the butter and chee
business at the age of seventeen with Robert Johnston, «
Bright: was with the government as manager of the chees
factory in Prince Edward Island, 1895-88 ; with the Hon
Thomas Ballantyne's cheese and butter plant at Black Creek
Ont., 1898-99; manager Sebringville cheese and butter factory
1898-1900; Instructor in Strathroy Dairy Schools, during the
winters of 1800-03, teaching in the summer months at various
organizati

{

factories for the Dairymen's Association. Up
ot Western Dairy, Limited, .n 1903, he came to St. Thomas
as butter maker, and, in 1905, sueceeded Robert Johnston as
manager, which position he now holds
Member Preshbyterian chureh, A, F. & A M, K of P
Married, December 4th, 1901, Miss Nellie Mitchell, of
Bright There is one son and one daughter in the fanily

Residence: %0 Gladstone avenue

HROGER S, BLACK
"o

Aswistant Superintend

jorn in Dutton, Ont., Jan. Sth, 1877, Educated in Dutto
| public scnoois and St. Thomas Collegiate Institute.  Entere
ervice of the Canadian Pacific Railroad in 1896, spendin
four years in Mocsejaw and other Western points, gaining
of Pere Marquett

Eeneral e.per ende Lulcrea the servic
18 traln dispatcher at R4 own in 1900; was there for four
years until t offices were removed to St. Thomas. With t
except.on of 1wWo year pent in Detroit, has been in St. Thom
CVRr Since Mr. Black is a thorough railroad man who s

of his profession. With
\

wid experience in the various branch
the P. M. he has held positions of train dispateher. chief ¢

patcher, tralnmaster and present  position as assistant
super.ntendent
Married, M Francs, daughter of Dr. Ruthven, of Dut
n. There I8 one boy and three girls in the family
Mem rK of P
Residence 23 Curtd treet

JAMES CONKLIN CROMBIF

Tolnt nedent G T mad Wabash NN

Born in Hamilton, Ontario, 185%; son of David and Mar
gare' Cromb'e, of Hamilton Educated Hamilton schools
Entered rallroad work in I8T5 at the age of 16 as Signalman
with the Great Western.  Has continued 39 years in the ser
vice of the one system, (a.ways in the transportation depart

menty, and oceupled pesitions of signalman, operator, «
patehes, elief dispatcher, master of transportation and present
position as  Jjoint  superintendent Has  heen  statione
Palmerston, Hamilton, Komoka, Ingersoll, London and

Thomas

Recelved h's present appolntment and removed to St
Thomas, January 18th, 1914 As Joint superintendent, Mr
Crombie is in charge of all frelght and passener transporta
ton, bridges and bulldings, maintenance of way and motive
power departments of both Grand Trunk and Wabash

Preshyterian Married: One son, a practicing physician
Address: 10 Rosebery Place

I, L. McKEE
rintendent M. R,

Born at Congtantine, Mich., ron of Willilam and Belle
MeKeno Educated in the public schools of Constantine
Entered railway service at Silver City, N. M., in 1889, Spent
6 months as express messenger; 6 months in survey depart
ment of the Santa ke years with the L. 8. & M. 8. R. i
working up from car checker to general yard masier; 4 years
as yard master with the M, (. R at W ndsor I months at
Clinton, lowa, as trainmaster with Chleago and Northwestern;
IS months at Black Rock as general yard master for M. C. R
6 months as general yardmaster in charge of terminals at
Detroit: trainmaster, Toledo, unt’l January, 1912 train
master in  charge of Canad an  Division, stationed at St
Thomas, when, in 1914, he e elved his present appointment
as superintendent in charg of all traffie on the
division between Detro t and Buffalo. In 15 years
has held the positions of messenger, chainman, car ¢t
chief clerk to general yardmasier, switchman, brakeman
night general yardmaster, yardmaste gen I yardmaster
trainmaster and superintendent He has been stationed
Silver City, N. M ; Bliss, Okla.; Elkhart, Ind.; Windsor, Ont
Black Rock, N ¥ Detroit, Mich nd 8t. Thomas

Member B P. O

Married, 1902, Miss Ella Freeman, of Colon, Mich

Res'dence: 57 Elizabeth street

CHARLES MONTGOMERY
Master Mechanle, 1 W, N,

forn at London, Cnt., 1860; soa of Alexander ava Eliza
Montgomery, of Coll.ngwood Educated in London, Ontario,
schools Entered railroad work in 1876, spending a year and
a half as brakeman and fireman; three years as fireman with
the Great Northern; twenty years as engineer with the (., St
Po M & O in 1901 he went with the Missouri Pacific as road
foreman of engines and continvwed with them until 1905 when
Le entered the service of the Pere Marquette in Grand Rapids
rog

I torcman Iu 1906 he was promoted to his present
position, that of masier mechanic Dur.ng his 28 years of
tadroad work, M Montgomery has been stationed in 8t
Thomas, St Paul, Minn.: 8t Louis, Mo.; Grand Rapuds, Mich
and again .n St. Thomas

Mumber of Masonie eraft and a Shriner Adherent of he
Method st church

Marricd 1888, Miss Hutch son, of 8t. Thomas There are
five sons and one daughter in the family

Residence G4 Roochesy Place

THOMAS JAMES CASSIDY
Chlel Dispateher, G 1, w Wabnsh N,

lorn

St Frane

Richmond, Quebee, May 6t IS7T6; educated in
College at Kchmond;  learned telegraphy at
Itichmond  and entered the servie of the Grand Trunk
Railroad in 15y0 .,. been  twenty-four years contin

uously in the service and  held  the positions  of
messenger, operator, train dispateher and chief dispatcher
has been saationed at Kichmond, Que id Pond, Vt Port
land, Me N. H.o Montreal, Adirondack Mts, N, Y

and St T Removed to St. Thomas 1899 as train
dispatencr ;. was promoied choel dspatchier 1911, whic

position he now holds

Residence o Owalssa street

W. H LEY

nernl Frelght Agent, 17, ¥

lorn in Yorkshire, England, 18756 son of Alfred and
Sarah A, Jolley, Early education received in Yorkshire and
completed in St. Thomas, where he came in 1890 at the ag
of fifteen, Entered the service of the M, (. R. as messeng:
In ISSG, remaining with them until 1903 and holding 1t
positions of night clerk, abstract coers and ch'ef clerk
resigned in 1903 to go with the Pere Marquette as revisi
clerk: in 1904 as chlef clerk stationed at Ningara Falls, N. ¥
in 1

was promoted to chief clerk and car account \
Detroit, having charge of car disteibution  for the entire
ystem: resigned in 1910 to accept his present position
St Thomas

Member Grace Methodist Chureh

Married 1887, Miss Maude Strangeman, of St. Thom
There is one son and two danghters

Residence: 28 Hughes street
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JAMES 8. GRANEY

" Central ¥

i

Born, June 18th, 1864, Evans, N. Y., son of Dennis and
Mary Graney. Educated in the public schools of Evans and
entered upon his active career at the age of seventeen as tele
grapher and operator on the L.S. & M.8. 1871-78; extra train
dispatcher, Buffalo, 1878-80: train dispatcher Canada South
ern, at St. Thomas 1880-1882: night chief and chief train
dispatcher, St. Thomas 1882-1911, when ne was appointed
train dispatcher and rules instructor, in charge of compilation
of timetables, et

Member the . M. B, A
board

Married. May 20, 1878, Miss Mary A. McFeeley, of Buffalo,
There are three sons and six daughters in the family

Residence 38 Elgin street

chairman the Separate school

THOMAN LOWRY COCHRANE
& Frelght Agent G, T,

dolnt Travel

Born in Whithy, Ontario, October 1st, 1863; son of late
Abram and Margaret (Lowry) Cochrane, of Whitby, Educated
in the public schools of his native town; learned telegraphy
with the Dominion Telegraph Company when fifteen; entered
the service of the Grand Trunk Railway at Drumbo, 1879, and
served as telegraph o ator and agent 1879-18% moved to
8t. Thomas as agent, 1887, resigned from the Grand Trunk
to enter the service of the Wabash Railway as traveling
freight agent in 1895, in which position he has charge of all
freight traffic for the Wabash between Fort Willlam and St
John's, N. B, and personally covers Ontario, Queb Nova
Scotia and New Brunswick: is also agent of Wells Fargo Ex-
press Co. for the eity of 8t. Thomas During his thirty-five
vears of rallway service, Mr. Cochrane has been stationed
in Drumbo, St. Pauls, Smith's « rk, Mich, Mt. Clemens,
Mich., Chicago and Grand Trunk Junction, Milwaunkee Junction
at Detroit, Otterville, Tara, Delhi and 8t. Thomas

He is an officer of 8t Thomas Lodge A. F & A M.; first
nrincipal of Palestine Chapter, R. A, M, and a member of Knox
Church

Married. 1886, Miss Agnes Turner of Tara, Ont.  There
Is one son. Paul T., of Thomas and two daughters, Mrs
Herbert Armstrong of Echo Bay and Mrs. J. A MeDonald, of
Exeter, Ont

Resldence

25 Enst street

DoJd HACKETY

ndent Canndian |

IneSupe on W, LN

Born in Cass county, Michigan, May Ist, 1865 Educated
n public schools of Detroit, Detroit Business College and
Smith's Business College

Entered M. €. R, in 158851 as messenger: during his thirty
three years' service with this road has held positions of rod
man. yard clerk, telegrapher. billing clerk, clerk to traln
master, ass’t (rainmaster, assistant yardmaster, general yard
master, assistant trainmaster, tra'‘nmaster, assistant superin
tendent and superintendent of Canadian division He has
been stationed at Detroit \edo, Jackson and St. Thomas
Annointed superintendent Conadian division. stationed at St
Thomas. Dec. 31st, 1817 m Jackson, Mich., as division
superintendent there Oct

Marr‘ed, 1906, M'sx Harr'ett Fielding Berry of Nashville
Tenn

L
intriet

EN N PALMER.
waenuer \went, MW

Horn in Poland, Polona County. Ohlo, In 1547 son
Henry and Julla Palmer. At age of s'xteen he enl'sted
served in the Civil War with comnany O, H. A, June
IN63-August 1965 came to St Thomas with the “hlazers
of the trail,” the construction forces of the Michigan Central
Returning 1o 8t Themas in 1886 as auditor, he was subse
auently promoted to the position of traveling auditor, and he
held the pos'tion of ticket agent having charge of the
ticket office until suecceeded by Charles Singer in 1850 when
he was promoted to his witlon of district passenger agent
which he has filled for s

Member of the Woodmen of the World and the A. O, |

W
Resldence: 97 Stanley street

WILLIAM HOOPER KING
Frelght Agent, M, O Hoand PR

Born in St. Thomas, February 4th, 1850; son of John and
zabeth King. Educated in the local schools; entered the
service of the Canada Southern R. R. as train agent June 256th,
1874 appointed fre.ght agent M.C.R. and C.P.R., August 1,
1874, which position he still holds

Served as member city council during the year 8t, Thomas
was incorporated a city; chairman of the school board for two
vears and a member of that body for twelve years: during
his tenure of office, plans were matured for building of present
Wellington and Balaclava street schools; past president and
for fifteen years a member of the board of trade

Member Trinity Church; A. F. & A. M. life member Key
«tone Chapter No, 2

Married, 1874, Miss Sara B. Barrett of St. Thomas, There
are three sons

Residence: 33 Southwick street

WILLIAM T/

Foreman of En

Born in Grimsby, Ontario, in 18561; son of Benjamin and
Mary Little, Educated in the public schools of Grimsby, and,
at the age of sixteen, entered the service of the Great Western
R. R, spending one year as messenger and elght years as fuel
inspector. In 1875 he removed to 8t. Thomas and entered the
employ of the Canada Southern R. R., as locomotive fireman
for three years and engineer for six months, when, in 188§,
he was appointed round house foreman and engine despatcher
which position he has held for twenty-six years

He is a member of the Anglican church, 8t. John's Lodge,
A.F. & A M. Royal Arch, Burleigh Preceptory and Knights
of Malta

Married, in 1896, Miss Alice Troughton, of Yarmouth

Residence: 901 Talbot street

MICHA HEENAN
Specinl Agent, M, GO N

Born, September 6th, 1846, in Tipperary, Ireland: son ol
Daniel and Mary Heenan. Recelved his education in Ireland
and began his act've career in July, 1866, when he joined the
Royal Irish Constabulary. In 1872 he entered the service of
the Grand Trunk as special agent, naking his headounarters at
Stratford. In 1881 Mr. Heenan came with the Canada South-
ern Railroad, now the M. €. R, where he has been for thirty
four years as special agent, having charge, under Chief
McHugh, of Detroit, of everything of a eriminal nature on the
Canadian Division. Mr. Heenan came to 8t. Thomas in 1881
and has made it his home since that time. He is unmarried
and during his many years service has come to be one of the
best known characters in the eity

ROBERT MIDDLETON

® Frelaht Agent, M 0N

Temve

Horn near Springfield, Elgin county, Ontario, December
Znd, 1872 edueated in Springfield public schools Entered
service of M. . R, as telegrapher, 1888-1891; agent at Rus
combe, 18911896, agent st Aylmer, 1506-1905; freight
agent, Tillsonburg, 1905-06: appointed traveling freight agent
St Thomas, 1906, in charge of all freight traffie in Canadias
territory, which position he still holds

Married, 1589 Miss Sarah Hammond, of Leamington
are three daughters in the family
Residence: 26 St. Anns Place

ERT ALEXANDER DRAKE

fon  Sturekeeper, W 0 W,

Born in S8t Thomas, 1846; son of Dan and Christine
Drake Hix father was the first white ehild born in Elgi
county Engaged in the livery business with his father at
an early age and it nued with him until 1883; entered ser
v ee of the Canada Southern Rallroad as voucher clerk in the
purchasing agent's off In 1887 remaining there until 1583
appointed division storeke €. R In 1883 and has served
in that capacity for thirty-one years and under five different
purchasing agents

Member Chureh of England; has been through all the
chalrs in Masonry and s now member No. 44; Master Work
man, A O. U W, member 8 0.8; S0.E; 1 0.0F

Married, May 11th, 1869, Miss Elizabeth Melntosh, of 8t
Thomas.  There are two sons and two daughters

Restdence 31 Rosebery Place
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ABEL GRILLS
G nnd Wahash

dmaster

Born at Darlington, Ontario, 1873; son of R. and Ann M
Grills, of Darlington. Educated in the public schools of Mau
illa, Ont. Entered the service of Grand Trunk when 15 years
of age and has been continuously in the service of the road
since 1588 Spent four years at Manilla Junection on road
construction work; three years in Lindsay as relieving fore-
man; removed to Fort Erie in 1907 as assistant foreman of
construction; promoted to construction foreman the same
year. Took part in the double track work from Niagara to
Port Huron; spent two years on eastern division Jdoing grade
operation work; In 1903 was promoted to roadmaster of the
Grand Trunk at Sarnia; in 1905 was transferred as road
master to Hamilton; in 1909 was promoted to general road-
masier, statiored at St. Thomas, In charge of maintenance ol
way of 8t. Thomas division tor both Grand Trunk and Wabash

Member AL F A. M., and Royal Arch. Methodist

Married, in 1902, Miss Bertha Shafer, of berin, On
Two sous and four daughters in the famiy

Residence: 58 Kains street.

HENRY L. MARGETTS

Assintant Toalnmaster, M. €. R/,

Born, October 10th, 1881, at Niagara Falls, Ont.; son of
Thomas George and Jane Elizabeth Margetts, Educated in the
public schools of Niagara Fails, High School of De it, ana
the St. Thomas Couegiate lnstitute.  Entered the serviee of
the Michigan Central at St. Thomas in 1896 as car checker
for 3 years; timekeeper for 2 years: acting night trainmaster
1 year; ass.stant yura masier, | year. In 1903 he wuas tian
ferred to W.ndsor, Unt., as assistant yard master and acting
general yard masier for 11 years with the exception ol a few
months in a simiar capacity in St. Thomas. In 1914 he was
promoted 1o his preseac position as assistant trainmaster fo;
the Canad.an dov.sion, suationed at St Thomas, succeeding J
Balkwill

Member Great Western, No. 47, A
Court Royai v.cwora GO0k, St Thoma
can Church

Married, 18909, M.ss Mary Cook, of 8t. Thomas. There
are two daughieos in the tamily

", & A. M, Windsor;
, adherent of Angli-

EANEST P, CASH

Foremnn Contractor

Born, 1870, at Lakenheath, Suffolk county, England; son
of Avcabamn and Betsy Casn At the age of 14 entered the em
ploy of the British postal department as clerk in the post
wiice at Thedford. Came to Canada at the age of 21, locating
ut Ingersoll, Ont,, where for seven years he was employed by
e Bobca Barytie Stone Co. came to St Thomas in 1898 as
manager for A. E. Ponsford, general contractor, and became
secretary-treasurer of A, K. Ponsford, Ltd., upon the organ
fzation of that company in 1912 Joined th Regiment in
1911 with rank of Heutenant which he still holds, and serves
as signalling oficer

Member A F. & A M A0 F and LO. L member
Trinity Anglican church President Granite Curling Club

Married, in 1900, 1o Ada Ryman, of Ingersoll. There is
one son

Residence 81 Elgin street

cArT, n

Born in London, England, July 23rd., 1866 son of Robert
and Anne G, (Madden) Miller; educated in London, England,
and St. Thomas. Studied law with McLean and Miller and
afterwards with his father who was a master in chancery;
admitted to the bar of State of Michigan 1891 studied mining
engineering and received degree from Pennsylvania College
of Mines, 19¢ consulting engineer for Golden Reed Mining
& Milling Co.: Peace River Mining and Milling Co.; Hohman
Hyd lie and Gold Dredging Co

Member W.O.W.; National Geographic Soclety, Washing
ton, D. C.; honorary member 72nd New York Artillery: mem
ber Canadian Mining Institute; Dominion Institute of Amal
gamated Engineering and American College of Sclences
Captain St. Thomas Rifle Association; pres‘dent London Rifle
Tournament Assoclation: viee president the Eriean Hunting
and Fishing Club and secretary treasurer Port Stanley Bowl
ing Club
Residence: 38 Forest avenue

Rl
Cw

N J. FARR

ma Inspector

Born in Indiana, Ontario, February 2nd, 18568; son of
John and Rosa (Kerrott) Farrell dducated in the Cayuga
publie school; lived his eariy life at home until 1889; removed
10 8t. Thomas and entered the service of the M.chigan Centra;
Raliroad as trainman, 1889-1901, in which year he received
his appointment to the loca:r staff of H. M. Customs.

sember Holy Angels church; B. of R.T.; A 0. U. W,
.M. B. A K, of E, and Grand Kn.ght of the K. of C.

Married, June, 1587, Mus Elen Brady. There is one
son in the family

Residence: 69 Mitchell street

DANIEL FERGUSON

Collector of Customs

son of James and

Born, S8t. Thomas, Febiuary 21st, 1584
Janet (Jardine) Ferguson. Educated in th Thomas public
schools: engaged in the grocery business 1871-80; in the boot
and shoe business for seventeen years; appointed collector of
customs, 1901; a member of the city counell for four years
during the construction of the present water works, the east
ern scetion of the sewerage system. As chairman of the
inance committee had an active part in the sale of the city's
interest in the L. & P. 8. Rallway to the city or London; a
wember of the old fire brigade, the 8t. Thomas Rifle Corps, and
saw active service during the Fenian Raid, 1866; a member
the first board of governors, Amasa Wood Hospital, and for
twenty years a member the publie library board

Member the session of Knox church; 1. 0. 6. F.; 8 0. 8
ALO U W, W.OW

Married, June 1st, 1875, Miss Emily Philips. There are
three sons and six daughters

Res!dence 46 Owalssr street

J. ALEXANDER KILLINGSWORTH

Customs lnspector

Born, Baisover, Victoria county, Ontario; son of Richard
and Elizabeth Killingsworth, Removed to 8t. Thomas at an
early age and was educated in the Scranton and St. Thomas
schools pon leazing school he entered the service of the
M C.R., sperd.ng a number of years in the capacity of fireman
and engineer. He left the M. C. R to accept a position on the
editorial #taff of the 8t. Thomas Journal, a place he held with
distinetion for three years After leaving The Journal he
aceepted the managership of the 8t. Thomas Street Rallway
and after a short period resigned to enter the service of the
Pere Marquette as chief clerk. He continued with them uni
accepting his present position in the Customs Department

Mr. Killingsworth has been for many years a frequent
contributor to newspapers and periodicals throughout the
Dom nion His lterary products have met with marked
appreciation from erities of note and hs volume of verse
entitled “Sparks and Cinders,” has been heralded as a classic
by many reviews. He Is local correspondent for the Labor
Gazette of Ottawa; is a member of the local Trades and Labor
Couneil; a past Legislative Representative of the Brotherhood
of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen and has won himselt
an unquestioned place in the labor councils of the ecity

Residence: 21 Myrtle street

WILLIAM B, JENNINGS
Mereh:

Born at Bruce M.nes, Algoma district, May 19th, 18568;
son of Willlam and Mary (Brown) Jennings. Educated in the
public schools of truce Mines and at the age of thirtee
entered the employ of the West Canada Mining Company as
office assistant and wharfinger. Removed to Oshawa, Ont.,
as shipper for Oshawa Cabinet Furniture Co., 1875-77; a
traveling representative for them from Halifax to Windsor for
four years, galning a thorough knowledge of Ontario. Removed
to St. Thomas and entered the furniture business, locating
Talbot street west, July, 18585, built his present building, 132
Talbot street, in 1594 when that part of Talbot street
entirely unsettled.  There for twenty years he has conducted
the largest and most up-to-date furniture store in the city

An adherent of the Methodist Chureh

Married, 1885, Miss Loulse Goodacre, of Lucan, Ontario
There are four sons: Willlam Albert, Harry, Wilfred and
Frank, all of 8t. Thomas

Residence 432 Talbot street
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F. M. GRIFFIN
Conl Merchant

CHARLES E. RAVEN

Merchnn®

JOHN R MARTIN o P HEYNOLDS JOHUN BUTLER
Merehnnt Merchant Merchant
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'URNER

ALENAND

Physiclan and Surge

Educated in the

Born in Southwold township, in 1871
St. Thomas Collegiate and  Western  University aught
school in Dunwich township, 1893-1895; was principal of the
Wallacetown school, 1886-1897; received his degiee of M. D
from Western University, of London in 1901 anu established
his practice in Wallaceburg, Kent county, 1903, where he
ayed seven years. In 1909, Dr, Turner sold his Wallace
burg practice and established himself in St. Thomas. School
trustee, elected 1913; joned Twenty-F.fth Reziment Febru
ary, 1914, ranking as leutenant
Residence 646 Talbot street

Born, Oakville, Ontario, 1861; son of Joseph and Ann
(Wray) Grifin Educated in St. Thomas schools and Col
legiate Institute Became identified with the coal and ice
business, established in 1871 by his father, the late Joseph
Griffin, than whom St Thomas has had no more progressive
citizen.  The latter’s activity in Western Canada, the coming
greatness of which he was one of the first to fore took
him frequently there and he was the first to establish a pack
ing house at Winnipeg, and he was g rally and favorably
regarded in Western Canada as one of its ploneer manufactur
ers Following his aceidental death the loeal business was
joint stock company in 1811, Mr. F. M. Griffin

organized as a
becoming the president and manager

Mr. Griffin has alwavs taken a keen interest in the advance
ment of 8t. Thomas and has served on both the water commis
sion and school board

Member K. of P2 LO. O F.; A F. & A M.; Shrine, and
Methodist Chur

Marred, ISNT. M
Is one son and three daughters

Residence: 46 Stanley street

Kathar'ne Smith, of Sparta ere

GEORGE AL INGRAM
Merchant

Born in Morr'ston, Wellington county, Ont . August 4th
ISR son of Thomas and Mary Ann (Manary) Ingram 2
cated in the publie schools of Wellington county; remoy
St Thomas and entered the brokerage office of George 7T
Claris, ISNOCISN4; served In various capacities with Stacey
Hardware Co, ISNG- 1886 with the Cleve'and Steel & Con
struction Co., 18061868 In 180K Mr, Ingram returned to
St. Thomas and formed a partnership with ( ree W. Davey
pure ne the bus'ness of the Stac Hardware Company and
estahl 122-6 and No. 625-7 Talbot
street In 1908 the firm bullt their present heautiful hailding
at the corner of Southwick and Talhot streets where, as Ingran
& Davey, L'mited, they conduet the largest wholesale and

hing two stores at No

retail hardware business in this distriet

Mr. Ingram has been a member of the Executive Couneil
of the Board of Trade since 1811 member the Methodist
church; W, 0. W and the K. of P

Married, 1908, Miss Kather ne Emily Neale of St
Thomas Fhere are two sons and one daughter

Residencs 138 Wellington street

CHARLES EDMOND RAVEN

Merchnnt

torn in St. Thomas, September 28th, 1876; son of Fred
erick and Mary (Roche) Raven Educated in the public
schools and Collegiate Institute T
in 1891 with the late J. Wooster in the shoe business at 659
Talbot street; formed a partnership and purchased the bus
iness, upon Mr. Wooster's death, in 1900, dissolved the part
nership and took over the entire business, one of the most
successful in the ety, in 1907 and still conduets it at 665-7-9
Talbot street

Member AL F. & A M. and the Shrine: officer 8t. David's
Lodre, 302 member Grace Methodist Chureh; K. of P.: 1O
o.F and ¢ 0 F

Married, 1905, M Alberta Forbes of 8t Thomas. There
are two sons and two daunghters

Hesidenes T4 Rosehery Place

Started his bus ne (%)

W. DAVEY,

GEOR
Me
Born in Plymouth, England, January 16, 1868, son of
William and Ann.e Davey, of England. Educated in Canads
and entered the employ of the Stacey Hardware Company in
1889 und during the following elght years rose to the position
of head salesman; went with Rice, Lewis and Son, wholesale
hardware merchants of Toronto, n charge of ther cutlery
department, 1897-99; resigned that position to represent Beck
Brothers and Co., of Toronto as traveler through the Mara
time Provinces, Newfoundland, etc., 1880-1900; returned to
St. Thomas in 1900 and took the management of the east
y Hardware Co., for one year. With George
A. Ingram, he orgonized the present firm of Ingram and
Davey, Ltd., of which he is now vice-pres'dent and manager
Member of K. of P.; C.O. F.; W. 0. W.; also uniformed
ik of the K. of PP
Married Agnes, voungest daughter of John Campbell. of
8t. Thomas, who died January, 1909; he marr'ed aga'n, Sep
tember, 1913, Mabel. daughter of J. Lockhart, of Toronto
There is one son 'n the family
Res'dence: 84 Hincks street

JOHN R, MARTIN,

end store of §

r

Mere

Porn 185 at Tavistock, Devon<hire County, England
son of Joseph and Elizabeth Martin. Mr. Martin learned the
tailoring trade when but a youth, and in 1873 came to Canada
locating at Toronto, where for five v % he was employed
with Hunter and Taylor, tailors. In 1578 he left Toronto and
went to Ridgetown with the firm of Hagaman and Jull, until
1884 in which year he came to St. Thomas. For twe've vears
he was employed by Hugh McPherson, tailor and furnisher
In 1896 he formed his present partnership with L. Beal. Mr
Mart'n was a prominent figure in municipal matters for
vears. In 1900, and the following eight years, he wa
elected as representative of No. 3 ward on the board of
edurat'on. In 1909 he was e'ected to the city councll, where
he served for five years, each year holding a committee
chairmarsh'p, and in served as acting mayor

Preminent in fraternal circles and a member A, F. and
A M. Past Master, A, O. U W.; member of Knox Prebsyterian
Church, and for 22 years a member of the choir

Married in 1880 to Mary A. Highley, of St. Thomas
There are three children in the family, two rons: G. R, of
Montreal : Chas. F., city, and one daughter, Mrs, Graham
MceKellor, eity

JOHN BUTLER
Mer
Born in Clandebove, Middlesex eounty, January 5. 1860
son of Patrick ard Margaret (Clarke) Butler, of a family
which has lived in 8t. Thomas for years. He is the grand
nephew of Father O'Flynn, the second par'sh priest ever
stationed in 8t. Thomas Fdueated in the public schools of
Middlesex; removed to St Thomas at an early age and engaged
in the shoe business for eight years: with his brother, Edward
J., established the firm of Butler Brothers. grocers. in 1887
locating on Talbot street on the site where have con
duetcd the business for the past twenly-seven ye
Has served as member of the Separate School Board con
tinuously since 1896, ard as Chairman of the Board sine
1806 member of Holy Angel's chureh: K. of €, and C.M.BA
Married, 1889, Miss Maria Moore, of Michigan
Residenes: 653 Talbot street

W, Rocot kR

tusurnnce and Heal Estnte

ars

lorn in West Lorne, Ontario, December 12, 1850 son of
W. W, and Emma (Fowler) Coulter,  Educated in the public
schools and St. Thomas Col'eg.ate Institute, Upon the death
of his father, February 16, 1901 Mr, Coulter and his brother
took over the business which had been estab’ished since 155§;
In August of that yvar his brother withdrew from the part
nership and Mr. Coulter has carrled it on ever sinee and bhullt
its kind as there is in the eity. He
specializes in Life and Fire Insurance and controls the bush
ness of some of the largest plants n the distriet He is prest
dent of the Western Dalry, Limited: member K. of P.; €. 0
F.. LOO.F. No 76, AF. & A M.: Mocha Shrine, and &
nember of the Christian Church

Married. Miss Ada K. Mann of 8t Thomas. There are
two daughters in the family

Res'dence 86 Gladst

up as large a clientele of

avenue
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J. MCKELVEY URIE
Henl Estate and loasurance

Born in township of Onondaga, Brant county, Ontario
April 12th, 1864, Educated in the Caledonia high school and
tanght school for twenty years He was principal of the
Myrtle Street School for three years and principal of the
Wellington Street School for ten years, Since 1908 has been
engaged in his present business of real estate and insurance,
having offices in the Southern Loan Chambers

Served for two years as member the St. Thomas board
of education; is a member of Knox Presbyterian Chureh:
Knights of Pythias and Canadian Order of Chosen Friends

Married Jessie McKenzie Heddle, of Caledonia. There
is one son in the family

Residence 57 Gladstone avenue

LW, McPHERSON

tusurance and Heal

nte

Mr. McPherson was born in Talbotville, Elgin County,
Ontario, 1870, He is the son of Benjamin and Caroline Me
Pherson. old settlers of the distriet  Educated in the public
schools of 8t. Thomas and the Collegiate Institute, Entered
the real estaty business ss a young man under the guidance
of Squire Wood, with whom he continued to be associated un
til Mr. Wood's death in 1900, at which time Mr. McPherson
established his present bus‘ness. During his 29 yvars' connec
tion with the real estate business of St. Thomas, Mr. Mac
Pherson has been identified with the city's development to an
unusua' degree. Many of the principal parcels of land have
passed through his hands and he is always to be found in ae-
cord with anything which has the good of St. Thomas for its
aim

Married, 1895, Miss Jones, of Detroit

Member of the K. of P. and an enthusiastic horseman

Residence: 17 Elgin street

HENRY ROE

Insurnnce and Hewl

Born in St. Thomas, June 11th, 1866; son of Charles and
bee Mary (Kains) Roe. Educated in the public schools and
Collegiate Institute of St. Thomas Engaged in the grain
business with his fatner 1882 entered employ of the Michigan
Central R, R, as clerk of track department 1888 leaving the
rallway service to engage in the insurance and real estate
business. 1902, in which he built up a large clientele

Mr. Roe is past chairman of the board of education: is an
issuer of marriage licenses: has engrossed a large number of
addresses; is a commissioner of the high court of justice: is
past head for the London district of all branches of Masonry
including the Shrine: member Knights of Pythias: Knights
of the Maceabees: 1LOOF, and Church of England, having
been warden of Trinity Church for several years

Married, June 11th, 1913, Miss Ethel E. Jones, of St
Thomas

Residence: 8 Drake street

ALBERT A, SUTH

tnsurance nnd Henl

Born in Seaforth, Ontario, 1878, son of Andrew and
Margaret (MeBride) Sutherland Educated in St. The
schools and learned printing business with The J
tinuing for ten years ; resigned to enter traffic artment of
the M. €. R spent several years with Western Canada and
United States rallroads, first with the Canadian Pacific at
Vancouver, B. O and later with S8outhern Pacific at San Fran
clsco, Cal, and Rock Island at Fairbury, Neb.: returned to
St Thomas in 1904 and entered the Pere Marquette service
for the past four and a half years has been engaged in the
insurance and resl estate business with offices at 619 Talbot
str with the late John Camobell, in 1912, purchased Marn
property on Woodwarth Ave. and opened subdivision, which is
being rapldly taken up for residentinl purposes

Member 8t. John's (Anglican) Church, Knights of Pyth
las, and L.O.OM

Married, 1908, Elizabeth Melntyre, of 8t. Thomas. There
is one daughter

Residence: 28 Malakoff street

ROBERT M. LINDSAY,
Henl Estate

Born County Pe Ontario, 1879 Son of James and
Louise Lindsay. He was educated in the public schools and
Toronto Collegiate Institute

Mr. Lindsay entered the drygoods business in 8t. Thomas
at an early aze and in 1902 opened his own store on Talbot
street, where for nine years he successfuly conducted a general
and fancy drygoods business

In 1912 Mr. Lindsay sold his store and retired.  Of recent
vears he has devoted himself to real estate Investments in
Ontario, Alberta und Saskatchewan

He is at present time President of the Peace River Devel
opment Co. and spends six months of each year caring for his
interests at Edmonton, Alberta

THOMASN S, POOLE
ALl

Horn August 16th, 1872, son of Christopher and Ellen
(Corneil) Poole, of Ekfrid township, Middlesex coun Edu-
cated in the Dutton and Glencoe High Schools and th ronto
Normal School, After graduating from the latter institution
he taught school for six years near Melhourne He then
entered the mercantile business and finally located in St
Thomas, where for the past fourteen years he has conducted
his present grocery business on Ross street

Mr. Poole has always taken an active interest in the
religious and civie life of the eity He is an elder in Knox
Presbyterian church and served as a member of the City
Council during the year 1913, He is a Past Officer of the
Knights of Pythias

Married, in October, 1885, Miss Charlotte Lockwood, o
Ekfrid

Residence: 128 Ross street

COL. ALK MeLACH

Chemint and Droge

Horn 1871 in Fingal, township of Southwold, son of the
late Duncan and Isabella McLacklin.  Eduecated in the publie
school, St Thomas Collegiate Institute and Ontario College of
Pharmacy, Toronto, taking his degree from latter institution
1806 Established himself as a druggist in 8t. Thomas in
1806 where for 18 years he has carried on a partica'arly sue-
cessful business Appointed city analyst 1906 qualified 1914
as food examiner under the Dominion Adulteration Act
Served as first Captain of the Cadet Corps of the Collegiate
Institute. Spent 15 years as active member of the 25th Regi
ment, receiving vartous promotions until 1900 when he served
as Commanding Officer.  Is on the reserve list of the Regiment
at the present time

Member Knox church, €. O F., Sons of Scotland, A. F. &
A M, and K. of P

Married in 1904, Miss  Anna  Mclarty, of Yarmouth
There are three sons in the family

Reside 87 Gladst

avenue

FREDERICK M. BOND

Cnterer

Horn June 24th, 18
of Petrolia, Ont
ucated in publie schools of Petrolia and St Thoma
Collegiate Institute

Removed 1o 8t Thomas in 1895, entering the confection
ery business in the employ his unele, William J. Bond
which was established in 1% There he learned his trade
and in 1907, bought the business and still conducts it himself
at No. 108 Ross street where it has been ‘ocated for fifteen
Years

Mr. Bond is o Past Master of 8t, Thomas Lodge, No. 4
A F & A M, and a member of Palestine Chapter, RAM
Burleigh Preceptory No. 21, Elgin Encampment, 1LO.OF,
Mocha Temple: Order of Eastern Star; Canton Vietoria, Edns
Rebecea, and K. of P

Married Miss Anna Watt, of 8t. Thomas, June 24th, 14
There are three sons in the family

Residence: 14% Wellington Street

son of George and Sarah Bond
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GEORGE W, LANGDON
Henl ¥

e

Born in Kenilworth, Ont.,, 1881; soa of Mark and Martha
Langdon., Educated in Mt. Forest High Schoo: and McMaster
Umiversity ot Toronto, paying his own way through these insti-
tutions, w.nn.ng a scholarship in mathematics and taking his
degree (B.A ), 1903 Removed to St. Thomas i charge of
local work for correspondence schoos in 1904 encered real
estate business in connection with W. J. Kuth, opecating in
Manitoba; founded what is now the prosperous village of Lang
ruth, Man., and developed surrounding territory, where seven
years s.nece was a wild and untouched country; for five years
past has carried on the bus ness alone; mantains offices in
Langruth, W.nnigeg and St. Thomas

Member Masonie ovders and K. of P, and Baptist chu. i

Residences: St Thomas and Langruth

FRED R, PEARSON
Merchant

Born, June 7, 1882, at Miltun, Ont; son of Robert and
Olive Pearson. Educated in the Myrtle Street Schooi, St
Thomas, and the St. Thomas Business Coll Mr. Pearson
entered upon a business career .n 1900 as clerk w.th R H
Biackmore, hardware merchant. Three years later he entered
the sol.eitor's office of the M. . R. as claims agent and
rema.ned for seven years, resigning to pl a position as
accountant for the old Baldwin, Robinson Co., and on the
rganization of the company in 1911 Mr, Pearson was made
sceretary-treasurer

Past grand St. Thomas Lodge, 76, 1. 0. 0. F.; P. C. P, Elgin
Encampment No. 200 P.C.R irt Elliott, 217, ¢, O.F.
member St. David's Lodge, 302, A F. & A.M.; Palestine
Chapter 54, R. A M and keeper of records and seal Rathbone
Lodge, K. of P. Member of the Chureh of Christ

Married, ‘n 1907, to Miss L. Rose, of Essex, Ont.  There
Is one son

Residence 01 Gladstone avenue

JOSEPH MeALPINE
Mereh

Born, December 22, 1865, in Dunwich township, near st
Thomas. Af.er pass ng throngh Frome public school Mr. Me
Alpine ass.sted his parents on the farm for four years, and
then entercd the service of the G. T. R as tra nman, continuing
for a ar; in 1888 went to Arizona w.ih the Atlantic Pacific
Rallroad for one year, then returned home, remaining on the
farm until 188 represented the Frost and Wood Co. and
bought and shipped hogs with his brother, Dan el, until 1902
when he became travel ng represwentative for the Frost and
Wood Co., continuing until 1907 when he ¢ 1 a position
as salesman with the Massey-Harr s Co., of . in 1909
he purchased the musical goods and carriage bus ness of £
MeCredie, 499 Talbot street: In the spring of 1914 he sold
his premses at 499 Talbot strest and removed to 469 Talbot
street, where he conduets the finest exclusive musieal gooc
establishment in the ety

Member ALF. & A M, LO.OF. and K. of i n
Knox Presbyterian church

Married, in 1894, 10 Sarah Anderson, of Middlemarch

nher

I’ BLACKMORE
"t

Haurdwaure Mer

Born in London, Ontario, and educated in the Toro
public schols, finishing his commercial courser in St. Thoma
and taking highest honors in his class intererd the hard
wire business with his brother, J. J. Blackmore, thoroughly
learning every branch; established his own hardware business
' the present location in the corner store at ) Talbot street
seventeen years ugo; sinee that time he has absorbed the two
adia'ning stores

Mr. Blackmore

+ of the incorporators of the Canad
lan Order of W. 0. W, Past Grand of Elgin Lodge No. 32; a
veteran Odd Fellow: member AL F, & A M., and has taken
u very active part in the musical life of the eity He s
pres‘dent of Knox Chureh choir, president 8t Thomas Phil
harmonie cholr and an enthusiastic curler

Residence: 35 Southwick street

Born in Cleveland, 1876; son James and Anna (Mitehell)
Cook Mr. Stewart came to St. Thomas with his parents in
1878 He served his apprenticeship at his traoe with James
Atche ,and in 1894 went to the United States and worked
n several cities, including Cl land, Philadelphia, Washing-
ton and Baltimore. He came back to St. Thomas in 1906 and
opened a shop at his present location, 16 Catharne street
Mr. Stewart's business has been a very prosperous one and
he has found it necessary to rebuild and enlarge his premises
His is the only exclusive sheet metal, heating, slate and gravel
roofing bus'ness in the city,

In fraternal circles Mr. Stewart is a Shriner, member K
of P, AF, & AM; LO O F; C.O.F. and in religion a
Preshyterian

CHARLES H. LEA

Contrnetor

Born, 186 wrt Rowan, Ontario; son of Willlan: 8
and Mary E. | ducated in Strathroy public and high
schools. At the age of fourte accepted a position as book-
keeper with the firm of Pearce & Turpin, drygoods merchants,
Strathroy; a year later learned plastering trade with Gilbert
Clarke, Strathroy; removed to Petrolia in 18856 and for four
years was foreman for *ngus Ross plasterer of that town; while
in the employ of Mr. Ross, Petrolia witnessed a phenomenal
boom and Mr. Lea d'd the plastering ‘n the majority of the
finest buildings then erected. Came to St. Thomas in 1891
and for ten years was employed by James Stewart Sr., plasterer
in 1901 engaged in bus S8 on own account and by merit of
h'is high-class workma ip has gained an enviable reputation
in this territory

Prominent in fra‘ernal ¢'reles il quite active in the
following orders, of which he is a member: A F. & A M
1LO.O. F.; Elgin Encampment, N+, “0. 1. 0.0.F.;: Past h. D
and C. R, C.O. F: L.O.O. M Membor the Baptist Church

Residence Ress street

CHARLES RIDDLE

Born, London, Ont, 187 son of Jehn and Rebecea
Riddle, of London Educated in public schoo's of London
and the Central school in 8t. Thomas

He removed to St. Thomas with his parents ‘n 1886 and
spent six years farming on the Fourth Conecession, Yarmouth
In 1896 he entered into bus'ness with his father, the late
John Riddle, and since his father's death in 1900, has con
ducted the business alone

He conducts the oldest and largest roofing business in
the eity and covers a territory from Elgin County to Essex

Mr. Riddle was eted to the City Counell of St. Thomas
as alderman in 1906, heading the poll at that time,

He is an enthusiastic horseman and takes a lively interest
in local racing events

Member A, O, U W, for many years: Char‘er Mcmber A
O F.,and L OO

Married in 1892 Miss Skelding, of St. Thomas. There
are two sons and one daughter in the family

Residence, 56 Rallway street, a part of what has been
known for many years as “Riddle’s Corner.”

¥. C. BELL

Hullder and Cantrae

or

Born in London, England, August Gth, 1879; son of J
Bell and Ann'e Bell. Rece'ved his education in wiand and
came to Canada in 1894, settling in St. Thomas.  He served his
apprenticeship in the carpenter's trade and in 1907 engaged
in busivess fer himself, bul'dng o number of resilences, ete
In 1909, upon the ¢ ‘ablishment of nders & Bell, Limited
he became Viee-Pre ‘dent of the company, which position he
still ho'ds.  He Ix an active member of this progressive com
pany which Is ga'n ng a large share of building business ¢
8t. Thomas

Mr. Bell is a memler of the A I & A. M, A O F, and
AL O U W and a member of the Board or the Christia
chureh

Married in May, 1902, Mirs Ma:y Howes, of 8t. Thonas
There s ore boy and one girl in the family

Res!dence: 40 Elizabeth ctr
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K. ¢, BELL

Hullder and Contractor

HENRY LINDOP RICHARD SANDERS

Hullder and Contenetor Hullder and Contractor

CHARLES H. LEA CHARLEFS RIDDLF ALFRED HORTON

Contractor Contraetor Contractor

b FRAN LITTLE
A R RANDERS . "".‘ » HENRY LINDOP, JR

Wullder and o Balider

Hullder and Contractor
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HARRY ARTHUR TURNPENNY
Merchnnt

Born, London, England. June 10th, 1854; son of Samuel
and Elesnor (Gladstone) Turnpenny, of England Educated
in Mechanies' Institute, London, and came to Canada. settling
in 8t. Thomas in 1876, He worked as a decorator in 1876-78;
established and conducted a prosperous painting and decorat
ing business on Ross st I8T8-1907; established his present
art business at 267 Ibot street, in 1911 Served in City
Council as Chairman Number Four Committee

Member Trinity chureh, A, F. & A, M, ard 1. 0. O F

Married, in 1879, Miss Jeannette MeCreath, of Dunwich
There is one daughter

Residence: 91 Scott street

JAMES HERBERT PADDON
Merchant

Born. in 1891, near St. Thomas. Educated in the St
Thomas public schools and Collegiate Institute At the age
of fifteen he entered the employ of A, McPherson, merchant
tailor and men’s furnisher, as salesman. Four years later he
accepted a position with the local branch of Oak Hall and
rema.ned for one and one-half years, then removed to London
in the employ of the same firm. In June, 1912, he received
the appointment to his present position Mr. Paddon is one
of the most progressive business men in the city and the
voungest manager in the chaln of stores operated by the San
ford Manufacturing Company, of Hamilton

Member of the K. of P

Married in July, 1910 Miss  Ethel Chaplow, of St
Thomas. There is one girl and one boy in the family

Residence 10 Isabel street

HENRY LINDO

Hullder nnd

mas, Ont, 1836, son of Thomas and
Elizabeth Lindop ucated in the public schools and engaged
in mercantile business, 8t. Thomas, 1862-70. Entered lumber
business 1870, established his present sash and door factory
at 60 Moore street, where it has been for 358 years past. Has
constructed more than 300 build ngs in the city, and at one
t'me was the owner of and is generally credited with having
done more to advance St. Thomas (o its present position than
perhaps any other individual citizen. Served as a member
of city couneil 1875-6

Is a member of Trinity Church

Married, 1879, Miss Mar'a E. Straffon, of
Kansas. There i one son and two danghters in the family

Residence: 78 8. George street

Born, St. TI

Lawrence

tED HORTON

er nnd Contr

Al

Born, 18566, at | eeds, Yorkshire, England; son of Joseph
and Mary (Pickles) Horton After leaving school learned the
trade of masonry and was employed by a Leeds contractor
until 1879, in which year e came to Canada, locating at St
Thomus roseven years he was employed by Alfred Jacobs
contractor, snd then went bus‘n for himse'f and has
nrospered In 1912 pureh | the cement block plant at 939
Talbot street, and is a large manufacturer of all kinds of
cement work

Member Elgin Lodge, No L O OF and Grace Metho
d'st Chureh
Married. 1881, Rut ‘un Sutherland, Le ds, England

There Ix one son in the family
Hes'dence 87 Malakoff street

HENEY LINDOP, Jr,

Hullder nnd Contractor

Born, St Thomas, Scptember 25th, 1886, son of Henry
and Maria Lindop, of St Thomas Educated in the loeal
schools, St. Thomoss Collegiate Institute and St Thomas

Business College Engaged in the lumber business with
father, 1905, as Junior member of the firm of H. Lindop &
Co., with headquarters at 60 Moore street For nine years
past he has taken an active part in the operations of the
concern which has constructed many of the most notable
buildings in the city, such as Alma College, Post Office, Dowler
Bloek, 8t. Johns Church and hundreds of others

He is unmarried; member of Trinity chureh

Residence: 78 8t George street

ARTHUR RICHARD SANDERS

NHullder and Contractor

Born in 8t. Thomas, November 23rd, 1879; son of Richard
and Eleanor Sanders, of 8t. Thomas. Educated in the publie
schools and Collegiate Institute, Entered the employ of Hawes
& Sanders, in 1908, as bookkeeper, remaining with them until
early in 1900 when he entered the serviee of the Imperiai
Bank of Canada. The greater portion of the eight years of
his time with the latter institution was spent in Winnipeg and
Regina,  During June, 1908, Mr. Sanders joined his father
in the building and contracting business in 8t. Thomas, and
in February, 1908, when the business was reorganized, he
became secretary and treasurer of the new firm of Sanders
& Bell, Limited

He is a member of Knights of Pythias, Granite Curling
Club, and member of Knox church

He married, in 1907, Miss Anne Woodward, of Vancouver
There Is cne daughter in the family

Residence: 66 Metealfe street

FRANK LITTLE
Nullder

Born Marea 10th, 1879, in Mosa township, Middlesex
county. Son of David and Katherine Little. He was educated
in the publie schools and lived on the farm until the age of
twenty-three. In 1902 he entered the service of the M.C.R.R
at St Thomas, working as a car-builder for four years after
which he spent several months as fireman.  In 1906 engaged
in the brick manufacturing, contracting and building husiness
which he is still successfully conductin He numbers the
Yarmouth Heights school and many § Thomas bulldings
among his past work

Member of the Methodist church and 1. 0. 0. F

Married, February, 15899, Miss Hertha Wride, of Shedden
v are five children in the family, (two by a previous mar
three sons and two daughters

Residence: 7 Balfour street

CHARLES STEWART BUTLER

Merchant

Born in 8t Thomas, September 9th, 1874; son of Patriek
and Margaret (Clarke) Butler, of a family which dates back
to the very earliest history of the eity Educated in the
Separate school and 8t. Thomas Collegiate Institute; began
his business « er as junior in the offces of the old St
Thomas Car Wheel Company, Ltd 1880, remaining with
this company until 1902, during which time he held respon
sihle positions at their various plants in Hamilton, Montreal
Buffalo, N.Y Ramapo, N.Y and Boston, Mass Resigned
from the ahove company in 1902 to enter the firm of E )
Butler, with whom he is now associated

Married, October 3rd, 1903, Miss Irene Janet MacKenzie,
of 8t Thomas There is one son, Stephen MacKenzie Butler
bhorn August 9th, 1913

Residence: 1 outhwick street

GEORGE W
Mere

AM MG
ut

Born in St Thomas, June Hth, 1960, son of John and
Enina sidgley: s father was the oldest merchant in St
Fhomas at the tme of his retirement from business and has
hd one of the most interesting public careers in the history ot
the eity Educated in the Central school, Welllngton street
ind at the age of sixteen entered the employ of his father
n the or.ginal store at 201 Talbot street At the time of the
estabisument of the east end store (now George W. Midgley,)
¢ continued his connection there until the retirement of his
father, when he took the business over himsell as proprietor
and has s nee conducted it It ranks as the oldest business
St Thomas being established in 1862 and continuously con
ducted since

Member since 1885 of Court Elgin, A. O. F., and of Trinity
church

Married, 1901, Miss Wilhelmina Howard, of Niagara on
the Lake

Residence

16 Hineks street
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WILLIAM A, MCINTYRE
Merchant

Born in Yarmouth township, February 16th, 1885; son of
the late A. J. Melntyre, of Elgin county, Educated in the
public schools and has had a varied business experience,
spent three years on the editorial staff of The Journal; three
years on the clerical staff of the customs department; entered
the employ of F. M, Griffin in 1912 and in the fall of that year,
upon the reorganization of the company, became secretary and
treasurer of Frank M. Griffin, Co., Ltd,, which position he now
holds

He is secretary-treasurer of the St. Thomas board of
trade; secretary of the Canadian Club: prelate of the K. of P.;
secretary of the Fleur de Lis Club; a member of No. 44, A, F
& A M., and of Alma Street Presbyterian Chureh

Residence 37 Inkerman street

FRANK J. MOORE,
Conl Merchant

Born in St. Thomas, October, 1866; son of Thomas and
Mary (Kildea) Moore Educated in the local public schools
and at the age of 16 started to learn the trade of moulder
with the firm of Haggart and Cochrane in St. Thomas where he
was employed for five years. In 1887 Mr. Moore entered the
service of the M. €. R, spending four years as a fireman and
fourteen years as an engineer, In 1905 he purchased the coal
and wood business from Mr. Frank Ferguson which was es
tablished in 1882,  This business Mr. Moore still conducts
at 14 Hincks street

He is a member of the Catholic church and the Knights
of Columbus

Married, in 1904, Miss Julia Coughlin, of Glanworth,
Ont.  There are two sons and three daughters in the family

Residence: 124 Centre street

PHILIP R, WILLIAMS

nernl Director

»

Born at Penzance, Cornwall, England, May 27th, 18562,
son of Richard and Mary (Reeves) Willlams, Educated in
the public schools of Penzance and came to Canada at the
age of twenty, settling in St. Thomas, Mr. Willlams was em
ployed in the car department of the M.C.R. for six years and
was with Joseph Strong, undertaker of 8t. Thomas, for fifteen
years. In 1883 he established his present undertaking business
on Talbot street and in 1906 built and removed to his present
nandsomely appointed building at 519-521 Talbot street where,
with his son, E. C. Willlams, he conducts the firm of P. R
Willlams & Son

Member A. F. & A, M.: St. David's No. 302; Palestine
Chapter: Knights Templars; Burleigh Preceptory; Mocha
Temple: A, O.F.; L OO F; na Rebeeca; L, O. L. O E 8.
Alma Street Church: Ontario Embalmers' Asso'n, and holds
license 307

7 from Ontario government

Married, 1871, in St. Michael's Chureh, Miss Mary James
of Helston. There are two sons: A, R, of 8t. Thomas and
E. (., of 8t. Thomas
518 Talbot street

Residence

WILLIAM VAIR
Merchant

Born in 1869 at Brantford, son of George and Margaret
Vair. Educated at the Newport, Ont.. public school und the
Brantford Colleglate Institute.  After leaving school, assisted
parents on farm for three years At age of 21 he secured
employment in the G. T. R. car shops at Hrantford Eighteen
months later he left for New York City and was there for six
years engaged in the manufacture of mirrors.  In 1896 went
to Glencoe, Ont., and until 1904 was engaged in the bakery
and confectionery business with J. A, McLachlin Leaving
Glencoe he came to 8t Thomas and purchased the bakery of
J. W, Shelley which he disposed of three years later and
entered into a partnership with J. Rowland Balkwill, first in
the making of bread and later in the exclusive manufacture
of lee cream and candy This firm today has the largest
wholesale ice eream trade in Western Ontario.  Candy is made
and retalled during the winter months only

Mr. Vair was first married in (883 to Miss M. Hollings
head, of Dutton, who died six years ufter marriage. His pres
ent wife was formerly Miss Edith A, Topping, of Galt. There
are five children in the family, three boys and two girls

Member of Knox Preshyterian church

Residence: 77 Hlawatha street

MAURICE SCARROW.
Merchant

Born March $th, 1855; son of John and Julia Scarrow, of
London, Ont. Received his education in the local schools and
at the age of 16 started to learn the harness-making business
in his native city In 1885 he purchased the business and
conducted it for 23 years. As a good citizen, Mr. Scarrow
has given of h's time to the public, serving 6 years as a city
a!derman in London. In 1308 he sold his business and re-
moved to 8t. Thomas, establishing his present coal and wood
business on Rallway street,

He is a Past Master of St. George No. 42, A. F. & A. M.;
Past District Deputy High Chief Rang . 0. F.; Past Chief
Ranger, A, 0. F., and a member of the Methodist church.

Married, 1881, Miss Bred.n, daughter of the late Robert
Bredin, of 8t. Thomas. There are two sons and one daughter
in the family

Residence

62 Hincks street

Born in Cobourg, Ont., January 21st, 1863; son of Jabez
and Mary Ann Cook Educated in the public schools and,
like many of his fellow-townsmen, spent his early life on the
farm, being located in Dawn township in the farming and
lumbering business until 1893, Removed to 8t. Thomas and
opened his barbering establishment in the west end of the city
in 1894; removed to his present location in the Grand Central
Hotel, 1903; built his handsome residence on East street, 1903

Member the LO.OF.; WO W.; A F. & A, M.; Past Mas-
ter St. David's Lodge, No. 302, mcmber Edna Rebecca and
Fastern Star

Residence: 24 East street

J. ROWLAND BALKWILL
Merchant

Born in 1860 at Exeter, Huron county, Ontario; son ol
Jumes and Clara Balkwill

Mr. Balkwill when but a young man learned the tinsmith
ing trade with Wm. Risdon, of Fingal, and later of St
Thomas. At the expiration of his wpprenticeship he worked
a short time in Glencoe, then went to Dutton and with his
brother Willlam, purchased the tinsmithing shops of A, Gow
Wallacetown, and J. MeCallum, Dutton. Disposed of his
interest five years later and went to Chicago where for years
he was engaged in specialty work He then sold gas stoves
out of Detroit for one year, removing from there to Glencoe,
Ont., in 1896, where for the next seven years he was engaged
at his trade. Came to 8t Thomas in 1903 and was employed
with the Erie Iron Works Co. for four years. In 1907 he
entered into partnership with William Vair, the firm conduct
ing a bakery for two years on Hiawatha street, opposite The
Journal building.  In 1909 the firm moved to their present
premises, Talbot street, and engaged in the wholesale
manufacture of ice cream and r, candy

Mr. Balkwill in religion is a Methodist
Elgin lodge, No. b LOOF

Married in 1905 to Elizabeth M. Nelles, of Melbourne,
who died one year after marriage

Member of

ILLE JAMIESON
Nuent, N0,

Born at Peterborough, November 20, 1885; received s
education in the public and high schools the: At the age of
thirteen entered the office of the G. N. W, Telegraph Company
and there he became a proficient operator; in 1903 he was
offered and accepted a position with the C. P, R, at Windsor
where he remained until 1905, when he severed his connection
with that ¢ any 1o accept a more remunerative one with the
Western Union Company in various United States cities. He
served as chief clerk for €. P. R, at Peterborough 1908-13;
came to St Thomas, June, 1913, as manager of the city
ticket offices, C, P. R, which position he still holds, Mr. Jau.e
son has been stationed at various times at Ch.cago, St. Paul
Seattle, San Francisco, Wagonmound, N. M., New Orleans
mple, Texas, Detroit, Peterborough and 8t. Thomas

Member Chiureh of England
Married, August 9, 1913, Miss Gladys M. Roy, of Peter
borough.  There Is one daughter in the family

Residence: 20 Mitehell street
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DANIEL MeGREGOR NTH
Munnger, Well

Telephone o

Born at Port Perry, Ontario county, Ontar
1870; son of John A. of Scotland and muen (M. gOr) Surs
ng. Educated in the public schouis of Lunomas, Collegiate
institute and St. Thomas Business Conege e Was employed
py W. H. Murch in the booK business lor (iree years and
entered the service of the Tewphone Company as night opera-
tor i 18%0 During his tweniy-tour years connect,on with
the company, Mr. Suriing has hed practically all the positions
in the operating department and was appointed local manager
July 1st, 1895, During his tenure of office the number of
subscribers has increased over eight times and underground
conduit systems have been installed the entire length of Talbot
street

Master of No, 44, A F. & A M. and Palestine Chapter R
A. M.; director of the Y. M. C. A only member 12 Elgin coun
ty of the Telephone Ploneers of America, and a wember of
Knox Church

Married, September 17th, 1904, Miss Charlotie Adcock,
daughter of George Adcock of St. Thomas There are two
sons

Residence 356 Metcalfe street

, July 30th,

WILLIAM CAMPBELL M
Mannger, M. W,

Born Lucknow, Ont, 1867, Son of Thomas and Alex
andria Meclver, of Lucknow Received his education in the
public schools and entered the catering business al an ear
age

s manager of the London Club, he spent four yea~s at
London. Ontario From 1901 to 1905 he was the manager
for the Franke Catering Co., with the Detroit-Belle Isle and
Windsor Ferry Co.  He resigned this position in 1905 1o T
the service of the Michigan Central as manager of the dining
hall at 8t. Thomas which position he still holds

He moved to St. Thomas with his family in 1905 and
purchased his present residence at 80 Elg'n street in 1912

Member Burlelgh Preceptory, K. T M. Palestine Chapler
No. b, R.AM nd 8t. Thomas lodge, No. 44, A F & A M
urd of the Shriy

Married, 1891, Miss Jean MeKenie, of T
One daughter

Residence SO Elgin street

swater. Family

CLALDE W, WARD

Mannger, ¢ nnndinn- \meriean Kapress \gene)

Born, September 9, 1884, in !
England K Cheltenham
Gloucester county; graduated in 1591 and was clerk in the
London stock exchange until 1905, in which year he came to
St. Thomas

town of |
cated at the Dean Closed Colleg

Kent county

Engaged in farmng with his father near St
Thomas for three years and then entersd the employ of the
Canadian-American Expre Co, as clerk; promoted to cashier
of the Niagara Falls ) office in 1912 and the following
year receved his appointment as manager of the 8t Thomas
office

Member of the Anglican Chureh

Married in 1914 to Miss Gladys Pavey of 8t Thoma

Residence 1 Centre street

JOUN 1 Mekd

Comme

Auent

Born in KElgin county, 1864; son of Jo
MeKillop

and Elizabeth
Educated in Southwold township schools: entered
at Lawrence Station ISNTI8830 contioned
n that business at Dutton 1589296, at Leamington 15961900
1en

St Thomas in 1900, evidencing faith in the future
of the city by building his own store at 4 Talbot which he
conducted until 1905 and by further purchase of Talbot street

business property in 1914 at the present time associaced with
the Municipal World, Ltd, publishers During the past ten
years Mr. McKillop has traveled continuously over Canada
from Montreal to Edmonton, an s gained an intimate

knowledge of Canada at first hand

Member of K. of PL A F & A M and adherent of Knox
Church

Married, 1585, Miss Ella Jones, of Southwold There are
three sons: Clarence, a student of Western Medieal College
gus and Russel at home
20 East street

. MACINTYRE BRUCE

Manufacturer nnd Tmpories

Born in Lincoln county, Onwr.o, Feb, 16th, 1876, Son
of the late Thos. Bruce of Fortaisa.e, deotand, who came
(0 Canada in 18564, setthng at Ham, , unt, and lva Shep
pard, daughter of the late rewr sueppard of near Beamsvilie
ond niece of the late Cuione: holinge O Lhe same place, who
was widely Known i eaiy Wiy aliairs in the Niagara dis
triet Educated in the pubne scooms of Wellington county
and the Harrswon Coner ate Insotute; removed with s par
ents al an earty age to welhington county where ne Lve d on wue
Garmn until 1555; engaked in mechanical ana ediurniar Wors
with the Harriston Tribune 3ol to 1894 spent severa: years
in newspaper work with the Orila Packed, OFia, anc ad
(he manager of the Tuobury News, Fiibury, tor three years;
wis for about Lreen years manuacr OF aaverusing and sales
department of A. Tabot & Co, Fuousiners, of London, Ont
traveling from Windsor to Sidney, naving a wide connection
with newspaper men, manufacturers and the larger retallers
throughout the Dominion; 1911 organ.zed in Hamilton, Ont,,
a company to manufacture an improvement of the telephone
service for use throughout Canada and the United States, After
its completion in 1914 Mr. Bruce made use of his wide con
nection throughout the Dominion, and entered into the whole
aling and importing of waterproof clothing, umbrellas, and
other specialties to the drygoods and clothing trade, having
liis headquarters in the Hamilton & Stott building, St. Thomas

Is an adherent of the Anglican Church, and member of
the Masonie Order

Married, in 1900, Miss Bertha Scarff, daughter of the late
Geo, Searff (who was for years city treasurer of 8t. Thomas,)
and sister of F. M. Scarfl, manager of the Merchants Bank

Windsor. There Is one daughter, Miss Norma, now twelve
years of age
Residence: 76 Metealfe street
G ANBERSON

v Flovr Denler

Born in Lincoln county, Ontario, near Oid Niagara, in
1861, son of J ph and Maria (Lawrence) Anderson. Edu
cated In schools of Oxford county; spent early years on the
farm, coming to St. Thomas in 1879 to engage in commercial
Iife In 1896 Joined the Oriental Flour Co. and in 1905
became president of the Company, which position he still
retains The gre part of Mr Anderson’s commercial
activity has been spent in representing his institution through
it the country, and his yearly travels have taken him to
practically every place of importance in Ontario and Eastern
Canada

Mr. Anderson has taken an active interest in the work
of the Y. M C. A, and the campaign which resulted in the
rulsing of some $70,000 for the fine, new building erected
this year. was planned and carried out during his term as
president of the association,

Member of First Methodist Church
Married, in I87T9 Margaret A, Davis of 8t. Thomas

Residence W Sonthwick street

tGron

L ULOON
Nrewer

Born, January 13th, 1869 son of Christinn and Elizabeth
Cloos, of Wezlar many Educated in his native eity an/
came to the United States in 1885 in charge of the Electrical
Department of the Papst Brewing (o, of Milwaukee. During
his ffteen years' connect'on with this company he was con
nected with the cirical and sales departments, belng sta
Honed, as manager. in Buffalo, N Y, during the Pan-American
Exposition.  He entered the service of the Iroquois Brewing
Co. of Buffalo in 1903, spending nine years as their general
traveling representative, ard two years as manager of the
bottling department He came to 8t Thomas in May, 1914
taking the presidency of the Rudolph & Hegg Brewing Co. (a
coneern established here over sixty years ago), and Is now
ngaged in placing that business upon an up-to-date basis

He is a eharter member of the Lafayette Masonic Lodge
f Milwaukee

Married, in 1902, Miss Anna Wolff, of Milwaukee. There
are in the family (hy a previous marriage) two sons and one
langhter

Restidence: 101 Gravel Road,

|
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WILLIAM MAITLAND KETCHABAW
Pollee Sergen

Born in Bayham, Ontarlo, 1877; son of Lewis Ketchabaw,
M Maple Grove. Educated in the Maple Grove school of Bay
ham and lived on the farm with his parents until coming to
St. Thomas in November, 1901, He en pd the employ of the
Canadian Iron Corporation, where he remained for two years;
Joined the 8t. Thomas police force in June, 1903, was promoted
to sergeant November, 1905, which rank he now holds
Member the Baptist Church: Elgin Lodge, No. 32,
0. F.; Canadian Home Cirele, and Loyal Order of Moos
Married, 18 Miss Annle Maud, daughter of George
Buchner, of Fden. There is one son and one daughter in the
family
Residence: 93 Curtis street

1O

ALEXANDER €. HENDERSON
Fire Chiet

Horn in Brantford, Ont., 1852, son of Alexander and
Elizabeth  (Mitehell) Henderson Removed o 8t Thomas
with his parents in 1854 and was educated in the local publie
schools.  Entered the employ of his father for ten years before
engaging in business for himself as o manufacturer of soda
water, an enterprise which he conducted for twenty years. He
spent several years in British Columbia and returned to 8t
Thomas at the time of rece.ving his present appointment. Mr
Henderson has been connected with the local Fire Department
for forty-seven years, be ng chief for four years of the volun-
teer department when a hand engine was used: chief for
eight years of the partially paid department, and his present
appointment, June 15th, 1889, succeeding Alonzo Bowlby as
chief of the present department

Member 1. O. O F

Married, 1874, Miss Margaret MeCluskey, of Kent county
There is 1 son and 3 danghters the family

Residence: 61 Hiawatha street

FREDERICK €, KILLINGSWORTH
U ndertnker

Mr. Killingsworth was born in 8t. Thomas in 1888, He
is the son of Richard and Elizabeth Killingsworth Hox
education was received in the St. Thomas public schools and
in the Collegiate Institute

Upon entering busness life in 1905 Mr. Killingsworth
engaged in partnership with his brother, E. €. Killingsworth
in the upholstering business. The brothers met with particu
lar sueccess and during the nine years of activity Mr, Killings
worth has made a distinet place for himself in the business
life of the eity Recently an undertaking department was
added to the business and they are now conduciing an efficient
and up-to-date service in this branch

Unmarried: member of K. of ¢

Address 763 Talbot stree

K. B SHENEREL
Osteapnth

Born in Roekhill Furnace, Pa., June 18th, 1890; son
of George W and Jennie Shenefelt.  Educated in the public
schools of Piteairn, Penn.; the rnegle Technical Institute
of Pittshurg, and the American School of Osteopathy. at Kirk
ville, Mo, taking his degree from the latter institution. June
1914 As o doctor seeking a fertile fiedd for this rap'dly In
creasing school of therapeuties. Dr. Shenefelt saw pone that
offered the exceptional opportunities of 8t. Thomas  Establish
ed his practice, 1914, and is rapidly advancing In his chosen
work

Member the A O U W und Ontario Osteopathy Associa

tion
Address: 127 Talbot street

Horn In Oxford county, Ont, 1888 son of P F. and
Jennie E. MeDona'd, of Kintore, Ont. His early life was spent
on the farm and his edueation received in the public schools
Bt Marys Colleginte Institute, 8t. Marys, Ont, and the Palmer
Chiropractic College, of Davenport, lowa, taking his degree
1 the latter lustitution in 1912 Immediately thereafter
he instituted his practice in 8t Thomas and has bullt up a
consl able reputation in his el field

Address: 630 Talbot street

IMEW H. MILLER

hysicinn and Surgeon

HBorn in Yarmouth, Elgin County, Ont,, in 1848, Son of
Andrew Miller and grandson of one of the first settlers of St
Thomas. Grandfather owncd 200 acres, now the heart of
the eity, and formerly known as Millersburg

Educated and taught in public and Normal Schools
Graduated from Toronto Normal School and received his
degree from Trinity Medical Coilege in 1877

Dr. Milles began the practise of his profession in New
Dundee, Waterloo County, Ont., where, after 18 years of
marked success, he gold his practise and returned to the old
homestead, where in 1895 he built his present residence

In 1883 married Miss Moriey, daughter of Michael Mor
ley, treasurer of Wilmont Tow.ship. One daughter

Member the 1. 0. O. F

Is & generul practitioner.  Lives a retired and private life
and enjoys the esteem and goodwill of his fellow citizens to o
marked extent

Born, October 17th, 18 at Galt, Ont.; son of James and
Elizabeth Armstrong. Removed at an early age to Plattsville
Oxford county, and received his education in the public schoo)
of that town. Mr. Armstrong learned the chairmakers' trade
and spent fifteen years in Plattsville in this business. He
removed to St. Thomas, November, 1888, engaging in the
nursery business until 1894 when he took over the Interna
tional Hotel, In 1897 he leased the Grand Union Hotel and
conducted it for sixteen years, and in 1912 purchased the old
Wilcox property, at Ross and Talbot streets, remodelling it
as the Hotel Empire, one of the most up-to-date commereial
houses In Western Ontario

Mr. Armstrong married, in 1882, M.ss Eleanor Foster, of
Blenheim township. There are two daughbters and two sons
in the family, the eldest, J.. Is Junior member of the firm ot
R. G. Armstrong & Son, wprietors of the Hotel Empire

Member of the AO.U W, AOF. and Sons of Scotland

603 Talbot street

Res dence: &
HENRY H. EVELY
Veterinnry Surgeon
Born in Jersey City, Isle of Jersey, 18563, son of Willlam
and Grace Evely., Educated in Toronto schools and Ontario
Vetermary College, taking his degree in 1874 Hewoved o
St. Thomas and instituted his practice in 1874, shortly before
the death of his father, who was the oldest veterinary in
Ontario, having practiced sin 1867 Dr. Evey is the oldest
man of his profession in the eity and upwards of fifty students
have graduated from his preceptorship
Member A. F. & A M. and W. O W
Married, 1879, Miss Louise Haight, of Yarmouth. There
» one son, Charles Claude, now practicing in Edmonton
Residence: 35 Willlam street

GEORGE A, MeCALL
Hotelheeper

Born, 1864, at Union, Ontario; son of Nelson 8. and Cath
arine (Ketchum) MeCall,  Educated at the Union and Port
Stanley public schools Mr. MeCall Is one of the best known
and exper’enced hotel men in the Provinee, having been
brought up in the business w'th his futher, who conducted
hotels at Union, Port Stanley, Sparta, 8t. Thomas and Fingal
Upon the death of his tacher at Fingal in 1888, Mr. MeCall
continued in the hotel there until 1905, when he purchased
the Queen’s, which has a ve large commercial patronage
in 1913 he remodeled it nside at an expense of $10,00C, mak
ing it one of the finest hotels in Western Ontario

Mr. MeCall # keen sportsman, horse racing, shooting
and curling be ng his hobbles. Has trained and marked some
of the fastest horses in the stable of Miss K. L. Wilks, the cele
brated horsewoman of Galt Also owns three fast ones, Or
ganized the Elgin Driving Association six yeurs ago and for
five years filled the offies «  Lecretary, and now serves as 4
d'rector Elected pres 0 in 1914 of the Canadian and
Natlenual Trott'ng and ing Assoc'ation, which makes the
rules and directs the meets throuchout Canada  Director of
the Standard Hred Assoclation.  Mr. MeCall s an excellent
shot and has taken part in shoot'ng tournaments throughou
the Dom'nion for the past thirty years. Has been an ardent
curler since 1905 and in 1906 was the winner of a medal o
the Colts League of Western Ontario

Married, in 1893, Anna Hockin, of |
two girls in the family
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A Retrospect of St

the year 1870 still retained mueh of

that are noticeable n

from the great centres of commerce

ates less than a hundred yeurs from
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rue, it had a

Metcalle Street )
Metcalfe Str

Wellington Stre
Pearl Stree

Ihomas' Early Days

clalmed a superiority that is assoclated only with the peopie
of high degree
Topography of the Town.
At this date, 1870, the town nestled on the hill above
Kettle Creek. Many of the houses were supported on long

Rosebery Place
Wellington Stree

3 St George Street, 4
Wellington Street, 8

piles which were
decayed, and en
dangered the
safety of the i
mates and build
Ings No on
ideration was
given to the fact
that
plenty
land east of Wil
Ham

there was

level
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h
the people was
that it was their
duty to keep as
far west as poss!
ble, probably
thinking that as
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sun ther lessen

«d thelr chances
for happiness in
the world to
come. True, the
town was horn at
the foot of the
Fingal hill, and
had partially
moved to the top
but It was not
done without bit
terness. When
the new St. An
drew's market
a=d the town hall
were established
on Stanley street

'
the opposition

O Metcalle Street. 10 Metcalfe Stre

v vilege t that early day
trunk acd sleeping it off under his table, in his log the site was terrific an much animosity among the
Therefor hey thelr own estimation, were better nhabitants Those in toe hollow had vested rights which
common herd and put on airs befitting their exalted  those on the hill ought to respec There was a splendid
At the Colonel's bidding they had hunted rebel agricultural distriet contributory to the town, and when the
and hunted them hike wild beasts through the forests.  farms were made productive business with the town inereased
nd the home Quakers, and peaceful  and made a demand for more business places, These were
and helped themselves to what they could carry away  erected in the vielnity of Stanley street, and farther west, and
ame of the King and Colonel Talbot.  They had uph at a later date bold men ventured to invest thelr money as
ht arm of the family compaet with as much enthusiasm  far east as Metealfe street. but their folly In going so far
lue bloods of muddy Little York itself.  While they toward the rising sun was soon demonstrated, for the business
tinctured with provinclalism and carrled the birth-  on account of public sentiment, would not be moved that far

people were proud of the origin of the town, and  and their ventures were unprofitable

m———
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“The Lunatic Who Built a Brick Block in the Woods"

There are those living who remember when the late
James McAdam built a grocery store on the corner of St
George and Talbot streets, that his sanity was called in
question for selecting a business site so far east. The Post
Office through the Ermatinger influence had been pulled to
the corner of Cnureh and Talbot streets, where the Erie Iron
Works are now located, and the banks were all west of Pearl
itre was between Queen and

stre I'he great business ¢
Pearl strects, and some stores in the vicinity of Stanley street

were held at a wwousand dollars a year rental. The market
did not extend to William street,
Lisgar and Hutehinson houses were all west of Stanley street
The Episcopal and the Methodist churches were in the west
end, while the Cathone and the Preshyterian churches were
In the case of

and the leading hotels, the

located in the eastern outskirts of the town
the latter it was not considered necessary to locate them in
the town as most of the members of these churches resided
in the townships

In Search of the Great Carbuncle,
when

This Is a general deseription of the town in 187
da

the work was commenced on the construction of the Ca
Southern and the Air Line railroads, and which brought
thousands of peopie to town in search of the great carbuncle
They were the same class of people that Hawthorne brought
together in the Crystal Hills as related in his “Twice-Told
Tales.” They had come from all parts of Canada, United
and Geeat Britain in search of personal galr They

State
were bright, sturdy, ambitious mechanics, who hoped to rise

to important and lucrative positions in the shops of the new
rallroad; there were restless farmers’ sons who thought a
railroad job would bhe more congenial than ploughing the
telds of the old homestead. there were merchants who
anticipated good business prospects in the rising town, and
here and there among all classes was the caleulating speculator
who had an eye to the main chance to make money out ol
the general prosperity Most of them found what they were
searching for, and the beautiful city is evidence of the faet
There was no accommodation in the town for the crowd. The
writer knows this from personal ex ing
looked from six o'clock in the afternoon till midnight he was

rience, for, after

forced to sleep the balance of the night in a shed, on a board
under a boiler, whose heat kept him from freezing sSome
walked the streets all night to keep warm, though they had
money pay and were willing to pay for lodgings Accom-

modation had to be provided for these people Houses sprung

for those who

up by the dozens, and in locations conveni
were to live in them Millershurg, which was a farming
section, grew up like the gourd in a day, and soon Fad more
inhabitants than the old town. Then the section of land lying
between Millershurg and St. Thomas began to fill up, and in

n few years

ts population, and that of Millershurg reached
the ten thousand mark

Business places were established in the loeality where
Grocery stores sprang up in localities
where cows had pastured only two years befor John K
Smith built bhlock of st hetween John street and the
Port Stanley rallway tracks
street in Millershurg.  The Moore bhlock at the tannery was
n the Port Stanley rallway and

the people resided

il here and there on Talbot

the only brick building hetw
Metealfe street until Frank Hunt huilt the Hunt block now
known as Oak Hall, in 1882, For erecting this he was dubbed
Toward

“the lunatiec who built the brick block in the woods
the end of the seventies 8t Thomas thought it would be for
the interests of the town to take in Millersburg, hut not in
such a way as would give the old town control of the council

Continued

This was done atter much fine work, and Millersburg became
a part of 8t. Thomas, but on condition that Millersburg should
not be responsible for, nor pay any portion of 8t. Thomas' debt
very large in proportion to its ascessment and can
in previous

which wa
very near bringing the town to the suction block
Years This necessitated two rates on the tax roll: one for
Miliersburg and one St. Thomas, and this continued until
the eity was incorporated The city was divided into six
wards; three in the west end and three in the east end. This

worked out eventually in giving the mayor greal power, in
fact ne bhecame IT in the government of the city, as will he

Representation by population, in fact

apparent further on
the democratic principle was totally ignored in the formation
of wards. St. Andrew’s, or No. | ward, was given the same
representation in the council as No. 5, which had five-fold
more population and wealth. The same may be said of the
conditions in other wards east and west, though to a less
extent
The Fight For a Central Market

The public market has always been a prominent institution
among old country people and Canadians. It has always been
the custom to resort to it for vegetables, butter and eggs, and
other small produce of the farm and garden. It had always

bheen, and is now, the custom of farmers to go on the market t
dispose of their products. The situation of St. Andrew's
market, in the extreme west end of the city, was very incon
venient for the wives of mechanies who must necessarily do
ount of the great distance they had to
Hence, arose a demand for a centra

the marketing, on ac
travel to reach it
market.  The answer ol the west end was “the market was
established before you came here, we have a vested right to
retain the market where it is, and our right must be recognized
and respected, and the .warket must remain where it is’
Then commenced a8 bitter and as long a fight as was

ever witnessed

noany municipality

There were some few men in the west end with foresight
who saw, In their own interests that some changes ought to
be made in the market site.  Among them was the late James
H. Still, who, at a meeting held by west end property owners
1o isider the subject, at the commencement of the agitation
proposed that the block on the north side of Talbot street
n Pearl and East str
The
time, and it could have be

*ts. be purchascd for a market
bulldings on the bloeh at that
en secured at a very small figure

hetwe

site were no valuable

His scheme was rejected with scorn by a large majority It

probable that if Mr. Still's scheme had been adopted the
n settled forever. The battle
numerous meetings were held in the eity hall and

market question would have he

waxed hot
many hard things were sald on both s'de One prominenst
west end man used the epithet “east end paupers” to the
central market people at one meeting, which nearly caused

|

riot Another sald the “newcomers had no rights which the |

old residents were hound to respect The east end retorted
by calling the west enders “back numbers, aristocrats, bhlue
Owing to the ward
representation in the councell, the old residents were able o

beards,” and other opprobrious epithets
block the scheme by electing a mayor favorable to their views
All the tricks known in politie
PUrpose They were assisted in this by the late Edward

| warfare were used for this

Horton, who owned a block of land in the east end, and who
arket on Manit
the opposition of the west end of the

established the Horton hi street in spite of

ity Of course, |1 wa
to his interests

i to the interests of those who had Invested
In property near him. to join hands with all foes of & contral
market, and he became the strong ally of his ersiwhile

enemies.  The chosen site for the proposed market, by thos
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“The Lunatic Who Built a Brick

who favored a central market, was the block on which the
Post Office is now located. This block was never submitted
to the people, because those opposed to it were able to block
the bylaw in the council. Then came a change of tactics. The
council voted to accept the Horton market as a eity market
and voted large sums to put it in snape.  But in spite of this
move the fight waxed hot and something had to be done
The council put up the Jackson block, on the south side
of Talbot, between Elgin and Hincks streets, for a1 central
market site. vut it developed afterwards that it wus put up
only to be knocked down, and knocked down it was hy its
quondam friends. After this a syndicate was formed to buy
the block east of the post office, and present a market site
with suitable buildings and all other necessary equipment to

The scheme war to reserve one hundred

the eity free of cost
feet on Talbot street tor stores, except a wide entrance which
was to lead to the market, and to extend the market north
of Curtis street one hurdred and twenty feet, It was thought
better not to make a break on Talbot street of a whole block
and that a market site with a street running through the
centre of it would be more desirable in every way. This
scheme was turned down, principally because it would fulfill
all requirements. The argument used against it was, that
speculators were at the bottom of it to make money, but the
real objection by its opponents was they did not want a central
market at all, and especlally on the site so well adapted for
the purpose. The Moore block farther east was also proposed
as a site, but it was objected to on account of the large
expenditure It would require to put it in shape In the
meantime the people of the west end put up the money, and
extended the market through to Willlam street.  The result
of this move proved a bitter experience to the property holders
between Willlam and Stanley street who were large subseribers
to the fund to purchase the land, for from the day the entrance
was made to the market from Willlam street, their Lusiness
was ruined, and their property depreciated in value They
This fight for a central
market culminated in 1883 In January of that year Dr

had paid for rope to hang themselves

Gustin and Frank Hunt were the candidates for the mayoralty
Mr. Hunt had been a prominent member of the counell for
several years, and chairman of several of its important
committees Dr. Gustin had never served in a municipal
council. He was a prominent physiclan, a popular citizen and
surgeon of the Great Western Rallway Company where Mr

Hunt expec ive solid support It was one of the

hottest contests ever known in the eity The west end

considered it a question of the destruetion of thelr property
and went into the contest with their brains and money.  Some
queer things happened. There was a provinclal eleetion on at
the time, and leading re‘ormers, some of whom are now alive

attended the Conservative club rooms night after night to

work against Hunt.  They did not heed the warning of
Sheppard, that If they beat Hunt, they would bheat Nairn
Sheppard was right
and Ermatinger won over Nairn by the same majority that

Hunt was beaten by his political friends

Gustin won over Hunt

Hunt, in a public meeting, at which large numbers of
west end property holders were present, sald that if he were
elected mayor he would establish a central market in o loeation
which would not hurt the value of west end property, but if
they defeated h'm he would live to see the day in which their
bulldings wou'd not sell for what the brick cost, and see
them In poverty He was hooted for being a false prophet
Was he?

The scenes in the council chamber that year were the

most disgraceful ever witnessed in any assembly. Vituperation

Block in the Woods" - Continned

and pugnacity were about the only qualities displayed. The
east enders would berate the mayor, who had the casting
vote, the mayor would talk over the heads of the aldermen to
the hooting, yelling crowd, which was present at every
meeting. When a vote was likely, either the six east end or
the six west end members would make a bolt for the door
and succeed in getting out before Chief Fewings could make
ent their egress. The reporter

a stop-gap of himself to pre
would beat the Salvation Army drums, and blow tho bugles
which were left on the platform by Captain Holloway, Just
for a change of program, and sometimes the cigar makers
would come over from the Farmers' Exchange Hotel and sing
ballads while the turmoil continued

One result of the disorder was that the police and others
in the service of the city had no pay day for several months
and would probably have got none during the year but for a
compromize It was agreed that no business be done but
s accounts, and the cmp'oyes of the city were made happy
With the close of that couneil, the central market question
was relegated to the limbo of the past, and both markets were

put in shape to accommodate whoever attended them
The Man With t Tongue and Tron Hand,
There can with the engineers to build the Canada
Southern Railway W. E. Idsardl. He was a man of silent
tongue and iron hand He had capital at his disposal to

N

invest, and when he lald by his theodolite and chain for the
day. he looked over the town and selected several pleces of
property, which he purchased

A man of his vision had no need of using a telescope to
see the property which was likely to appreciate most in value
in the city To be sure the property was then out of the
business zone, but knowing that water will find its level and
business its convenient centre, he stood hy and wa'ted, He
d all things come to him who
walts.”  He was elected to the eity counell of which he was, on

unt of his ability, a valuable member for several years
He was a strong supporter of the central market while

age, that

feved in the

it was an issue, but it was understood his first choice of a
site was the Moore block At the end of Dr. Gustin's adminis
tration he made known that he had abandoned the central
market scheme and was willing to join hands with anybody
and everybody to advance the general interests of the ety
Many of hix old-time antagonists received him with open arms
and actually made him mayor Mr. ldsardi was not dead, If
he appeared to bhe asleep, as some found out afterwards
when they found the hole they had dropped into. e knew
that there were other ways to build up the centre of the tows

rket  there He went to work 1

ides moving the m
accomplish this, and so quietly that his old-time adversaries
did not see his hand till it was too late.  His first lHeutenant
was Pat. M
Joseph Gritin and Lew Dake were warrant officers un

wn, who commanded the scouts; Ald. Chant
Pat

They dug the trenches and laid the pipes where the silest
man had run the lines

The first move was to get the Post Office bullt as far
east as possible The eust end was full of Tory votes and
deputations walted on Thomas Arkell, M. P, and informed
him in most emphatic terms that the Tory votes in the east
end would go Grit If the post office was loeated west of
The west end Torles wanted it where Dr. Gustin’s
houre now stands, and put up a big fight for that location

Hiawatha

Mr. Arkell was between the devil and the deep sea, and
The stronghold of the west end
was the possession of all the banks

located It where it Is now
HBusiness men in the
vast never stopped telling the banks they must move or los
the bhusiness. They moved

]
l
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“The Lunatic Who Built a Brick Block in the Woods"— Condtnned

v market had beer
flice bloc and ha
entrance on Talbo

post office

Kregate
Buffalo
ntinually

particulur

purchase

tablished one

nanipulat

The old swimming hole, on Kettle Creek, Just shuve where the frst waterworks pumplog plant wos focnted
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The Campaign for the City Hall Site That Won the Battle
for the Eastenders

z VERYTHING that is worth having is worth fighting  midnight night when the moon and stars were curtained by

h for,” was the slogan of the people of the east end of  clouds, they procured a dark lantern acd an auger and bored

St. Thomas when they went after the city hall site. g hole down to the clay or claimed they did. Some were mean

To win a battle there must be strategy. An army seldom  enough to say they procured the clay at a brick yard and

wins without a battle plan and the Generalissimo in this cam lugged it to the site In bags. However the clay was there and
paign drove his stakes, dug his trenches, and protected his  (he west end argument lost its underpinning

flanks. The city comprised six wards, twe.ve aldermen and a A supply of elay being found for a foundation, Lew Dake

mayor when the fight began. The east end wanted a ity  oovon o man the next day to dig a hole four feet square and

hall; the west end opposed it. The ancient relic on the corner erected a sign over {t which sald, “This is the kind of ground

had done serviee for clvie busin

of Stanley str 88 from time bulld the city hall on. Ratepayers come and

we propose t

d enough for the west enders and the

mmemorial and was g

see for yourselves."

new-comers were interlopers who had no business to disturh The next night being Hallowe'en, some west enders
the serenity of the ploneers. secured a private toilet, which had seen long service, and

The first vote taken was to decide if a new city hall was  placed it over Lew Dake's hole on the Idsardl site, and put a
wanted, and the Anderson site was put up and knocked down.  gign on it which read, “Lew Dake's New City Hall." This was
The old west end drew the first blood. Then came an offer  gpe on Lew Dake and he had to take the laugh. This only
of the Idsardi site for a eity hall for the sum of one dollar.  gerved to make the east enders more vigilant and active in the
As It was evident that another vote would be taken the west  pattle, The tollet was removed the next morning, the east

end put up the Ellison site to knock down the Idsardi site and  ¢nd sign once more erected over the hole and a guard placed

succeeded every night to watch the sign and the }

was then that the campalgn of the east-enders wa he day of doom had come for the west enders. The

established on selentific lines.  There was u von Moltke behind o0 gpders had six aldermen and elected Mayor Fred Wright

the scenes condueting the battle who did not show his hand also an east ender, and at the crucial moment Mayor Wright

gave the casting vote to submit a by-law to purchase the

Idsardi site for a city hall |

There was some manoeuvring before this was done A
Mr. Edwards was an alderman for No. 6 ward, and he had
moved to London. The west enders tried to have it declared

that his seat was vacant, but the east enders sent a delegation
to Toronto and on the best legal advice obtainable, established
the fact that Edwards could legally hold his seat to the end of
the year Numerous council meetings were held over the
matter before the final vote to submit the by-law was taken

and Lew Dake went to London and escorted Alderman Edwards

yiuis while the matter

to every council meeting held in 8t. T
was under consideration. There were no chances taken

At last the Idsard! site was got before the electors and
carried by 17 majority. 1t was a great vietory for the east
enders It meant that not only the eity hall was coming to
them, but that the business of the ity was coming also  There
was great rejoicing that night in the east end. The rain came
lown In torrents but it did not dampen the glory of the vietors

The band came out and played its loudest music. Low Dake

1 Mul "~ v " Flah

iy Hall, Nulit tn 190 Atter Lons Fiahe teeling and acting like a congueror, mounted the roof of the

hotel verandah and gave vent to his feelings. The rank and
Club rooms were opened in the Dake House and ward A

" file took lquid refreshments in honor of the vietory visit
workers of both politieal parties here laid the M pes oW
y b iy was made to Mayor Wright's, where a substantial repast was
Dake was commander of the forees in the field and his clerk
served to everybody who came, and the celebration was
Osear Rymph, was installed as secretary of the movement .
L . . brought to a close by singing “God Save the Queen

Dake cireulated a pe 0 to purchase the ldsardi site

Having been beaten at the polls, the west enders tried to

UNISh VA hoW YRINGA B 100, THe il been offered . (he erection of the city hall on the Idsardi site by legs)
10 the eity for ARG ROW I was prop 0 make the o ns.  An Injunction was applied for in the sourts by
city take it and pay a big price for it. - And the city took the o yer David Crothers, acting for west enders. City Sollcitor
ite and pald the priee Doherty appeared for the city and the Injunction was ot
The west end put up a fight in the old-fashioned way, bt granted.  Further legal proceedings were started by Mr
t was out-manoecuvred by modern method It was claimed  Crothers, but on his offering to “pull off”" if the east end
that the Idsardl site was one corner of the old Moore tan  would pay him $200 for his fees and disbursements, the $200
yard, a bog hole where there was no proper foundation o0 came across and the battle ended. The eity pald $6,200 for
which to erect a bullding, and the newspapers were used t t #ite which a few months before had been offered to it for one
Instruet the ratepayers along this line dollar. The star of empire moved east. The west end saw
Something had to be done to counteract this warfare and  when too late, that sometimes it is better to compromise than
Lew Dake, Alderman Patrick Meehan, Oscar Rymph and W. to fight. And through the dust of it all the west ender

Popham and other eastendors, were equal to the occasion. One & glimpse of the hand that pulled the wires

e A S B i
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t. Thomas Manufacturing from the Earliest Days
BY FRANCIS HUNI
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winter useful to tr uch article b and the

Wi nsport as neither he nor business and the name cont nue to this day. George
his beasts could carry on thelr back Hix ox yoke required Wegg & Son is the present name of ths firm, and its estahlish
a staple and ring, which was often dificult to obtain—first ment on Elgin street
from the lack of fron to make it, and secondly from lack of It must he said, after examining the history of the Talbot
money to buy the iron The loom and spinning wheel in the settlement, that the mechanic and the manufacturer did not
corner of the eabin turned out the clothing for each household, flourish here to the same extent other settlements. Col
and the peripatetic cobbler made the b and shoes when Talbot was an unlimited monarch in this district and he
the settler could not make them himselfl, The mill at first  exercised all the power derived from that form of government
was a stone and a hollow stump; afterwards two stones were He seemed to think that agriculture was the one art alone
fitted together and turned by hand needful for human happiness The few articles necessary at
the time for the settler could be
made by himself. For had not the
Colonel made his own furniture, his
own cloth ? And, therefore, every
ett’er could and should do it. Tru

he built a rough grist mill, but it had

e at his ecabin door it wasn't
ecesnary anywhere else He would
it sell a blacksmith a plece of land
n fee simple, on which to erect a
forge at “lIreland Tyrconnel. Some
Americans at an early date tried to

purchase land from Col

Bostwick
of estab

Port Stanley for the purpose

lishing a foundry, but Col. Bostwick

did not, for some reason, grant the

request, and tl foundry was not
built

Col. Talbot had no use for cold

water, nor for anyone who advocated

its use. He denounced the advocates

of temperance and in strongest lan

guage. The bulk of settlers who

looked up to him as a pattern in all

things, sanctioned his views on the

cold water question. In no part of

Canada were distilleries so plentiful

as in the Talbot Settlement, and no

they worked so In

aul & Ketehum had a

at the foot of Kains

thriving busines

whiskey at the rate

for a dollar. There

wias not much ready money in 8t

mas in those days, and payments

re the liquid in grain

X and farm true Henry Van

Husk nducted a distill \

I Tury
\lexander Love, father of Nell
was probably the first man in
Thon luct & manufactur
| an extensive way. He
' net p in the thirtle
As the years went by a Aring \ AR | pl I o larg wmher of
and ttlers beca ' T . ar 1 The § wving cleared
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St. Thomas Manufacturing From the Earliest Days— Continued

articles of the black walnut, & tree abounding here, appeared
to me more beautiful in color and grain than the finest
mahogany, and the elegant veining of the maple wood eannot
be surpassed. | wish they were sufficiently fashionable in
England to make the transport worth while.”

Love, beside the manufacture of furniture, was a bullding
contractor, and erected many of the churches and other
bulldings in the town. He was a man of good parts, and one
of the most respected citizens of Elgin

The first iron foundry in St. Thomas was started by
Elijah Leonard, an Eastern States Yankee, in 1834, near
Turville's old grist mill, on Lettle Creek. His father and Mr
VanBrocklyn became partners in the enterprise. The foundry
a year later was moved to about where St. Andrew’s market
now stands. The rebellion of ‘37 huving broken out shortly
after, the business became a fallure, In “The Talbot Regime,"”
by Judge Ermatinger, is given an account of the troubles
which came to the Leonards, first on account of their nation-
ality, and secondly on account of the difficulty of securing the
raw material necessary to run their establishment. Their
principal output were plows and necessary implements used
in farming. 10 make these required a supply of iron, and
the rources of this supply were few and distant. The most
avallable was the serap iron which accumulated about the
military posts. Mr. Leonard purchased some of this military
“serap” and the result came near being disastrous to him. In
Judge Ermatinger's history the following concerning this raw
material for his foundry is given in an interview hy Mr
Leonard

“One charge against me was lodged by one of my most
intimate friends who laid information with ‘Squire Ermatinger
that 1 had cannon balls on my premises. | was summoned
to appear and made my statement as follows: ‘I had bought
# sloop load of these cannon balls from Capt. Mallory, who
had purchased them at Amherstburg from the condemned
military stores at that point The balls had accvmulated
during the war of 1812

“After hearing me, the magistrate retired To judge
from the length of time they took to decide the case 1 had o
narrow escape from jail ‘Squire Chrysler was favorable to
my discharge and | overheard him say: ‘Let the boy off; he Is
only fulfilling the seripture by beating swords into pruning
hooks, or cannon balls into plow points’ So | war finally
let go. | was using these balls up as fast as | could. They
were hard enough to melt, without being arrested for the
task.’

Mr. Leonard, having been arrested four times was not
satisfied with the brand of encouragement given to manufac
turers in 8t. Thomas ut that date, and moved to London where
he established another foandry, which in time became one of

the largest and most proficable businesses in the provinee, and
which is now conducted Ly his sons.  John Sells, who had an
Interest with MY Leonard In St Thomas, continued the
business a short time, but the building remained until it was
torn down In the construction of the Canada Southern Rallway

The old Red Foundry on the corner of Centre and
Metealfe streets. has been & landmark for half a century It
was flourh hing when St Thomuas was a village; it has grown
with the growth of the eity, and is now an establishment that
any eity might point to with pride. It was founded by John
and William Stacey in 1852 and they had for partners Hiram
Hunt and Wm. B Richardson. A disagreement among the
members in a few years about the management caused a disso
lution and the business was closed out. The firm while It
lasted did a large business In stoves, tinware, plows and farm

implements. At a later date Joseph Stacey and James Tucker
did a large repair business for a short period, and others
conducted it with vary.ng results to the year 1871, forty-three
years agu, when the present firm of C. Norsworthy & Co.
acquired the business. From that time onward the plant has
been enlarged at short periods, and the business extended until
the firne and its output are familiar to the people of the
Dominion, from Halifax in the east to Vancouver in the west
The fir.o made farm implements at first, but this line was
dropped, and it gradually drifted into making various lines of
machinery, such as engines and bollers, handle lathes, water
works supplies, shafts and pulleys, automatic stokers. They
also do heavy forging and make patterns. They do a large
bus.ness In manufacturing machinery from patterns furnished,
and from blue prints. The plant has been greatly enlarged
and improved during the past year, and ranks as one of the
best machine shops in the country. The firm employs 35 men
and pays upwards of $13,000 a year in wages. The business
has been profitable, and its outlook for the future is bright.
The Messrs. Norsworthy are “to the manner horn,” having
been brought up in the business and thoroughly instructed in
all its branches, and at the death of the elder Norsworthy, their
father, & few years ago, took his place in the firm. The latest
addition to the plant is a large department for the manufacture
of furnaces

Probably no business flourished in St. Thomas at an early
period as d'd the tanning of hides. In the middle of the last
century leather manufactories were distributed all over the
province. Though small, many towns derived a great benefit
from them. Now they are consolidated, conducted by great
trusts and combines, who have gobbled up all the business of
the country and concentrated it at one or two points

The unfortunate and lamented Joshua Doan started a
tannery in the early thirties in the block where the eity hall
now stands and some of his old vats were cleared away when
the foundation of the ecity hall was lald. Doan sided with
Mackenzie and Duncombe in the troubles of '37, and was a
zealous advocate for responsible government. He pald for his
zeal with his life. Being captured by the loyalists, he was
tried in London, convicted and hanged

An American at that time was conduoting a tannery at
Tyrconnell, and he came to 8t. Thomas and purchased Doan's
tannery from his widow, and did a large tanning and leather
business for about half a century He was the well-known
and highly respected M. T. Moore, the first mayor of St
Thomas. The firm of M. T. Moore, carried on by his sons,
after his death, was continued till about 1847, when changed
conditions made it unprofitable, and it, with other like estab-
lishments, had to go down with the rise of the tanners’ trust,
There were no less than four tanneries in 8t. Thomas in 1850
One of them owned by the late Geo. Crocker, did quite a good
business

The distilleries of 8t. Thomas are a thing of the past
and those who thirst after the fermented Juice of corn and rye
liave to procure their supplies from the mammoth concerns
at Walkerville and Toronto, but those who are satisfied with
& milder beverage, can procure the home-made article from
the Rudolph & Begg brewery, or from the eity waterworks,
which distills the muddy water of Kettle Creek into pure
acqua vitwe.  Notwithstanding the prohibitory laws passed in
this part of Ontario, the big brewery on the old London and
Port Stanley Road, long known as the Rudolph & Begg
brewery, has done a thriving business, and its bank account
was the biggest when the Scott Act was In foree in the elty

Continued on Page 82
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ST. THOMAS AND ITS MEN OF AFFAIRS

Journnl Printing Company's Wullding, Talbot Street Times Printing Company's Huliding, Talbet Street

Thomas Newspapers

| A HE FIRST paper started in St Thomas was The 8 e foot of the embank « similar fate to that which befel
] Thomas Journal, edited by George and Thomas Hodg the printing plant of Wi, Lyon Mackenzie on the bunk of the
kinson and sometimes assisted In an emergency case by  N'agara River, about the same tim
rd brother, Phillp of Aylmer. This paper was started Serfous handicap a wa 1id not deunt the editor
and in 1832 another, The Liberal, also party and polit and owners, w peedily got together another plant, and the
i was established, and soon they were ba g each othe lssemination of Liberal was continued until they
i the most ultra style of newspaper warfare. T « ecame part of the accepted laws of the country. These things
1 porary of The Journal was owned by ffty stockholder Are for the purpose of giving a
i tent yeomanry of Middlesex.” and edited by & young tru thout fear of awakening any
an of remarkable ability t Asahel |
Lewis, the eldest of the Lew I here abou from correspondence of that
It was an era of mu us feel further notiee of that mi
| ween the two partie " and “Clergy al mas, but since the editor has
are the two terms which most plainly tell the publ t to my letter, 1 shall conde
and lssues of the conflic Mtorial writing as w vehicle, and expose Its puerile
\ mous correspondence in our da metim K v ons in their proper light
personal abuse, but the “smenit f 1532 are far  Th the London Sun and one of
l riking ; and no wonder, when at P al n P 81 Thomas paper
y “amenit but shillelahs were striking bera We make use of the following extract to show the ur
| s situated on the north side of Talbot street on the  blushing impudence of this black hearted libeller: ‘Dost thou
kment Just opposite the present street car har As  think, thou poor, pitiful, grovelling wretch, that we ever wrote
ated the politieal writings of Editor Lewls were able « word which dying we could wish to blot
| ay be added, pointed. Evidence of this is convineing The Liberal wa 48 column sheet and contained much
wing & number of particularly powerful editorial editorial matter and much argumentative correspondence, all
e hottest of the fight for responsible y in ears untimely death of Mr Lew
‘ of the Liberal areived at the office one  Which occurred at of twenty-elght, It was edited
| find that the entire plant of type and " John Talbot (not a relative of Col. Talbot). The London
| ped out the back door and lay a hopeles k at  Sun was edited by Edward A. Talbot, of Port Talbot. The St
|
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! St. Thomas Newspapers —Conlinned
5 1l Thomas Journal, also on the Family Compact side in polities After the cessation of the Freeman the village was with
e was In 1833 edited by Do Frarer, a minister from Secot out & loeal paper until the first number of the Dispateh was Is
land sued In January, 1853, 1t was at first carried on by D, W
4 At this time Wi, Lyon MeKenzie was in England, on & Hart, editor, and P. Burke, printer. After a time Mr. Burke
b mission in favor of the Colonfes. He wrote constantly for his  assumed editorial control and for years much writing was done
§ own paper, the Colonial Advoeate, and his letters were regu-  for the paper by Edward Ermatinger, Esq. Its publication
{ larly copled in the Liberal. Here is the conclusion of one of  was suspended in 1876 after an existence of twenty-three
* them After rejoleing at the suceess of the Reform B he years, during which time It was falthfully conducted for the
| says: “Reform in Engiand will ald the cause of Reform in Can politieal success of the Conservative party
ada. Let the Colonial oppressors, the greedy, grasping place Another Conservative paper, the Elgin Fixpress, wa
men, pensioners and Jobhers set their houses in order ; the'r  commenced January 3181, 1872, and continued about one year

In the year 1869 Archibald MeLachlin issued the first

day of account draweth nigh ; | shall see it, I trust, and re

joice. With sincere and affectionate wishes for the happine number of the Home Journal, and by his learning, good taste

of Canada, and the mary thousands of worthy and kind men liberal views and unceasing Industry soon made It a politiea

PR

and women It contains, 1 conelude this letter power in Ontario, and a highly useful family newspaper, He

W. L. MACKENZIE continued the proprietorship until near the close of the year
The papers then had but few advertisement Among 1876, when It was transferred to his sons, James and Robert
sup-  McLachlin, and Mr. Archibald Blue, Mr. Blue had been it

‘ these, Hela Shaw reminds his customers that he has a fn!'

{ ply of tanner's ofl. 6,000 barrels of salt and 20 tons of grind-  principal acting editor for some years, and, as well as Mr
| stones : Goodhue and Duncombe 1) the most liberal patron MecLachlin, had done much to give the paper its excellent
| age Is o starving business without pay ; Joel Doan that he ha reputation. In 1881 it was purchased by The Journal Com

A\ a tannery in South Yarmouth, and Samuel Minard that he will pany whieh included Francis Hunt, Kate Westlake, R )
| pay 3 coppers reward for the return of an indented boy. Jam Wilkie and J. W. Claris. who began the daily edition. In 1887
1 W There is ulso the notice of a marriage of Mis James 8. Brierley bought out the interests of the other stock

4‘ Isabella Celeste Jone to Samuel Wing, of Dunham, and the holders.and continued as owner until 1905 During Mr
! following couplet of farewell to the bhride Brierley's ownership the present hullding was erected and the

i Celestinl Isabella paper was made one of the most Influential in Canadian jour
{ At length has taken Wing nallsm. In 1896 Mr. Hrierley went to Montreal to beeome the
! And left our western reg president and manager of The Herald and until 1905 he cor
; On Dunham hills to sing tinued the publieation of The Journal as well, the temporary
These papers both ceased publication bhefore the year management changing several times until it was purehased i

1837, The resort to firearms took place this year, hut fn th 19056 by Mr. Arthur 8. Smith. Mr. Smith, despite his aptitude

district hard words avd harder elubs were in frequent use from r Journalism, continy proprietor for less than a yeay

1830 to 1840, and perhaps longer he confining and trying nature of the work prompting him In

The Enqu rer, edited John Kent, was the next publiey T9C6 1o sell out his interest to the present company of wh

tion. Tt had a short 1ife wa by the 8t. Thoma Mr. F. W. Sutherland has been president and managing dir
Standard, ¢ Conservative paper the late My Eema-  ©ctor sinee 1906, during which time The arnal has mad
tinger. This was commeneed J the last number  Much progre and with its co-temporary, the Times, ha
wa ned June, 1546 The ( reeman commenced  *erved 8t Thomas loyally and well
with the year 1846, and was & Reform paper, edited by | The 8t Thomas Times was established in 1873 by the late
Cunningham Kearney, The editorials were not remarkable for  Jonathan Wilkinson, in the Conservative interest. and was
moothness and eare in the cholee of words, but were vet 1, corducted with vigor and ability by him until his deat®
sincere and stirring.  An earnest advoesey of the lake shor 1901, Soon afterwards it was purchased by A. E. Wallace and
townships from the county of Middlesex was begun by Mr JIohn W. Eedy and conducted by them until 1904, when ths
Kearney, and his paper was the medium through whieh the Present company. of which L. H. Dingman is the president and !
agitation was earried 1o successful e Int rly a managing editor. aequired the werty, and have since sue- [
the eitizens took part, and it wasx emphatieally “a long pull essfully condueted it |
and a strong pull, and a pull together This paper draws a The aggressive conduet of both papers during recent years
cture of 8t. Thoma P 1846 @ mtaining 1.000 inhab as carned for 8t Thomas the distinet sccopted generally

\l me ns two distilleries (w e “good whiskey a0 oughout Ontarie f having the most progressive and

be ol ! tores of Hope, Hodge & ( Awor whie dally papers of any of the small cities of Ontario.  They
Co enzie, J. & W. Coyne, John MeKay, and J. M ve vied with each other in their efforts to quicken «

& & . o, W ams and  Bow yally the eity and county have received th \

upport of the people generally In return
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The History of St. Thomas Schools

well

~HE BUBSTANTIAL equipped and architecturally  lar, (late Deputy Minister of Edueation), Mr. Angas McCrim

’-l pleasing school structures of 8t. Thomas of today are  mon, (present County Crown Attorney), Mr. N. M. Campbell

a long step removed from the eity arliest school struc (IX76-- 99 Mr. H. A Stewart (1580 -1802); Mr. J. McK

ture of record, known the 8t. Thon Grammar School Urie (1502 190%) Mr Frederick Voaden (1908 1911)
referred to some length on another page by Dr. J. H.  and Mr. Franklin C. Poole (1911 to the present)

| oyne In his “8t. Thomas School Reminiscences.” The school In 1 the Central School was enlarged to elght rooms

| tructures today are in themselves monuments to deep o0 as to accomodate both the Grammar and the Public Schools

interest manifested by the people of the present and preceding  Mr. John Millar was principal of the combined sehools until

generations in the education of the young the basis of all 1878, when a separate High School bullding was erected at

true civie and national development And in the present day the north end of Pearl street This bullding was remodelled
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The History of St. Thomas Schools— Continued

Scott Street School- A four-roomed building on Scott
street was opened in 1882 Was remodelled in 1911 and
enlarged to the present elght-roomed building, and was open-
ed in January, 1912, Miss Lizzie Hall was the first principal
Subsequent principals were Miss Sutherland, Miss H. Robin
son, A. B. Cooper, Jas. A. Ross, A. McInnes, Miss E. Wyatt
0. L. Latham, C. . E. Thompson

Manitoba Street School - The four-roomed building at
the north end of Manitoba Street, was opened in 1885 with
Mrs. Thornton, (nee L. Hall) as principal.  Subsequent prin-
cipals were Miss 1. Flach, Mr. 1. N. Wheeler, Miss Alice Cowan
and Miss Annie MacColl, the present prineipal

Catholie Separate School  In 1870 a two-room brick school
was built on the present site, together with dwelling adjoining
for the use of the Sisters of 8t. Joeph.  This religious order
took possession on February 2nd. 1879, and have provided
the teaching staff continuously till the present time. The first
superior was Mother Bonaventure aprd the first teachers, Sr
M. Bernard and Sr. M. Celestine.  In 1507 the present substan-
tial convent was built for the exclusive * of the Sisters, and
in 1904 ard again in 1914 extensive improvements were mads
to the gechool bullding and at present it 's quite modern in all
its appointments, and contains five well equipped teaching
rooms, one assembly room, splendid wide corridors, one li-
brary, lavatories on both floors, and has low-pressure sceam
heating apparatus Mother Euphemia is the present super-
for and Sr. Eugenia the principal. The number of pupils
enroled in 1914 was 220

The Model School  The 1906 session of the Model Schonl
was the last, the training of all teachers sinee then heing
carried out in the Normal Schools of the provinee, 8t. Thomas

was one of the first centres where Model Schools wers estab
lished by the education department in ISTT, with 24 siudent
at the first session.  Mr. N M. Camphbell was prineipal from
that date until his death in October, 1899 Mr. Willlam Ran

nie comp

ed the term for that year. The last prineipal, Dr
nber, 1899 and in addition
s, Mr. John MeLean retirng
to 1899 inclusive)

8. Sileox, was appointed in De

became Inspector of Publie Se
after a serviee .

In 1866, the Rev. D W, Rowland was local superinten
dent of schools at $5 per annum.  In 1867 Mr. Colin M

gall earned $20 superintending the work of the sehools.  From

Reminiscences of St.
BY DR LM«

Y SCHOOL recollections go back to 185 for I was
M  pupll ar the age of three and a half years. | attend

ed Common School for eight years, and after three

and a half years in the Grammar School, matricalated at the
University. Owing to extreme youth, 1 did not attend College
irammar
School until the fall of 1865, when | entered the | Mr E
M. Yarwood's offiee. To brush up my knowledge of University
subjects. | went hack to school during the spring of 1566

until Junuary, 1867 Mennwhile | remained at 1)

After so long a period, It s not easy to recall many detalls
of school-life Dates.  nan

S, sequences,  are apt  to get

confused and mis-placed.  Details a1l sense of proportion

Often it s minor and insignificant | lents that survive in

the memory, while more important ones have passed into
oblivion.  But for better or for worse, | am (o attempt to set
down what I remember of my early sehools and schoolmasters

When | first toddled to school with my elder sister and
brother, Colonel Talbot had died the February before, the

1868 to Mareh, 1878, the Rev. Geo. Cuthbertson filled the pos-
ition of local superintendent of schools in addition to his
work as pastor of Knox Church. Giving up this latter posi-
tion and leaving the eity, he resigned the position of superin-
tendent, and was succeeded by Mr. John MelLean, who had
been & member of the hoard from 18756 to the date of his
appointment.  Mr. McLean retired in 1899 in order to make
possible the union of the office with that of principal of the
publie schools, including the Model School.  He was succeeded
by Dr. 8. Silcox, the present inspector, Mr. J. A, Taylor, suec
ceeding him

Collegiate Institutc — This institution had its origin in the
Classieal School, which, established in 8t. Thomas at an early
period, about 18547, became the recognized County Grammar
School in 1868, Sinee 1853 the school has had the following
principals:  Rev. J. Fraser, Rev. N, Burns, Mr. L. Younghus
band, Mr. W. N. Keefer, Rev. J. MeClure, Rev. J. Somerville,
M. A Rev, G Grant, B. A.; Mr. John Millar, B. A.; Mr. Shep
ard, B.A . Mr. N, Quance, B. A, and Dr. Arthur Voaden,
M. A. the present principal In 1871 its designation was
changed to a High School. In 1878 the old High School build
ing was erected at the north end of Pearl street at a cost of
about $10,000 for building and $2,000 for site. The atten
dance outgrew the accomodation of this bullding by the end
of the century.  In 1880, on the report of the H. 8. Inspector
it was erected into a Collegiate Institute. In 1902 it was torn
down and a new b.‘ﬂJliu‘--n-ﬂwl on the same site at a cost of
$25.000, and this was remodelled and enlarged in 1912 into
the present handsome and commodious building .

On July 25th, 1865, n Grammar and six Publie School
trustees met and amalgamated the two boards under the title
of High and Pullic School Trustees. Sinee tnat date there
have been the follow.ng chalrmen: 1865 67, Judge Hughes
IS68, 0. King ; 1869 INT2 1L Caldwell ; 1873 1890, D. K
MeKenzie | 1881 1884, John Midgley ; 18856, W. B. Doherty
INO6 87, W, L King ; 1888, J. W. MacKay ; 1899, A W
Graham: 1900, T W. Crothers; 1901, E. H. Millington ; 1902
8. Dubber ; 1903, F. Doggett ; 1904, J. A, Kilpatrick ; 1905
oW Wright: 1906, J. R Martin: 19075, K. C. Sanders
1909, Dr. R.M. Lipsey, 1910, Albert Roberts; 1911, Dr. E. W
Honsinger; 1912, Henry  Roe 1918, Dr. ¢ ¢ Lumley;
1914, A 8 Smith

Thomas School Days
OYNE, FL.R C.N
first court-house was in course of construction, the separation

of the county of Elgin from Middlesex was not completely
effected. and St Thomas was heginning to assume the airs and

dignity of a county town

Nearly opposite Ann street, and jJust north of the spot
where Judge Ermatinger’'s house stands, was the old Grammar
School, a4 one-storey bullding  with  shutters on its many
windows, and only a few feet 1o the north was the two-storey
edifice used for the Common  School Both  wers frame
structures

My first teacher, Mro MeTaggert, remained but a aay or
puptl, und made way for the late Mr
Archibald Mebachling who had previously taught in Aldbor
“d on Walnut street, on the same lot
us the Alexander Love house, in o building which s «till
standing The place Ix impressed upon my memory by the

so, after 1 becam

ough.  The latter resid

cireumstances that my mother took me there to see the new

MeLachlin haby Among later teachers in the old common
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Reminiscences of St. Thomas School Days—Continued

school, 1 remember Mr. Robert Alexander (1854), and the
late Messrs. Thomas L. Lindop, John and Hugh McLean, Mr,
McLachlin and Mr. John McLean each went into business after
leaving the school. The former established The Journal,
and the McLachlin Bookstore, both of which are still flourish-
ing institutions. Mr. McLean afterward entered the legal
profession in which he was a well-known practitioner. Mr
Lindop was for many years a prominent business man in St
Thomas. Mr. Hugh McLean entered the ministry in 1857,
and died within recent years after nearly half a century of
useful and valued service to the Methodist church. Of the
teachers 1 have named, Mr. Alexander alone adopted teaching
as his life-occupation Entering upon it at St. Thomas in
1854, he had completed the half-century before he retired
from the profession, being then a resident of Galt Mrs
George Geddes, first wife of our well-known ex-mayor, was
his daughter. Mr. Alexander gave the writer not lone ago an
interesting reminiscence of his six months’ experience at 8t
Thomas. The teacher's desk in those days was a large empty
packing-case, the open end facing his chair. One of his infant
pupils, who shall be nameless, used regularly to ereep ia and
slumber peacefully in the dry-goods box, this breach of school
regulations being winked at in consideration of his tender
years. School discipline benefited, no doubt, by the slumbers,
the child being out of mischief at least when asleep. Mr
Alexander now resides at Ottawa

The year 1856 was a boom-year in St. Thomas The
London and Port Stanley Railway was opened. and in prepara-
tion for the expected increase in population a large brick
school with four rooms instead of two was erected on the
Davis farm, where the Wellington street school now stands
It was called the Central, and Mr. John McLean was the first
principal. 1 well remember the procession of teachers and
scholars from the old to the new building. and how proud we
were of our improved quarters and the large playgrounds. He
was succeeded about 1857 by Mr. W R. Bigg, who died in
recent years at Belleville. The school apparatus consisted of
blackboards and a few maps. Mr. Bigg introduced the teaching
of sclence with illustrative experiments. Parents and pupils
were Interested in his proposal to supply the school with
appliances. Tickets were sold by the pupils at 25 conts each
in the village and surrounding townships, and lectures and
experiments in  chemistry and electricity, then incipient
sclences, were given in the old Wesleyan New Connection
Chureh on Stanley street and elsewhere The Government
Depository honus doubled the amount thus raised. and in
this way Mr. Bigg succeeded in furnishing the school with a
complete set of astronomical and geographical maps, geological

cabinets, an e'ectrical machine, Leyden Jars, and chemical
apparatus; ard the walls were lined with framed pictures of
animals and birds.  Scientific experiments were also given in
school.  All the boys and girls Joined hands round the room
to receive electrical shocks. Some stood on small platforms
resting on glas insulators, and were then brought in contact
with the machine. Then to their own dismay and the delight
of onlookers, their hair rose heavenwards until the machine
stopped L hing gas was adm!nistered occasionally to
selected students, who were thus induced to laugh, dance
perform various anties for the amusement of the rest.  Onee
Jack Hanvey, while under his influence, rolled up his sleeves

and squared off before the master, and would have polished
him in professional style, had not the experiment K 1 hrought
to a sudden close.  The late Dr John Penwarden was the hest
scholar In Mr. Bigg's time Among other pupils in 1857 or
later years, | remember Jack and Alex. Hanvey Arthur
Thompson, Willlam and Andrew (“Tally”) Moore, John Love,

Henry Hillis, William Laing, William and Walter Ros:
MecRoberts, A. M. Hutchinson, Joseph McAdam, Gilbert l)lcll-
son, Edward Rowland and the Drakes.

Mr. Bigg's asistant and successor was Alexander Hutton,
a young man, clever, tall, handsome and quick-tempered. He
was a famous cricketer, and a good all-round athlete: but he
fell a vietim to consumption, gave up teaching, and after a
year or two's iliness died near Brockville,

He had become engaged to one of his pupils, a handsome
and intelligent girl of about his own age, and this circumstance
added to the pathos of his untimely death, which impressed
the pupils profoundly. He was still principal, when 1 left the
Common School in April, 1861, to enter the Grammar School

Mr. Nelson Burns, B.A., was then head-master. The
pupils were few in number, perhaps half a dozen at first. It
was easy at any time for the pupils to give the teacher a
half-holiday. For seats we had a long bench or form. The
master sat at a table near the centre of the room. We stood
in a row to reeite, and those who missed went to the foot of
the class. It was a great triumph to remain at the head for a
long time. Classies and Mathematics, but especially Classies,
were regarded as the proper subjects for Grammar Schools
Mr. Burns who was an excellent scholar, added a little
chemistry and natural philosophy, volee-training and elocution
He entered the Methodist ministry in the following year, and
was followed by Mr. Launcelot Younghusband, M. A a tall
big-bodied Englishman, of immense energy and enthusiasm
which he communicated in some measure to nis pupls.  He
introduced the teaching of singing, a break in the monotony
of school exercises, which was greatly appreciated After
matriculating at the University under his training 1 went
back to school, and remained until Mr. Younghusband left in
1865, He died at Detroit

Mr. Younghushand's successor was also a thoroughly
competent teacher, Mr. W. Napier Keefer, BA., now » retired
surgeon of the Indian army residing at Toronto, and better
known as Major Keefer Already he was interested in
military matters. The Fen'ans were hecoming active early in
1866, and threatening to invade Canada. A number of us
in the old 8t. Thomes Rifles
Others went into the cavalry Mr. Keefer actea as drill
Instructor to the rifles and the home-guard during the exeite
ment. I remember well the bugle-alarm sounding through
the streets of the old town, and more than once the sergeant
or corporal coming to the Grammar-School to summon us to
the standard.  After the raid in June, on our return from
Sarnia, a great public meeting was held in the old conrt-house
to do honor to the volunteers, when Miss Moeckridge, (after
wards Mrs. Trew), electrified the audience with her rendering

bhoys of 16 and upwards enlisted

of popular martial airs, especially, as | remember,
tramp, tramp, ye loyal Britons ™

Tramp

In 1866, Mr. Keefer being still headmaster, the Grammar
School bullding was moved up to the Central 8chool gronrds
on Wellington street, the Grammar and Common Schools being
united under one ard of management, and in this way for a
brief period | came under the instruetion of Mr. Ewin Cameron
in some of the English branche He was an able and thorough
teacher. e went into farm'ng s a profession, from which
he has recently retired to spend the rest of his life in town

These were all the instructors with whom [ eame In
contact, as far as | cun remember.  Differing in temperan ent
and in their special training, all were consclentious as well a¢
capable and  successful teachers. The survivors, and the
memory of those who are no more, are held in the hizhes
respect by their grateful pupils
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Reminiscences of St. Thomas School Days—Continued

Among the old grammar-school boys, say from 1861 to
the end of 1866, may be mentioned Willlam Mandeville
Merritt and his brother George, Adolphus Williams, ex-M.P.P.,
Frank Ermatinger, and his brother the Judge, Thomas E
White, chief engineer of the Mackenzie and Mann rallway
system, Edward Hughes and his cousin, Malcolm Wilson,
Henry and Willlam F. Ellis, Archibald J., Robert and Tom
Kains, Willlam Pearce, . E., George Casey, M. P.. John
Graham of Dunwich, John Thompson of Cowal, Dr. McLay of
Aylmer, Charles Caulfield, Charles Stanton and John Young-
hushand. There were a good many girls as well

A feature of the old schools was the quarterly or half-
yearly public examination. The pupils put on their best
clothes and best manners: the schoolroom was a hower of
evergreens; the teacher's desk was a solid mass of roses and
lilles. The fathers and mothers were present In large
numbers. Trustees deemed it a duty to attend. The walls
were lined with visitors, some seated on chairs or benches,
and more standing up. The classes were put through their
facings by the teachers, visitors occasionally putting test
questions. By the correctness of the answers the school and
the teachers were judged. The best pupils were of course
put prominently forward on these occasions
t'mes very numerous, the gifts of generous eftizens and
farmers, were distributed. One of which | was the proud
possessor was the gift of the late Patrick Bobier of North
Yarmouth. The donors or other prominent visitors made
complimentary speeches and handed out the prizes. The
pupils walked up the aisles bashfully and rather awkwardly
to receive the guerdon of their toil and perseverance amidst
the plaudits of visitors and of their less fortunate fellow-
students.

At the Grammar School there were public “exhibitions,"
sometimes held in the Court House. at which pupils and ex-
pupils recited poetry and sang, and the principal read his
reports. At one of these, Warwick Thompson and I sang at
a late hour a then popular song. A writer in the “Dispateh,”
(the late A. J. Allworth probably), sald in his account of
the affair that two little urching sang “Rock me to sleep,
Mother”; they ought to have been rocked to sleep two hours
earlier. On the same occasion, the late Doctors John Fulton
and Duncan McLarty, then youths of 20 or upwards, ex-pupile
of the school, recited, as | well remember, Campbell’s famous
dialogue poem: “Lochiel! Lochiel ! Beware of the day ! "

The Davis farm on which the Central School was built was
for many years an open common, on which horse races and
fairs were held, ericket, base ball and lacrosse played, and the
militia put in their annual drill, consisting simply of Vning uy
ard marching without guns or uniforms. These counter-
attractions were not favorable to school-attendance. Flogging
was a favorite dally pastime of the teachers, and the boys
risked it often to see the races or militla-men. In this way
the masters were kept up to standard condition. The boys
teemied to consider It a part of the day's work, a kind of
fate It was useless to res'st.  Every boy had to put in his full
measure of whippings, and the sooner they were over the
better for all concerned. Some of the most experienced who
used to rub rosin on their hauds in anticipation were won
10 claim that the ruler, pointer or tawse — whichever weapon
of offense was employed by the master or mistress —had thus
less effect upon the hand; but there were some skepties who
doubied even the experts

In my early days boys and girls were in SEPArAte rooms
The new Central School in 1866 brought them together in the

Prizes, some-

highest room; but it was some years earlier that girls were
admitted to the Grammar Schools. In the meantime the
question was debated in the press, in public meetings and in
parliament

The Common Schools were not free in my time. I
remember as a mere infant going to pay for my ticket at
Kent's drug store on top of the hill just west of Church
street on Talbot. Afterward, we got them at Mr. Morgan's
store at the bend of Talbot street In a frame building which is
still standing. My father was among the first to agitate for
free schools. The schools in 8t. Thomas were free by popular
vote before the statute was passed requiring all to be free
throughout the province.

In the days before the great war public sentiment was
largely divided along the lines of sympathy with or antipathy
towards the United States. Slavery was a question which
aroused the passions of Canadians as well as men south of the
lakes. The war drew the dividing lines sharp and deep.
Every Canadian was either a Northerner or a Southerner, and
the battles of the war were refought north of the lakes. 1
remember the fierce arguments over the famous prize-fight in
England between the little English champion, Tom Savers, and
the California giant, John . Heenan. It was a draw. The
papers were full of it for weeks. Bishops, M. P.'s and noble-
men Jjostled costermongers and coal heavers as they crowded
round the ring. At the Grammar School, our national spirit
was aroused.  “Tally” Moore championed the Heenan side.
Most of us were for the Englishman, Sayers. Our battles,
of course, it may be easily imagined, were more decisive
than the one out of which they arose. On the war question,
parties at school lined up chiefly, but not altogether, on party
lines, Reformers favoring the North and Torles the South. The
Iatter being then as now, largely in the malority, the
Reformers generally had the worst of it, when it came to
blows, as frequently it did. There was great excitement when
one of the big boys. Alex. MacNiel, commonly called Sparta,
crossed the lines, and enlisted in the Northern army. He went
through the later stages of the war and came back in safety
One of the boys who had attended before my time, “Ocky"
Wallace, was killed in the war, and brought back for burial
in the old English churchyard

Human nature has not changed since those earlier days
Boys are boys and girls are girls, now as then
then
re

Now as
the ancient school-tricks of our remotest ancestors are
ted with but slight variations or improvements. Perhaps
the ruler. pointer and tawse, as instruments of discipline, are
not so much in evidence

In that particular civilization has
Perhaps the pupils are better behaved. Teachers exhibit the
same self-sacrificing devotion to duty, the same ardent
interest in their work, as in the old days. Canada owes much
to the ploneer schoolmasters. Now as then the national
welfare depends largely on the work and influence of the
teaching profession It Is gratifying to know that they
measure well up to their responsibilities From the very
beginnings of Upper Canada, our forefathers were eager to
spend and be spent in the cause of education. Shall our
descendants say as much for us?

With the history and traditions of “the wonderful
century” to inspire us, it is not likely that Ontario will fail to
keep pace in educational progress with the onward march of
clvilization

scored an advance
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St. Thomas Manufacturing From the Earliest Days—(Continued from page 74)

and county, The plant has been improved, modern machinery
is used, and modern methods adapted in the manufacture of
beer, and the output is largely distributed over Western
Ontario. A large number of men are employed in connection
with the business, and it is one of the thriving Industries of
the eity

About 1870 the conservative and pastoral ‘deas of Col
Talbot, which had been planted in the minds of the people
and which they to some extent followed, were passing, or had
passed away. The citizens were affected hy the enterprise and
push of their more enterprising neighbors.  8t. Thomas saw
the dawn of a new ¢ Col. Thompson was promoting a new
rallway line w extend from Detroit to the Niagara River
which would pass through 8t. Thomas and conneet it with
the great cities of New York and Chicago. New men frov
the bhusiness life of great commercial and manufactaring
centres, with new ideas, and living the strenuous life, eame
to town. The town was not what the town should be. There
were no waterworks or sewers, and the neweomers, with a few
of the progressive old residents, Insisted that these he huill
and that the town keep step with the music of modern progress
These ideas, so startling, met with great opposition from the
men who had lived under and were satisfied with the old
conditions. They did not want their wells drained hy a sewer,
and therefore a sewer should not be built.  Every man could
get an outlet for his private drain into the gullies that
They had drank the water from their

surround the town
wells without fatal results and the water which was good
enough for them was good enough for the neweomers.  They
set up the plea that from long residence in the town they had
mditions and to keep
notwithstanding any

a vested right to live under the old
the business in the old localities
eventualities, that might, and did, arise
that the new road should go through the centre and the whole
length of the city, though a better and more desirable route
They were not “tipped

They even stipulated

was 1o cross the ereek at Farley's hiil
with the dawn of the morning.” They could not see the
troubles and bitterness which raged for years on account of
the location of the road. They could not see that two rival
towns would compete for public buildings and public improve
ments, one in the east— the new town and the old town in
the west.  But while the east and the west waged a sectional
d hecame a city It could not help it
Its position had decided its fate

The new ety was not fortunate in its early manutacturing

war the town grew

enterprises A handle factory was started by the Dexter &
it falled

There was plenty of cheap timber for its raw material in those

Whitwam Company, but after & short  existene

days, and there was a good market in England. as there s
today Hut it is one thing to start a business, and another
thing to possess business sagacity to prosecute it sueccessfally
This fism lacked the latter requisite and hence its fallure.  Jas
H. Still, who at that time was making money selling hoots
and shoes, in after years established the same business in the
city under less favorable conditions and from it secured wealth
and fame

Another (ll-starred enterprise was the Pipe Foundry

Prominent business men put their capital into it and dreamed

15 of huge success, bhut placed the management of it in

drea
the hands of an Ola Country bolt maker, whose only qualifi-
cation was his egotism.  The natural result followed, The

capital wax lost and the plant was sold for serap A Joe

Kilpatrick was wanted to make it a sucecess, but he was not
then discovered

About 1870 the Haggart and Cochrane Agricultural
Implement Works were established in a building where the
Anderson store now stands, and did » good business for some
yvears, but when the great Massey-Harris combine was formea
it, with many other establishments of its kind all over
Ontario, had to go to the wall. It probably was not managed
with the ability necessary to success, but in any even! the new
business conditions brought into existence by the great
managers would have been fatal. One of the great calamities
that came to the city was the fallure of the Thomas Bros
factory It was aided by municipal funds in its beginning
same one of its great institutions. It prospered for
nployment to a large number of hands ai

and bhe

MANY YPArs, Eav
had an extensive trade throughout the Dominion and iy
foreign lands.  The financial depressions of last yea:. coupled
with financial mismanagement, drove it to the wall. Many
suffered in its downfall; those who had risked capital in the
business, its employes and the general public through the set

hack it gave to general business

The history of the failures may not make good reading
% that caused the
present gene

nsideration of the cireumstanc
fit to the

but a «
downfall «
The mariner who has not the rocks and shoals marked on his

ight to he of ben ation

chart is deficient in the necessary warnings
It is a relief to turn from the history of failures to the

history of successes. The pessimism of a former period has

heen succeeded by optimism, established by new and better
business ventures New manuf
b

equipped tor the task

turing establishments have

promoted and carried to a successful issue by men
men who possess the requisite capital
Al over the eity the hum of
Industry is heard in large plants built on modern plans and
ple Among the
largest are the pork packing plant. and its allied industries
the Monarch Knitting Company . the Just Wright Shoe Com
pany ;. the Nursery Shoe Company: the Erie Iron Works: the
the Brass Foundry: the Canadiar
Foundry Company. and many smaller concerns, which in the

integrity and business capacity

giving employment to large numbers of

Honsinger Cigar Factory

aggregate. give employment to u large number of hands
St Thomas industries, like those of other citles, suffored

by the general depression and  the world wide war of the

present year, but the tide has turoed s idle wheels have

been started running again The rallways, which are the

largest employers of labor. are getting  hack  to norma

conditions.  Notwithstanding the burdens which war entalls
the prospect for industrial growth (n this city looks good for
the future, and unless all signs fail, “after the clouds roll by

St Thomas will oecupy a high place smong the great industria
centres of the Dominlon.  Every one who has given the matter
intelligent thought can not arrive at any other conclusion b
that at the close of the present war, new conditions will exis
I commerce, manufacturing, culture and even that eivilizatior
will be changed In this great upheaval the communities

which pull altogether for the common good, which possess (h

enterprise and publie spirit that spells suecess will »

the front.  The situation of 8t. Thom

s s rallway
s climate and the agricultural possibilities of its surrounding
ountry, its nearness to  water communication, give i1 m

vantage in the changes that are about to take pl
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St. Thomas Churches — Conlinued

e

cleaning, re-carpeting, painting, and decorating of the interior
of the edifice, the insertion of the chimes (already ceferred
to), the flower vases and holy table desk in the chancel, and
the antependia and markers, as lasting proofs of their zeal
and untiring efforts. They have also been gradually reducing
the mortgage debt on the church, which good work the men
of the congregation have also helped by soliciting subscriptions
on two occasions, and now it is hoped that past endeavors,
backed up by the more recent noble effort of the A, V. P. A,
will soon result in the burning of the mortgage and the
consecration of Trinky churen. S0 mote it be.

FIRST METHODIST CHURCH.

The first frame build:ng, known as the Weslyan Methodist
Church, was built in St. Thomas in 1841, being formally open-
ed on Sunday, January 10th, by the Revs. William Ryerson
Thomas Berett and Samuel Rose

Candles were used for lighting and cost nine pence per
pound; cordwood for fuel cost seven shillings and six
pence a cord, including cutting

The first tea meeting was held on November 28, 1849, and
the proceeds applied to the erection of a gallery across the
south end

This frame structure did good service until 1873 when
the present brick church was built and dedicated June 23
by the Rev, William Morley Punshon, an English divine then
living in Canada

It was partially destroyed by fire in March, 1895, when it
was remodeled in the shape we see it today

Previous to 1884 it was known as the St. George street
church but when the union of the various Methodist bodies
took place it became the First Methodist chureh

Many noted divines have been connected with the pastor.
ate and a long list of Christian worthies have constituted the
spiritual life of the church that has played an important parl
in the history and development of St. Thomas

KNOX PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH

St. Thomas' first Presbyterian services were conducted by
Rev. David McKenzie in the old Grammar school from 1833
to 1838, The old frame structure called St. Andrew’s church,
was built about 1839, and the first settled minister, Rev. Mr.
McKilican, served, 1839 to 1843, He was followed by Rev
J. McKinnon and Rev. J. Fraser, 1848 to 1854 A. Young
was inducted in 1856 and Rev eorge Cuthbertson in 1863
The brick church, called St. Thomas Presbhyterian Church, on
Talbot street, was built in 1865, Rev. Mungo Fraser followed
in 1876

The present Knox church was built in 188

at a cost of
about $28,000, and there have been inducted: Rev. F. W
Archibald, Ph.D., 1885; Rev. W, H. W. Boyle, in 1888; Rev
J. A. MacDonald, D.D. in 1891; Rev. D. R, Drummond, D.D.,
in 1897; Rev. N. H. MecGillivray, the present pastor, in
February, 1912,

A branch Sunday school was opened on Erie street
east in 1897 and in 1899 the present Sunday School building
on Forest avenue was erected and opened for service on June

25 of that year

HOLY ANGELS R. €. CHURCH

The Church of St. Thomas, a frame siructure, was built

on the gite of the present church, by John Doan In 1830, at a
cost of about five hundred dollars. The first mass in St
Thomas was celebrated by Rev. Father McDonnell, July, 1

Continued on page 96

A parish house was erected in 1833, The frame . (ilding was
replaced in 1871 by a brick church under Father Flannery
The priests in charge have been: Rev. Fathers Alex
MeDonnell, Jas. W. Campion, John Cullen, 1829; Daniel
Downie, 1831; J. M. Burke, 1836; Michael R. Mills, 1838;
James O'Flynn, 1839; P. O. Dwyer, 1843; Father Mills, 1848;
I. Kirwin, 1850; T. D. Ryan, 1851; . Frachon, 18567; L
Bissey, 1859; J. A. Strain, 1860; Chas. Zucker, 186!; W
Flannery, 1870 to 1894, and the present priest, Rev. Father
and under whose incumbency was

T. West, who came in 19(
built, in 1911, the present imposing structure (among the
finest in the province), at a cost in the neighborhood of
seventy-five thousand dollars It seats upwards of twelve
hundred and its choir ranks with the best in St. Thoras

CENTRE STREET BAP

' CHURCH

Sometime

n the “Fortie of the last century Elder
Andrews, then a school teacher in the town, gathered the

Baptists of the community together and practically begun the
work that has resulted in the church of 628 members that
now worships at the corner of Centre and Southwick Streets
The first meeting-house was erected on what is now the north-
west corner of Willlam street and St. Annes Place, and was
known as William Street Baptist Church. Here the congrega
tion grew in numbers and influence until enlargement was
necessary and under the pastorate of Rev. Thos. Baldwin
whose ministry ended in 1875, a considerable addition was
made by which the accommodation was doubled. In this year
a new Baptist church was formed in the north-easterr. part of
the city, known as Zion Baptist church, composed of members
of the William Street Church living east of the Port Stanley
Rallway
during the pastorate of the late Dr. Elmore Harris and was
one of the great epochs in the history of the Baptis! cause in
the community. Not only did the new building provide better
facilities, but being centrally located, the Zion Baptist church
in the east end was merged with the William Street Church
thus unifying and concentrating the strength of the Baptists
in the city. The subsequent growth of the congregation has
proved the wisdom of this event. In 1891-2 another church
was organized in the east end of the city known as the |
Immanuel Baptist church, but after a few years it was
dishanded and the members re-united at Centre stroet. Six
years ago during the pastorate of Rev. J. W. Hoyt, M.A., gal
leries were installed, increasing the seating capacity of the
chureh building by

In the year 1878-9 the present building was erected

0. Last year a Mission was established on
Fifth avenue, between Locust and Chestnut streets, and now is
in a flourishing condition. In addition to the Sunday School, &
preaching service is conducted Sunday evenings by Rev Daniel
Baldwin, brother of one of the former pastors.

The following have been the ministers: Elders Andrews
Crandall, Rowland, Wilson, T. Baldwin, Dr. Hurd, Harris
Hutehinson, A. H. Munro, Spencer, W. Hartley, D, Bovington
J. W. Hoyt, and the present minister, Rev. 0. C. Elliott

. JOHN'S ANGLICAN CHURCH.

In the year 18 steps were first taken to provide a more
convenient church accommodation for the present district
served by St. Johns, far to the eastward of the old 8t. Thomas
church

The advent of the Canada Southern Railway that year
had resulted in the incoming of many new families who had
located convenient to the shops of the railway, in what was
then known as Millershurg I
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Old St Thomas Church and Churehyard

Old St. Thomas Churchyard

BY MISS HATTIE ROBINSON
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Old St. Thomas Churchyard— Conlinued

Thomas), Tyrconnel, and during his incimhency, Burwell
Park Memorial church was built. The Joho Chultz,
1895, a very learned and earnest man,

last is Rev
aged 89 years; Dec. 15
who had cLarge of Port Burwell and Vienna as well as Port
Stanley,

When the church 1840 by the addition
of the trancepts it was found necessary to enclose some of the
graves lying at the back. A tablet on the wall inside reads
“Opposite of this lie the children of G. A. and 8. Couse;
Frederick, died January the 20th, 1 aged 3 years,
and Sarah Ann, January 17th, 183 ged one year, six months.
Only three days between them.” A son of the same parents,
Herman, dying iu 1848, is buried in about the centre of the

was enlarged in

thus
9 mos,,

ground.

West of the church lie Joseph Kasterbrook, aged 90, and
Sarah, his wife England, who in 1831
bought what is now the Waterworks park from Colonel Talbot
A small stone records two children of J. F. Adkins, 1837, 1846,
('lose by the fence a tiny grave bearing these wordas: “Our
Darling lies her The Thompson and McMartney plot. The
Kennedy plot surrounded by iron chains contains probably the
person in the churchyard wife of Thomas
attained the remarkable age of 99, dying in 1881

natives of Devon

oldest as Mary,
Kennedy
“This slab is erected by John and Joseph
Orchard to the their affectionate father, John
Orchard, Sr., of Taunton, Somersetshire, whe. led in South-
wold, C. W, June Sth, 1834, while on a visit to his vrother,
Thomas Orchard
1859 Probably the
erected to the memory of the

A stone near reads
memory of

I‘homas, aged 58
tallest this corner
Mulligan Willlam and
A remarkable coincidence

occupies the next grave;
died monument in
family

Mary, aged respectively 83 and 80
is recorded here, for their four children were taken at 10, 21,

31 and 41 years of age. A granite monument to the Wilsons

of the Back street, Southwold, dates from 1838 to 1850
James and Ann Jay, 1882; George W. Boggs, with wife and
children, from 1849, 1908, The Eccles family, from North

leach, Gloucester, Eng., with these early dates, Henry, 1833;
wife of G. W. Smith, 1834; Hannah, 1836, Also a
double stone for Samuel and Maria Ann, who departed this
life together, December Sth, 1863 A grey granite obelisk
Millie Lang

The lot of Parkes

Mary

to one
of South
died 1843,
She

Yarmouth, containing the
father, James, aged 49 and his wife, Frances, who
lived 1888, died in London and
brought here to lie beside her husband from whom she had

until aged 94 was
Beside this lot a stone lles flat on
the ground and with grass growing
in the crevices, but still recording the fact that Samuel Brewer,
native of Witchamp died Nov, 19, 1845, aged

39 vears

been so long separated
broken into three pieces
Dorset, Eng
1841 and 1844, Francis

A marble obelisk stands here on one side of
this monument, erected by Daniel, 1846, aged
emigrated to Canada in the year 1832;
of Oxford, 1853, aged 80 years; also John
Elizabeth. Sherlock and Medcraft
of this Behind these
towards the north end comes several family plots belonging to
Clarke, the Gilberts, Futchers, Drakes, Lindsays,
and Caughells

Samuel and
J. Locke, 18
which reads
70, Northampton
Elizabeth
Parish, a son of Mr. and

Daniel Thompson

his wife

monuments, 1905, are the last row

George E

In these are to be found, three, and in the
Drake lot, four generations.

In the Claris lot
F., wife

which is one of the largest, lie George
Hannah Maria the earliest being buried
Also Ann Payne, who died June 4th, 1834, aged 72

on the “This stone erected by Hannah

and children

back reads

Maria Claris, her granddaughter

The Gilberts have a monument containing all the Inserip-
tions, Richard, Martha, Effie and sons, dating back to 1843

A lonely grave here seems to immediately cateh the ey
on account of the clear shape and style of the lettering on
the stone, “Helen Innes, daughter of Sir John Innes, Baronet
of Edengight, Banflshire, Scotland, Sept. 7, 181 aged 37
years. This lady was a sister of Mrs. Blackwood, who kept
store at the foot of the hill, which still bears her name.

1841, and William
are names that also suggest the early forties. The Futcher
plot contains six graves 1868; and Hester, 1890,
natives of Tovant, Wiltshire, and daughter Sarah, oceupy one
row, whilst their son, Thomas, 1905, his wife, Susan North-
1909, and Thomas

Thomas Lemon, Brinacombie, 1846

Thomas,

wood their only daughter in the next
and Hester Futcher
came to this counts

1837, coming hack ag

Thomas, five years old,
ingland in

with their son
in 1835, they returned to
n in 1840

A dark wooden 1.ead board stands near. A stone, bearing
the name of John Wi.son, 1846, but the only word that can be
The rest of the lettering has been effaced
by the weather. This is the only wooden marker left in the
cemetery where there used to be so many. Most of them were
carved by John Walthew, who has the most beautiful head
doubt from his design,
“Esperence en Dieu,"” resteth the
remains of John Walthew, 1863, and Elizabeth, the devoted
wife, 1849, with the following tribute “If the faithful discharge
of her several duties as daughter, wife and mother, can entitle

made out is “Mary

stone, tastefully engraved, no own

bearing the words here

her to the love of her Saviour then she is blest."”

An iron fence and gate enclosing a grey stone obelisk
bearing the word “resurgam.” marks the place where Maria
daughter of Edwasd Ermatinger and wife of Rev., Maurice
Scollard Baldwin with her little hale dates on it ars:
Born 1840, married 1861, died 186
“Until the day dawn,” being thoughts of the godly and earnest
Bishop of Huron who preached his first and last sermon in
this church

lies:

The words oeneath

Here Captain Richard D. Drake, whose land was across
wife Elizabeth lie, some of
great-grandchild them

the first white child born in these parts, 1319

their
Daniel

the valley, and with

children and one around
Drake.
one. The stone at the grave of Elizabeth is uniaue, ecarved
with vine and grapes, surrounding the epitaph  William
Drake, a brother of Riheard D., died 18 his wife, Margaret
1848, both 80 y 8. A daughter of theirs, Margaret, wife of
1842 another daughter
December, 1 aged 13 years. This is the first
found after the
opening of the church which took place June 19, of the same
William Drake took up the farm east of Rapelje and

Rev. Thos. Drake
William and Helen
years a teacher, and

heing

Anson Paul lles beside, and Eleanor

who died

of which record can be who was buried
year
from whom Willlam street gets its name.
1861, Harriett, daughter of the Rev
Hawke; James W. Drake, for many
tablet inscribed. to William Drake Spades, who departed th
life in Jeffersonville, Ind., on the 21st day of October, 1853
in the 25th year of his age, 24th
removed to St and re-interrcd on the 4t
graves near belonging to thes
large families and one at some distance marked only “Ou
Bennie,” evidently points out the size of the great plot

The
alongside

exhumed
Thomas, C. W,
There are many

November an(

December

Lindsays,
John,
daughter, Mary E.,

among the ploneers
1870, with his wife
wife of John

of Southwold, |
Elizabeth, and thei
Drake; Sarah A, wife of

Continued on page 94
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The Kiiling of Jumbo—Continued

keeping close beside, with Tom Thumb following at his heels
They had gone about thirty yards, within six car lengths of
the end of the standing train when the engine overtook them
Tom Thumb was caught first and thrown by the Impact into
the ditch, and his left hind leg broken. A moment later and
the locomotive struck the rear of the mammoth Jumbo
The giant of the animal creation emitted one terrific roar, the
like of which was perhaps never heard outside the jungle itself
The impact as the engine struck him was as a great thud
the unfortunate beast being brought to his knees and the
engine and part of the first car passed along his back, inflicting
ugly and painful bruises ; his all but impenetrable hide was
torn the full length of the body, his feet torn and blood issued
from his mouth. He was not instantly killed, living for fifteen
minutes after being struck, and expiring while efforts were
being made to take nim from under the train

The engine was badly damaged, the cowcateher, head
light and bell knocked off, and the side gearing twisted
It was first gotten out of the way and then began the big task
of getting the huge body of Jumbo off the track Some
conception of the undertaking may be gathered from the fact
that his carcass weighed close upon ten tons. The problem
was a new one for the railroad men, and the members of the
wrecking crew which had been called out did much conject
ur'ng before finally concluding that the only thing that coull
be done was to roll the huge mass. Great rope cables were
thereupon procured and fastened to him, one to the front and
another to the back part of his body, and though perhaps 2
hundred circus employes and spectators were on the ropes at
the first pull, with others endeavoring to assist with planks
as pries behind the body, it did not move. Then other scores
of men were added to the forces on the ropes and when the
* of the master of ceremonies sounded, the big

“yoh heave
ma of inert flesh and bone hegan to move, and was soon
clear of the tracks, while Mr. Hutchinson, one of the proprie
tors and other managers of the show stood by plainly showing
heir grief for the loss of their favorite, Jumbo

While all this was taking place the veterinary surgeons
with the circus were attending to Jumbo's companion, Tom
Thumb, who had escaped with a broken leg. This was sel
after which he was lifted into his car and taken away with
vdon, where the circus appeare)

the rest of the animals to L
the following day

Matthew Scott, who appears in the picture leaning against
the body of the dead elephant, was the devoted and constant
companion of Jumbo from the time he entered the Royal
Zoological Gardens in London, twenty years before, and had
naturally become greatly attached to his charge As the
inanimate remains of the glant of the African wilds lay beside
the tracks the following day, “Scotty™ wept like a enild.  He
had lost his best and truest earthly friend

The following day thousands from city and townships
flocked to the scene to see the last of Jumbo. The photo
shown herewith was taken early that morning by Scott &
Hopkinsg, and many of the faces will be recognized by those
familiar with the St. Thomas of that day
s dressed by Peter Peters, butcher, and

Jumbo's body w
his hide and frame turned over to the Smithsonian Institute at
Washington

A damage action was afterwards begun against the Grand
Trunk Railway Company by Barnum and Bailey, claiming
$100,000 for the killing of Jumbo. A settlement out of court
was reached, however, just before the trial was to begin at
New York City, the Grand Trunk paying $5,000 in cash in
addition to providing the eircus with free transportation over
the Grand Trunk the following year. Among those from St

Thomas who went to New York as witnesses were Station
master Stewart, Despatcher Fred Arnum, Conductor Wm
Algie, Engineers D. Brown and W. Burnip and E. H. Flach, the
well known jeweler of today, who with a companion, John
Rowe, were the only ones other than the circus and railway
employes to witness the acc.dent. Mr. Flach still recalls the
thrills he and his companion experienced as they ran down the
embankment and cleared the fence a moment before the body
of Tom Thumb me hurtling towards them. As a memento
of the affair Mr. Flach prizes one of Jumbo's toe-nails which
he secured at the time,

Jumbo was the largest elephant ever seen, either wild or
in captivity. He was brought to the Royal Zoological Gardens
London, when he was four years old and remained there for 17
¥ Barnum had often looked wistfully on Jumbo, bat witn
no hope of ever getting possession of him. One of his agents

in the summer of 1881, in search of novelties for the show,
was 80 struck with the extraordinary size of Jumbo that he
offered the superintendent of the Zoological Gardens, a Mr
Bartlett, $10,000 for him as he stood in the Gardens. The
offer was accepted and preparations made for the transship-
ment of the elephant. When the e became known, there
was a universal outburst of indignation. The directors of the

Royal Zoo were denounced in strong terms for having sold
Jumbo to the famous Yankee showman, Barnum The
newspapers, from the London Times down, daily thundered
anathemas against the sale, and their columns teemed with
communications from statesmen, noblemen and pess of
rgain should be broken at all
risks, and promising that the money would be contrinputed hy
the British public to pay any damages that might be awarded
to Barnum by the courts

A stockholder of the Royal Zoo sued out an injunction
in the Chancery Court against the councillors of the Zoo and
Barnum to quash the sale. After a hearing which occupied
two days, the sale was declared valid, and Jumbo was decided
to he Mr. Barnum's property

Mr. Lowell, the American Minister to the Court of St
James in a speech given at a public banquet in London, play-
fully remarked: “The only burning question between England
and America is Jumbo.” The London Graphic, Ilustrated
Punch, and all the London papers, published scores of
pictures of Jumbo and prose and poetry for several weeks in

distinction, advising that the

Ne

succession, London Fun suggesting that on account of the
national interest manifested in Jumbo that the lion be removed
from the British coat of arms and an elephant substituted
after
a month's delay, and when preparations had been completed
for shipping Jumbo, Barnum’s agent was offered £10,000, or
$50,000, if he would let Jumbo remain in his old juarters.
This, of course, could not be done, as thousands of dollars
had been expended in lithographing and advertising his arrival
in America and accordingly he set sail in the Assyrian Monarch
on March 25th, 1882, After a rough passage he arrived in
New York, in good condition, Sunday morning, April 9h. On
Monday Jumbo was placed in the menagerie department of
the “great show,” and exhibited at every performance  After
having traveled countless miles over both the old and new
world, after escaping all the dangers of travel by land, lake
and ocean, after passing safely through the different climates
from the torrid to the frigid zone, Jumbo, the greatest wonder
of the elephant trite, died an ignominious death, being run
over by a freight train at 8t. Thomas. The value of the animal
has been variously estimated at $75,000 to $150,000. It is
a fact, however, that Barnum & Co. were offered $100,000 cash
a short time before the death of the animal, which they refused
to accept

therefore, with a motto “Dieu et mon Jumbo.” Finally
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St. Thomas' Greatest Railroad Disaster

N THE EVENING of July the 15th, 1887, a calamity fell  freight cars and were greedily devouring the forward passen
O upon Thomas, the like of which never oceurred be ger cars, in which were still imprisoned men, women and chil
fore in the history of the city—a calamity so sudden in  dren. But their herolc rescuers battled on, caring naught for
its fell destruction, so horrible in its detalls, 50 terrible in its  the flames which threatened them with a horrible death, so
results, that the pen falters and the mind is stricken with hor long as the helpless women and their babes were rescued. At
' t contemplates the heartrending ineidents of the eata the forward end of the car, where the fire was greedily creep:
trophe ing, several women were imprisoned by broken seats, The
At ten minutes past seven, a long excursion train on the rescuers tore out the wind and literaily pulled the prison-
London & Port Stanlev Railway, heavily loaded with home ers from the very jaws of deat!
returning excursionist Up to this time no one had a true conception of the na
RAN INTO A FREIGHT TRAIN ture of the tragedy. It was known at once from the story of
on the Michigan the fireman who
Central Rallway escaped, that the
at the crossing engineer had
of the two road died at his post
in this eity. The and that his
engine of  the body was under
passenger  train that horribly
plunged into two leaping wall of
oil ecars of the flame. Other
moving  frelght stories there
breaking the were of loss of
tank of one In Ilife but all were
stantly the oll only conjecture
gushed cut in a or idle rumor
torrent wept The fearful
over the engine flames, fed by
and in an instant the oll and the
of time the wooden cars, ef
flames shot up ectually pre
ward with terri vented all inves
fic foree, helel tigation and kept
ing their black the crowd at a
smoke high into respectful dis
the heavens. tance
enveloping in a Those of the
golden cloud the injured who had
Car that  had been succored
plunged after the were promptly
engine {nto the taken Into the
wreck. Covered nouses tnat abut
by that shroud ted on the scene
frommortal where their
ew, thelr bodie wounds and
buried deep be burns were at
neath the twist tended to by the
ed and broken many physicians
timbers, fourteen present. To the
ouls took their frends these
flight to heaven it was 1 positive
One instant of relief to  know
horror - stricken that their fate
amazement for was not that of
the on!ookers instant death
then the Illving t—Poxtal and Castom House, Awpsn Wood Hosplial Hall, wiiliin the funer
—Fire ¥
am pested wrt Mouse '"- 4~|.I:-unu and Curllag Rink S b s
srth from the to whom this
urs, from whence but a moment before, gaily the children had melancholy satisfaction was forbidden, the minutes dragged
been fiirting thelr handkerchiefs at the pedestrians upon the ke their horror will dwell forever as the memory
treet and In another moment, scores of n jumped t » horrible drean 1 or m the train or at the Port
aid those in the burning cars, impelled by the screams ¢ and 1 wrd!  No word t wife ~r husband, sistes
those who had eseaped and the groans of those within. Wir or brother, mother or v children were dead or alive
lows were torn from their fastenings, and strong hands pulle Oh! the suspense was awful! And many a one, rather than
hrough the casement the limp t women and chil-  face the possibility of the secrets being disclosed by the sink
ren. Within two minutes from the crash, the flames had  ing of that towering fame, turned their faces homeward, there
entirely enveloped the engine. baggage car and adjacent to await the return of the absent ones or the news t they
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St. Thomas' Greatest Railroad Disaster —Conlinued

would never again cross the threshold of their homes. Others
ran frantically, with streaming tears, from man to man, asking
piteously for news of their loved ones, and still the fire burnt
on. There seemed no rest for it-—no satiating or its greed
Never has there been a more terrific conflagratior in St
Thomas. At the point where the two roads intersect, there i
a space clear of buildings to the south and west. To the
north were a number of warehouses and coal sheds, and to
the east a frame house owned by Mr. John Campbell. The
crossing in the center of the space was, all this time, one vortex
of billowy fire. The oil burned long and fiercely, sending up
a flame that was long and crimson. Through the manhole in
the top of one of the tanks, poured continuously a flame, white
and fiercer than the surrounding fire, creating the appearance
of a gigantic and vari-colored fireworks, The cars that still
remained on their trucks, on the both lines of tracks, were
drawn to a place of safety at the earliest possible moment
The passenger cars on the L. & P. 8. R. R. were pushed away
from the fire by the main force of hundreds of hands. The
struck,
engine from the M. . R

freight train, which had nearly crossed the track wh

was drawn out by its engine and

yvards was quickly coupled to the few r freight cars and
drew them away And still the fire burned on.  Great volumes

of flame sweeping on the gentle southerly breeze, to the ware

houses in the north and Campbell's house in the east, envelop
Ing them so completely that resistance by the firemen was use
less, the streams of water poured upon the fire seeming to have
no more effect than so many penny squirts.  All that could be
done was to prevent the fire's spread. It appeared probable
that the Dake House and Elliott & Reath’s stable would fall
before i's steady advance, On these and adjacent buildings,
the firemen played, while dozens of men ascended the roofs
and kept them drenched with water, handed up by the pail
brigades. By half-past seven, warehouses Nos. one and two,
two large coal sheds and Campbell's house, were beyond sav
ing. Then came the dreadful sequel to the holacaust of half
an hour hefore. Without warning, in the twinkling of an eye,
the heavens, black until that moment with densest smoke, were
flluminated as by a flash of lightning, a dull smothered sougd
the ear, and all eyes, turning upward at the ominous

smot
sound, beheld a sight at once magnificent and horrible All
along the side of the cloud of smoke which edged it like a
funeral pall, rolled upward as an unfolding scroll, or the ris
ing billow of a sea of fire, a flame of saffron and of erimson
Reaching its highest point, it spread out until it appeared to
cover all who looked upon it.  But they who looked, stood
only for a moment, and then, with one accord, fled for their
lives. Men, women and children joined in one mad race, the
one object to reach a place where those hellish looking flames
could not touch. The erowd instinctively knew that the oil
tank had burst, and d'mly comprehended what it meant to be
caught in that descending shower of fire. The first concussion
slight although it was in sound, knocked scores of people upon
the streets, and even broke the heavy plate glass in the win
dows of the stores on Talbot street, a full block away. Hun
dreds more stumbled 1o the ground as they rushed, terrified
and panic-stricken, from the spot And then the fiery st

Am
came down, carrying with it horrible death and suffering. On
the roof of Elliott & Reath’s stable stood Herman Ponsford
H'm the flame enveloped as it sped on its way, and for a mo
ment he stood there, a statue of fire. Then his friends bade
h'm jump, and down he came, his coat being torn from hi
back as soon as he reached the ground, and the flames extin
gu'shed.  Horribly burned so as to make the men sick who
looked upon him, he was yet able to walk, and supported hy
two friends he went to the Dake House, Passing upon Railway

street in all his pain, the poor fellow was still able to recog
nize his friends, and meeting Mr. Upper he called “Goodbye
Upper.” From the Dake House he was conveyed to his own
home on Hughes street where he was attended by Dr. Kains
At an early hour the next morning he died

But Ponsford was only one amongst a host. The force of
the explosion was felt some severely north of the scene of the
wreck and men, women and children, standing between the
wreck and Talbot street, were caught by the wave and burnt
The flame from this explosion did not spread. They spent their

force and subsided as quickly as they rose
The burning cars, the oil and the warehouses were in a

arge part consumed by 8 o'clock, and the fire hegan to sub.
gide, The firemen then turned their attention to the spot
where the collision took place, where the engine and what re-
mained of the cars lay in a piled-up mass. Under this, if any

where, were the bodies of the unfortunates, and every effort
was directed to fo reduce the flames at this point as to make
investigation possible. The streams of water were steadily
played upon the mass, until the blackened frames and wheels

began to peer from out the glowing furnace and then, a few

m'nutes afterwards, the dreadful whisper went around the ex-
pectant crowd, “they can see people in the ruins.” It was too
true.  One by one the charred limbs of the victims of the fire
ad wreck were pulled from the debris, until in a ghastly pile
ay upon a few bhoards, hastily collected, a strong and

there
ghastly odor telling too plainly how they died, the remains of

seven vietims,

The car next to the engine of the passenger train was an
o-d'nary box car, used for baggage Next to it were the
ord nary passenger cars. At the time of the collision the first
of these followed the engine and baggage car about as far as
the tracks of the M. (. R.; here it tipped partly over, the front
r'sing off its trucks and striking against the end of the baggage
ned on its trucks. This car was

car. The rear end rer
mostly filled with women and children, and it was among those
at the front end of it that all the fatalities occurred. Amongst
those seated in this end were Mr. and Mrs. Zealand, their son,
Bert, an infant child; Mrs. J. Smithers and infant, Mrs. S
Fraine and child, Mrs. W. H. King and Mrs. Cronk. Accord
ing to Mrs. King, Mrs. Zealand and infant, with Mrs. Smithers
and Mrs. Fraine, were seated on one side at the extreme end
seat, which ran cross-wise of the car, and Mr. Zealand and the
bhaby were in the opposite seat
When the Crash Came

the most terrible confusion reigned for a time, and nothing
further was seen of each other by the occupants unitl they met
in safety outside. Many were rescued, but those in the car
met a horrible fate, it is hard to speak of with authority
Probably the last one to escape was Mrs. Zealand, who
managed to crawl through one of the windows, and fell down
among the tracks from where she was seen to crawl and was

immediately taken by kind hands and conveyed to the home

of Mr. Samuel Armstrong, Centre street. Here she at once
found medical attendance, and her wounds were dressed. Her
leg was broken in two places and neck and back burned

The place where all the remains, except those of the
engineer, were found, appeared to be about in the position

where the platform of the first passenger coach would have
rested, and it is evident that either the victims were on this
platform or at the extreme end of the car

The buildings burned included Richard Gilbert's ware
house, valued at $2,000; in which was stored groceries be
longing to J. H. Price and worth $4,000; the frame building
on the corner of Moore and Centre streets, occupied by
John Campbell; F. M. Griflin’s coal shed facing the Canada
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The Anderson Company's Store, Talbot street

The 4. Mieklehorough Company's Store, Talhot street
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1860 1880,  Elizabeth McCormick, Sampson Lawton, the
rst Shepherd family, Henryette Hutehinson, the Gloius. Going
ek again to the forties, then Catherine and John Copeland
I ith, Cumberland. Catherir 1846, but John survived
! ALY Year reaching the age ot 93. Near the Chisholn
Grahams, Mellors, Martins, two of whom were interred
ume date, 1890, and Ellis' lot. The lettering on the stone
Kate Napper fe of Henry Ellis, stands out in bold relief
The Mellors are among the eariy graves on this side, Mary
lying in 1837, and Allen in 1848 I'he epitaph refers to a
cheerl Erave 1 the dreary, distant clime howing the
lekne of those who were left An interesting row of
rav hearing the names Donald MeColl, Annabella Campbell
and Ja 7, 18 John MeColl, 1847; John Gordon
840 aiter date, Annabella, wife of Hugh McColl
St ged from Meifort, Argyle, Scotland, bring to mind
Highland pioneers of Talbot settlement
A member of the family of Chisholm returuwed from
California about 18 caused a beantiful and costly pile to bhe
cted A well beaten path towards it shows that this is the
reat ittraction in the yard and it is well worthy of
y for beauty, but to ponder e lesson
ntafr osed by a substantial iror cons
n pan n the centre over a gra rele covered
by a canopy ands a beautiful female figure, with the phrase
Vaut virtue The head of the family, William, aged 65
), has th central place His wife is to the right hand
pane Frances Oswell Grant, aged 65, died 1832, The others
t r children « ich side Alex., 1828, aged 29; Willlam
wged Franeis Oswell, wife of Henry Mandeville
wed Lewis, 18 aged 215 Ann, 18 aged 29, A
W e family pass ng away ebh 1 of life, mother, father
and children, in fiv y The hushand of Frances
Henry Maudeville, | ju I Ath the railing, died in 1837
Nex A ry inte [t me in memory of David
Mandeville, died 6, 1824, aged 79, and wife, Dinah, died
1 I83T, aged yavid Mandeville has the distinetion of
T I in this churchyard, his birth
1k 1 alf ago, 1745, he and lig family
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Not far away lie ua ad wife, Mary, 1860
e mes who set corner, lot No. 1
Falbo reet, Yar u Thus t Drake, Mandeville
nd Rapelje fan have found homes in death as in
le by 1¢ tl I st picturesque part of God
From the inseription on the stone of John Mitel we
" it he died September 220d, I8 which was before the
I wa n. So far we have not learned whether he was
huried fir ow farm ahov Sandy Mount Hill, and
1 her whether, with Daniel Rapelje's consent, he
il beside ) or
It aleo hears the remains of many more old settlers: Sam
rk and racyin wife, W. H. Doan, three enildren of
Robert and Mary Scott, buried hetween April 10 and May 4
no 18G9 the Tisdales, of New Brunswick, Barbara Mitehell
the Millers and Ellison
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1872 Miller deeded

‘to the Church Society

John B
church

the site of
of the

On August 1st,
the present St. Johns
Diocese of Huron

Erection of the new frame edifice was begun in the fall
April 13, 1873, by Rev
Ont.), as a

of 1872 and opened on Easter Sunday
S. L. Smith, (still
connection with the
the building

living, at Forest mission in

old St. Thomas church. Previovs to the

erection of Sunday school and church service:

had been conducted in the Canada Southern waiting room
Rev. W. B. Rally officiating
In 1881 the parish was separated from old 8t Thomas

and Trinity churches and joined with Glanworth, and after
wards Port Stanley took the place of Glanworth as part of the
chi until 1894

ge, the one minister serving both. 1t was not

that the parish was served independently

Rev. 8. L. Smith continued as rector from 1873 until May
1887, when he was succeeded by Rev. Dr. Beaumont, D D., now
of London. In June, 1892, Rev. M Freeman followed, to
be succeeded two years later (March 1894), by Rev. Wm
Hinde, whose ministry continued until June 3, 1900, when Rev
W. A. Graham, B.A., succeeded Rev. W. F. Brownlee, the

present rector,
The first
Tarrant

ame to the charg

church wardens were the late J. T. Pullen ana
L. H Other early officials of the church were H. L
Pullen, James Kane ». Cockran Ussher, William

(Caskey, Braithwaite Dixon and Georgs

George B
Richardson, George 8
Oliver
The
member of 8t

Bishop of Rev. Arthur

Johns Sunday School as a boy

Len
making the third
Thomas in one capacity

present Japan was @

one identified with the church in St
or another to reach the highest offices in the gift of the church
During the term of its clergy, St
and it

where the common hond of democratic friendship has

Johns has made advance

ment has remained distinetly a workingman's church
Erowr
and expanded. With'n the past ten years it has become self
and

1909

snstaining prior to the building of the present splendid

edifice in was for many years free of debt, both on

church and rectory

The corner stone of the present new church was laid on

October 4, 1909, and the edifice was first opened in May, 1910
with Bishop Williams officiating The beautiful rectory
loceted ¢n the adjoining lot was huil' in 1913

CENTRAL METHODIST CHURCH
Organized by Rev. A, E. Griffith
held in the M. €. R. R, station until a church was built on the
and known as the M. E. Church
New church
1887 costing about $30,000 with pipe organ
next £31.000
present membership is 520, Th

The services were

present site Enlarged, 1888

and named “Central” church was erected in

The parsonage
1899, The
Sunday School is flourishing

door east, worth was  secured in

The congregation last year raised for all purposes, $5.662.13
Total debt on $4.000

the “Railroad because railroad men placed o

property
Church
window in the

is about Popularly known as

large

costly east window, including, with the usual

designs, a locomotive headlight, locomotive front, and Pullman

Pastors: Griffith, 1874; Palmer, 1877; Pilcher, 1878
Parsons, 1879; Prown, 1881; Lounshury, 1884: Philp, 1885
Whiting, 1888, Pascoe, 1891 Scott 1894, Crew 1898
Kettlewell, 1903, Moyer, 1907; Rogers, 1911

The name Crossley-Hunter is identified with the church
These well-kuown evangelists were for years members of the
congregation
church.  The
largely due to this church

and made possible the
Alma Thomas is

as Bishop Carman, founder of the

erection of the new

founding of College in St

College, became interested through his visits to the congrega-

St. Thomas Churches —(Continued from page 84)

A. E. Griffith,
secured the site for the College and largely helped to raise the

tion, and the first pastor of the church, Rev

money necessary for starting the College enterprise

CHRY

AN CHURCH

The first Christian church was a modest little edifice on

Railway street at the corner of Elizabeth street and was built
in 1880 met at a
was sold

Previous to this date the members had
This property
eds applied to the erection of the new church
t cost §$400
was composed of the late John (
Daniel Ostrander Mann

Misner. The building cost $2.800

at first let for much less,

little church at Yarmouth Heights

and the proc

The site on Railway stre The building committee

ampbell, James Hepburn

Charles Elnathan Noble and George
although the contract was
The trustees were Messrs, Hepburn

Ostrander and Campbell

The first minister of the church was Rev. E. Sheppard
He was followed by Revs. T. L. Fowler, R. W. Stevens, (
Sinelair, W. D. Cunningham, E. E. Crawford, W. McDonald

James Egbert, M. M. Amunson, G. J. Chapman, F. W
Norton, E. B. Kemm and Gifford Ernest, the present pastor
The church had an initial membership of seventy, of

whom a large portion resided outside the city A Sunday
School was started in the spring of 1881 and this has since
A very promising institution

The present heautiful edifice on the site of the old church
was dedicated and opened to divine worship, April 28th, 1907
The services were conducted by George T. Sweeney, of Colum-
bus, Indiana. The building committee were: W, R
Wm. Trott and W

become

Coulter,

chairman J. Stewart

A\LMA STRE

T PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH
held on the

1889, a request was made for the establish-

At a meeting of the Presbytery of London
10th of September
ing of a Presbyterian mission in the East end of the city of
St. Thomas. The Preshytery agreed to leave the matter in the
hands of the Home Mission Committee to act in conjunection
with Rev. Mr

chureh, with

Boyle and the representative elder of Knox

power to act. The organization of the mission

was accordingly effected and services were held for some time

in a vacant store on Talbot street east, with a student in

charge of the work

1801
for a
Alma street at the corner of Kains street, the name

The mission prospered, and on the 13th of January

the Preshytery of London gave its sanction to a site
chureh on
of the church to he Alma Street Presbyterian Church

The following summer, through the generosity cf Mr. A
M. Hutchison

and handed over to the congregation free of debt

the first wing of the present church was built

he ladies
of Knox church provided the funds for the furnishings of the
pulpit, platform and choir loft

The minister of the
Robert MelIntyre, who served the congregation for seven ye,

first ordained church was Rev

ars
It was during his pastorate that the church was enlarged to
its present size

Mr. MclIntyre was succeeded by Rev. H. W. Reede who
was the esteemed pastor of the chureh for ten years

On the removal of Mr. Reede to the Presbytery of
Rev. Hill Woods was Tavistock
inducted into the pastoral charge of the congregation
two years and a half Mr
the Presbytery of Huron

The minister, Rev. W. A, Bremner was inducte
on the 16th of August, 1912, having been called from Riple
in the Preshytery of Maitland

Kingston called from and
After

Woods was called to Brucefield, in

present
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St. Thomas Churches  Conlinuned

When the congregation was organized twenty-four year
ag0 It hegan with a membership of twenty-five, with tw
old Mr. David Forbes and Mr. W Wat It ha
grown since then until it now has a bershiy '
wundred and twenty with twelve elders, Messrs. David Forl
James Garrow, Willlam Gall, John Bloye, Fdward Lowe, J
MeCormick, Donald MeLachlin, D. A MeCallu
Garrow, Robert Geddes, W. A. Melntyre and Angus M

The congregation | riou ned the build

ew chureh in the near futu

GRACE METHODIST CHURCH

T or Grace Met) \ ‘
when Rev. John Hamil Wi apj 110t reu \
alled W ter T} pa ( ad andu
and J. ¥ W I n '
hip of 41¢
In 1 Wl Lk Canad r ¥ \ bu
Sh Gnaeers ] W Ps s v & Rpid BT, Welght & Company's Factory, 150 Talhe
pla worship ha provid

fedieated by R I ho w 1cereded D

The past ! \ R 1 I i J. §
Lat R In Gr [ \ pe. |
Aylesworth, M. A, L. L. D} 1 ( I 1
YA | " 1 I \ ( W [ (

( 1M l Dr. J R (

R Dr. ¥ L. 4

T f ( A
Balaclava )
l Dr. ¢ . M
George Gedder, Ex-Ma W rma
T ru . " ]
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Pea E | ( "
1A ok, J. | ) E N (
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] " .
: ! Bell Telephone Wullding. AT% Talhot street
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‘ E |

VOUNG MEN'S CHRINTIAN ASSOCIATION

| Con " pa 0 I Willams' Offlees, 310 Talhot street
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St. Thomas Waterworks

HE NUCLEUS of our present waterworks system wa

T construeted in 1874 when Mr. Daniel Drake was
mayor A special construction committee was

appointed, of which Mr. John Farley, K. C., was

chairman Mayor Drake was opposed to the waterworks
and would not sign the by-law. On motion of M. A Gilbert
and T. Arkell, he was voted out of the chair and the late Mr
Henry Brown appointed chairman Mayor Drake refused to
vacate the chair, and on the advice of Mr. Farley the duties of
chairman were performed by Mr, Brown from where he sat
All the monies for the construction of the works passed
through the hands of Mr. Farley The then system was for
fire protection only. The pumping station was at the McLean
flats at the west end of the city, the source of supply being
Kettle Creek.  The pipes extended along Talbot street to the
present City Hall; on Elgin and Metealfe streets to Wellington
street and west to the old Town Hall and out on Pearl street

The city grew eastward and there was a demand for a new

waterworks system, not only for fire protection but for

domestie purposes, which resulted in the establishment of the
present system in 1889, a result which The Journal was
largely instrumental in bringing about. The system adopted

the strong and mechanical filtration of Kettle Creek, was on

the recommendation of Engin
b

Allan who by the way has

1 engineer since the water works was established. When

was decided to extend the system, a source of water supply
was looked for and wells were sunk on the McLean flats in
close proximity to the o'd pumping station, which it was the
plan to enlarge, but all that was secured was a well of excellent

mineral water, good for bathing purposes. City Engineer Bell
then set to work to develon Locke Springs, and very largely
increased the flow therefrom. He submitted two sehemes to
the consideration of the eity council, one to pipe the water
from Locke Springs down the creek and the other to allow the
k

water, construcet a reservoir for storage purposes, purify the

water from the springs to enter the ereek and to use the cre

water by mechanical filtration and erect the pumping station
where it now is The late Mr. Haskins,, city engineer of
Hamilton, was ¢

al in consultation and he recommended the
adoption of the second of Mr. Bell's plans, that of taking the
Before
deciding on the system of mechanical filtration, Mesers. Bell

water from the creek. and this plan was adopted

MeCully and Idsardi spent a couple of weeks inspecting similar
plants in other places. When the pumping station was first
erected, two Worthington engines of two million capacity each
and two filters were installed A third filter was installed in
1893, TIn 1904, three new filters and a five million gallon
pump were put in, thus doubling the capacity of the pumping
station.  The filtering capacity bhefore was one and one half
million gallons per day. and when the new work was ¢ mpleted
the filtering capacity was three million gallons per day I

1894 the dam was increased very largely hy exea

ating.  Sinee

SOME ST. THOMAS WAT

Year Gallons Pumped Earnings Expenditure
1904 INOG65.010 $34.015.15 $23.737.81
190 449,752,750 11.216.60 29,064,214
1906 128 10,542,230 27,302.0

1907 (RN 41,301.24 23,674,601
1908 T, 100,486 14957

1909 711,793,365 15,565

1910 04,322,705 16,991

1911 V2,766,605 46,6485

1912 61,859,089 47.8

1913 579.803,27 6.1

then it has been replaced by a concrete structure and built
eighteen inches higher and four-foot blast hoards can be put

on if desired

As it stands today, the St. Thomas waterworks system
is one of the most efficient and complete in the province
Within the past year or so in excess of $80,000 has been
expenced in the erection of a new standpipe on Amelia street
in the centre of the city and in the construction of miles of
new steel water mains, most of them of the eighteen inch
variety New hoilers of the most improved pattern have heen
installed at the pumping station and that building has also been
completely remodelled and put into excellent shape

The new standpipe, which is one of the largest in the

province, cost in the neighborhood of $25,000. Its value lies

in the greatly inereased fire pressure it affords for the down
town business distriet, thus tending toward a substantial

reduction in insurance rates

The source of St. Thomas' water supply is from Kettle
Creek and artesian wells Kettle Creek has origin from
springs, a few miles north of 8t. Thomas, and flows around
In 1905 the eity
»d a fifty acre farm to the north of the works and the

the city down to Lake Erie at Port Stanley

purcha

following year commenced to sink artesian wells on the water

works premises, the result heing exceedingly gratifying
Altogether in 1907

depths from 76 to 184 feet, with few exceptions all the wells

twenty-five wells were put down, in

flowing Tons of underground water available, some of them
showing a flow of over 100,000 gallons per day In 1908 the
bhoard again increased the supply by the sinking of more
artesian wells Arrangements were made by the board with
Mr. Charles Locke to put down such number of wells as they

thought desirable on Lot No. 5, South geware road. Alto
gether, there are thirteen wells sunk. Ten only were used

All those wells, including those put down in 1907, have been

piped to the reservoir, so that now there is probably 1.500,000
gallons from this source. The analyst’s report during the
vears sinee the drilling of these wells has shown a marked
Improvement in the quality The reservoir capaclty is now
about 26,000,000 gallons. The total area of the property
at the pumping station is 139% acres exclusive of the park
The private services number in the neighborhood of 4,000, The
system is very solid, financially. TIn 1892 it turned over its first

surplus to the eity and since then has shown steady increases

in these surpluses. The works are under the dir manage
ment of three commissioners, two of whom are elected hy the
people, and the mayor is the third, The present commission
ers are: George K. Crocker, chairman, who has held »ffice
for some thirteen years, being chairman of the board fr the
f that time, George Geddes and Mayor M. B. Johnson

The works are under the direct supervision of City Engineer

most ¢

Mellis Ferguson, while 8. O, Perry is the secretary-treasurer

ERWORKS STATISTICS
Debentures and
s Gross Surplus Int. Paid by City Net Surplus

$3.487.27

$10.250.07

12,151.86

7, 358.26

13.040.27 6.247.17
17.726.63 7.705.08
15.600.00 544845

6,136 80

074.16
075.30

1410893
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The History of the Twenty-fifth Regiment

HISTOR i the ith Regiment reminiseent of In March, 1866, and prior organ
act that the present time not the first but the the Rifle Company recelved orders to go
yeea . ibers, enthused by the  because the Fenjans In the United State
of Alty and patriotisn ave fr volun nvasion of Canada. Captain D. K. McKer
themselves and, if necessary, shed r life lost no time in getting his company tog
pire, King and Country howing a muster of 44
lark days of the Fenlan Rald, on Africa's red The company immediately p eded
and again, in the training camps at home and  remained in camp for four weeks, doing
eagirt e, Elgin | ive answered the call On June 1, 1866, the day before the bat
p with eady er Here Am 1, Send  company was ordered ‘ort Stanley tc
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rural one, was comprised of six companies, No's. 1, 4 and 6 in
St. Thomas; No. 2 at Vienna; No. 3 at Aylmer, and No. b at
Port Stanley, with headquarters at St. Thomas., The Port
Stanley Company was later disbanded

Captain McKenzie resigned the command of the company

soon after the Fenian Raid and was succeeded in the eaptainey

in turn by Messrs. John King, 8. Day, White, Moore, Wardell
the Rifle Company

and Neil Caswell. In September, 1866

ceased to exist, being incorporated as No. 1 Company of the

h Regiment, Elgin Infantry
In May, 1867, Lieut.-Col. Charles A, O'Malley, of Wards

ville, was appointed to the command of the regiment and
retained that position until June, 1889, when he was succeeded
by Lieut.-Col. W. H. Lindsay

To give a full and adequate history of the regimer! would
take more space than can be spared for this sketch and at the
best, such a history would unfortunately be in many parts and
in numerous interesting details, far from complete, many of
the valuable records having mysteriously disappeared during
a period in which the military zeal of the early days was
replaced by internal dissensions which culminated in a rapid
deterioration and lack of efficiency. The ranks became depleted
a d for the time the battalion existed in little more than a
name in the militia list

Maty of the officers and men resigned and in 1880 Lieut
Colonel O'Malley also forwarded his resignation to head
ut.-Col
Lindsay, son of Lieut. James Lindsay, of the Rifte Company

quarters and was succeeded in the conmmand by

On April 15, 1893, the regiment, |

y a general order was
made a eity corps, the county companies being dishanded, and
the band, whose headquarters had been at Aylmer, was
transferred to 8t. Thomas. This result was brougibt about
largely through the efforts of Lieut.-Col. Lindsay, Major
George Stacey, Captain A. F, McLachlin and other officers of
the battalion, who Felieved that such a course woull lead to
greater cohesion and efficieney of control and training

Shortly after the change was made from a rural to a eity
corps, Lieut.-Col. Lindsay was transferred from St. Thomas to
the 7th Fusilier Regiment in London and the command of the
Twenty-Fifth was given to Major Stacey, who was promoted
to be Lieut.-Colonel. During Lieut.-Col. Stacey's command
the regiment attained considerable efficieney and much regret
was felt at his retirement

Lieut.-Col. Stacey was succeeded in the command

y
Major A. F. McLachlin, an enthusiastic and efficient inilitary
man, who had made his way upwards from the ranks of the
Colleg'ate Institute Cadets of which corps he rose to the rank of
Captain.  L'eut.-Col. McLachlin's advancement was rapid, his
‘utenant, May 14, 1892;
1897 Major
August 10, 1899, and Lientenant-Colonel, September 29, 1900;

steps  being as follows: 2nd |
L'eutenant, May 5, 1883: Captain, August

in 1904 Lieut-Col. McLachlin was transferred to the Reserve

Officers and was succeeded in the command by Lieut.-Col

t B H. Caughell, who was succeeded in 1908 by Lieut. Col, J

3. Robertson
On March 1, 1912, L'eut.-Col. W, J, G

officer commanding the regiment, was named commanding

wn, the present

The History of the Twenty-fifth Regiment— Continued

officer, Lieut.-Col. J. 8. Robertson having been transferred to
the Reserve of Officers. Since Col. Green's succession to the
command, a steady growth in numbers and efficiency has been
the history of the regiment, a growth which has been greatly
accelerated by the outbreak of war between Great Britain and
Germany

The formation of the Home Guard and the enthusiastic
of men in the city, in common with
the rest of the Canadian people, have responded to the call ot
the Motherland for help in this great struggle either In men
or cash, or goods, plus the call for volunteers for active service,

spirit with which all classe

has assisted very materially to this growth, with the result
that the Battalion will in all probability for the first time in
its history soon attain its full establishment as an eight
company Battalion

In the dark days that followed the Boer ultimatum tn
Great Britain on October 9, 1899, to the close of the Boer war
in 1901, the 256th Regiment showed the same spirit of
loyalty to the British flag, which animated their forbears
during the days of the Fenian Raid, sending no less than eleven
officers and men to swell the British ranks in South Africa
Some of these went with the first Canadian Contingent and
others with the second

The members of the 25th Regiment who served in the
Boer war, with the ranks which they held in the regiment
when they volunteered for activ

service, are as follows:
Captain W. J. Green, wounded at Paardeberg, now
commander of the h Battalion
Captain W. H. Westaway, now resident in the city and
for several years paymaster of the Battalion, and recently
appointed by the Board of Education as drill instructor in the

city schools

Lieutenant “Edge” Farley, who died at Orange River
rom enteric fever

Lieutenant Perey Ermatinger, who after the war, served
for some time with the South African Constabulary before
returning home. Mr. Ermatinger has again volunteered for
'tive service

Lieutenant Perc acey, son of Lieut.-Col. George Stacey
former O. C., now resident in Australia

Sergeant George F. Stanbury, now Captain Stanbury and
acting adjutant of the Battalion

Sergeant George R. Barrett, who served for some time 'n

the 8. A. C. Since deceased

Privates,

the late A. H. Anderson, late H. B. Travers, J
Sutherland, now resident in South Africa, and Gunner Wm
Stokes, city

Since the opening of the present war, upwards of 200 men
have enlisted for active service from St. Thomas, many of
them have been members of the Twenty-Fifth Regiment

The motto of the 25th Regiment, “Officum Primum,
is borne on the regimental badge on a scroll under a garter
surrounded by a wreath of maple leaves and bearing the words,
“Elgin Infantry.” The garter encircles the numerals XXV
which are backed by a copy of the real of the County of Elgin
The top of the wreath is closed by a beaver

The badge is
borne on an eight-point military star and is surmounted by the
Imperial Crown
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. . .
Record of Elections in the Elgins
Federal Elections West Elgin—Summary
Election Year Member Chosen 1887—George E. Casey (Lib.) ...............00nn 2351
General 18654 George Macheth James H. Greer (Con.) O b ar A K AR SO
General 1857 George Macheth —
General 1861 George Macheth Majority for George Elliott Casey. . 832
General 1863 John Scoble 1891 —George E. Casey (Lib.) ............ 23356
Note re General Election 1861 Under date of Feb. 25th Duncan MoLean (Con.) 1eRS
1863, the return of Elgin West for 1861 was amended by e
rtriking out the name of George Macbeth and ingerting that of Majority for George E. Casey.. .”2
John Scoble hy order of the Legislative Assembly 1896-—George E. Casey (Lib.) ........ 2585
A, A MoKillop (P8t) «.vvvoienvinan, 1859
1867-—John H. Munroe (Con.) 970 L
Colin Macdougall (Lib.) 766 Majority for George E. Casey 726
1900-—-Jabel Robinson (Ind.) ........... 1805
Majority for John H. Munroe A. D. McGugan, (Lib.) 1765
1872 George Elliott Casey (Lib.) George E. Casey (Ind. Lib.) . 1180
Aohn BIAER Musros: {ap.) Majority for Jabel Robinson 40
. o 1904~ William Jackson (Con.) 3082
Majority for George Elliott Casey 92 Peter Stewart (Lib.) . 2605
1874 George Elliott Casey (Lib.) 1216
Eliphalet Wilber Gustin (Con.) 891 Majority for Wm. Jackson . 387
1908 Thomas Wilson Crothers (Con.) L.o.. 3269
Majority for George Elliott Casey Willlam Telimle C(Tlb) < v oovisins vaone s . 214
1878 —George Elliott Casey (Lib.)
M. G. Munroe (Con.) Majority for Thomas Wilson Crothers. 518
1911-Thomas Wilson Crothers (Con.) ..... 3629
Majority for George Elliott Casey. 12 Donsla Macnisli: (L4b.) 183
1882-—George Elliott Casey (Lib.) 2110 Majority for Thomas Wilson Crothers. . 897
Alex. Clark (Con.) 1305 py-election (Thomas W. Crothers, appointed Minister of
Labor, October 27, 1811 Hon. Thomas W
Majority for George Casey, 805 Crothers (Con.), returned by acclamation.
Figures in Detail of West Elgin Federal Elections
1867 1872 Howard 362 247 317 342
Macdongall  Munroe (asey  Munroe Dutton 5 64
Aldborough . 188 350 280 354 Orford .. 371 201 465 249
Dunwich 243 221 372 251 Ridgetown 213 169 268 115
Southwold 235 397 463 418 -
Totals 2336 1653 2585 1859
Totals 766 970 1115 1023 1900 1904
1874 1878 (‘asey McGugan Robinson Stewart Jackson
Carey Custin Casey Munrow Aldborough 164 663 428 575 639
Aldborough 335 248 346 448 Dunwich 369 167 264 527 350
Dunwich 104 218 471 280 Southwold 264 464 4556 560
Southwold 477 126 492 434 8t. Thomas 1058 1448
Howard | 106 237 268
Totals 1216 891 1319 1207 Dutton .. 86 17 65 80 85
1882 IS8T Ridgetown 93 148 123
Casey Casey Greer Orford . 80 389 193
Aldborough 367 380 3556
Dunwich 439 511 243 Totals 1180 1765 1805 2695 2082
Southwold 455 166 a61 1908 1911
Howard 343 2 367 239 Tolmie Crothers Macnish  Crothers
Orford 3 111 430 185 Aldborough 604 571 37 418
Ridgetown 135 80 197 136 Dunwich 543 208 505 330
Southwold 161 481 489 464
Totals 2110 1305 2351 1519 St. Thomas 1037 1826 1116 2129
1801 1806 Dutton . 94 Kh 94 82
Casey MecLean (asey MceKillop  West Lorne A3 130
Aldborough . 399 383 416 438 Rodney 88 76
Dunwich 522 269 516 203 S
Southwold 468 382 528 358 Totals 2741 3259 2732 3629
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| Federal Elections East Elgin— Summary
.
5
d Election Year Member Chosen 1891 Andrew B. Ingram (Con.) 2740
) ke APEES 64
| 4 General 1864 George Southwick John Henry Wilson, M.D., (L'b.) 2694
iener 57 Leonidas Burwell :
General 18 ONIGAS Majority for Andrew B. Ingram 46
iener 6§ Leonidas Burwell
General i gl By-Election (election of Andrew B. Ingram declared
| General 1863 Leonidas Burwell void, January 14, 1892)
} ! 1867 Thomas William Dobie (Con.) 1492 Andrew B. Intish (Con.)
1 Leonidas Burwell (Lib.) 1382 John Henry Wilson, M.D. (Lib.)
) Majority for Thomas Dobie 110 Majority for Andrew B. Ingram 495
“ 1872 William Harvey (Lib.) 1658 1896 Andrew B. Ingram (Con.) 2862
{ Samuel Price (Con.) 1490 John Henry Wilson, M.D., (Lib.) 2684
31 !
i Majority for William Harvey 168 Majority for Andrew M. Ingram 178
? 1874 - William Harvey (Lib.) 1886 1900 Andrew B. Ingram (Con.)
i | Samuel Day (Con.) 1704 John Henry Wilson, M.D. (Lib.)
{ Majority for Willilam Harvey 182 Majority for Andrew B. Ingram 151
vl
(9 f By-election (death of William Harvey), 14th, June, 1874 1904 Andrew B. Ingram (Con.) 2103
] 1 (‘olin Macdougall (Lib.) 1738 William F. Hepburn (Lib.) 2082
1 Thomas Jenkins (Con.) 1523
Majority for Andrew B. Ingram 21
i Majority for Colin Macdougall 215  By-Election (resignation of Andrew B. Ingram, Dec
i 1878 Thomas Arkell (Con.) 2168 Sth, 1906
4 Colin Macdougall (Lib.) 2128 David Marshall, (Con.) 2069
George Haight (Lib.) 1996
Majority for Thomas Arkell
_ Majority for David Marshall 73
1882 John Henry Wilson, M.D., (Lib.) 1908 David Marshall (Con.) 2261
; Thomas Arkell, (Con.) W. W. Rutherford (Lib.) 2016
i Majority for John Henry Wilson, M.D Majority for David Marshall 247
1887 John Henry Wilson, M.D.. (Lih.) 1911 David Marshall (Con,) 3
Charles Oaks Ermatinger (Con,) F. H. Miller (Lih.) 1919
| -
Majority for John Henry Wilson, M.D h4 Majority for David Marshall 194
Figures in Detail of East Elgin Federal Elections
1867 1872 1878 1882
| Burwell Dobie Harvey Price Macdougall Arkell Wilson Arkell
8t. Thomas 90 74 163 218 Bayham a84 102 267
Yarmouth 196 e 394 117 Yarmouth 09 500 ha2
Malahide 179 177 192 Malahide 131 161
Bastiani 202 288 240 St. Thomas 186 624
South Dorche 167 Ayimer 1z 151
Vienna 55 18 28 Port Stanley 1 "
Vienna 26 45
South Dorchester 181
Totals 1382 1492 1658 1490
“1874 Total 2128 2168 2221 2007
Harvey Macdougall  Jenkins 188 1801
tayham 413 (By-election Wilson Ermatinger Wilson Ingram
Yarmoutl 158 Aug. Tth) tayham 417 485 399 461
Malahide 421 Varmonth h93 524 630 536
St. Thomas 263 Malah'de 468 443 451 402
Aylmer 81 t St. Thomas 1006 937 861 1020
Vienna i 28 Aylmer 192 265 219
South Dorchester 194 163 Port Stanley 73 39 60
Vienna 36 49 11
Totals 1886 1704 *738 1523
*Details of vote unavailable Totals 2744 2G04 2740
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Figures in Detail of East Elgin Federal Elections—Continued
1802 1806 1906 1908
By-election Feb, 12, By-election Oct. 4th,
Wilson Ingram Haight Marshall Rutherford Marshall
Bayham . . 365 4656 208 141 335 Bayham 220 282 376 480
Yarmouth 263 231 577 133 529 Yarmouth 354 609 644
Malahide 447 487 419 70 450 Malahide . 306 424 497
St. Thomas 971 1313 1062 131 1202 8. Dorchester 99 96 208 202
Aylmer 264 244 246 10 219 Aylmer 232 273 2738 256
Port Staniey 23 91 oo 1 80 Springfield 55 46 b6 62
Vienna 17 32 42 3 47 Port Stanley 45 63 40 89
Vienna 31 42 36 33
Totals 2772 3267 2684 492 2862
Totals 1996 2069 2016 2263
1900 1904 *Detailed figures incomplete
Wilson  Ingram Hepburn  Ingram 111
Bayham 363 440 394 411 Miller Marshall
Yarmouth 643 634 630 616 Bayham . 321 523
Malahide 450 463 450 473 Yasmosth 7 667
8. Dorchester - 209 210 Malahide 470
Aylmer 241 236 252 231 . Dorohestad 190
Port Staniey 50 53 64 53 Aylmer 262
Vienna .. 42 36 35 35 Springfield !
Springfieid 58 4 Port Stanley 89
St. Thomas 1136 1214 Vienna 41
Totals 2025 1076 2082 2108 Totals 1919 2313
Provincial Elections West Elgin—Summary
1854 George Macbeth 426 1883 Dr. John Cascadden (Lib.) i . 1324
Archibald Meclntyre 214 T. W. Kirkpatrick (Con.) . - 1259
Majority for Macheth 211 Majority for Dr. John Cascadden . 65
1858 George Macbeth . 820 1486.-A. B Ingram (Con.) aa £ 2315
Alexander MceKinnon 440 J. H. Coyne (Lib.) 2972
Majority for George Macheth 389 Majority for A. B. Ingram b ve 43
1862 George Macheth 726
John Scoble 713 1890-—Dugald McColl (Con.) 2384
o A. McCrimmon (Lib.) 2199
Majority for George Macheth 13 ——
1862 George Macheth 171 Majority for D. McColl 185
John Scoble 747 1894 Donald Macnish (Lib.) 2851
- Dugald McColl (Con.) 2680
Majority for George Macheth 30
1868 N. MeColl 909 Majority for D. Macnish 171
8. McCall 830
1808 F. G. Maediarmid (Con.) 3101
Majority for N. MeColl 79 Donald Maenish (Lib.) 3100
1871 Samuel Price (Con.) (A .
Thomas Hodgins (Lib.) 969 Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid 1
~~ 1899 Donald Maenish (Lib.) 3307
Majority for T. Hodgins 198 F. G. Macdiarmid (Con.) 3063
18756 Thomas Hodgins (Lib.) 1091
Malcolm Monroe (Con.) 1o1 Majority for Donald Macnish 244
Majority for Malcolm Monroe 10 1898 l:""f‘m Macnish HAI:.! 3187
1878 David McLaws (Lib.) P. G. Macdlarmid (Con.) 3204
Meredith Conn (Con.) = =
—— Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid . 3 17
Majority for McLaws 227 1902, G. Macdiarmid (Con.) ...... 3027
1879 Dr. John Cascadden (L!b) 1267 A. McCrimmon (Lib.) . 2606
Thomas W. Crothers (Con.) 1246 Gaylord Wiltshire (Ind.) 27
Majority for Dr. J. Cascadden ... ... .. 11 Majority for F. G. Maediarmid 502
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Provincial Elections West Elgin - Summary — Continued
1905-~John Burton (Ind.) 180 1912--F. G. Macdiarmid (Con.) 3188
F. G. Macdiarmid (Con.) 3129 Henry 8. McDiarmid (Lib.) 1920
Peter Stalker (Lib.) 2593
T Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid
Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid B36 hjority fol . L
. Leam 1914 F. G. Macdiarmid (Con.) 3386
1908 —F. G. Macdiarmid (Con.) 1347
F. W. Sutherland (Lib.) .. 2788 Dr. €. C. Lumley (Lib.)
Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid 609 Majority for F. G. Macdiarmid n7
Figures in Detail of West Elgin Provincial Elections
1854 1858 1898 1899
Macheth  Melntyre Macheth MeKinnon Macdiarmid Maenish Maenish Maediarmid
Aldborough 69 27 113 138 Alaborough 740 649 681 176
Dunwich 100 54 229 108
Dunwich 384 614 611 401
gt Southwold 256 133 488 194
N E Southwold h78 641 370 549
I8 ! Totals 214 829 140 8t. Thomas 1300 1109 1189 1246
i
| Duttor 99 87 96 9
' 1862 1863 - . 1
i Macheth Scoble
& | Aldborough 153 188 216 211 Totals 101 100 3068
] Dunwich 187 190 268 181
'!i. Southwold 186 335 104 166
IR 1808 1902
% Totals 726 713 7 Mac Mac Macdiar- MeCrim- Wilt
i nish diarmid mid mon  shire
871
: 1808 1 Aldborough 684 748 1 516 1
! N. MeColl 8. Moall Hodgins
eh 5 186 387 542 7
Aldborougl 265 269 297 Dunwich " 8¢ 8 42
Dunwich 220 242 Southwold 663 94 h62 464 31
Southwold 124 119 St. Thomas 1144 13 908 375
Dutton 102 101 92 95 3
Totals 909 8§30 M 969
1875 187 Totals 187 1204 1027 4217
Hodgins  Munroe Cascaden Crothers
Aldborough 387 149 146 _
Dunwich 182 248 421 268 1808 1008
Southwold 142 107 460 456 Macdiar Mac- Suther
Burton  mid Stalker diarmid land
Totals 1091 1101 1257 1246 Aldborough [} 688 507 438 366
D B 163 93 3 518
1878 David McLaws (Lib.), defeated Mereditli Conr uBwiah ke | 9 40 18
(Con.), by a majority of 227. Detail figures of the vote cast Southwoid 20 454 499 459
are unavailable St. Thomas 142 1447 918 1179
Dutton 2 97 101 93
“ 1883 1886 “,
8 ’ 5
Cascaden Kirkpatrick Ingram  Coyne et Lorn 69
Aldborough 189 397 102
Dunwich 164 118 168 Totals 180 3129 7 2738
Southwold 141 170 375
St. Thomas 1170 .
Port Stanley 10 7 1018 1914
Macdiarmid MeDiarmid Macdiarmid Lumley
Totals 1424 1259 2 Aldborough 194 272 124 368
Dur B 29
1800 1804 iwich i 401 194
McColl MeCrimmon Macnish ~ MeColl  Southwold 431 366 394 602
Aldborough 151 188 563 H44 St. Thomas 645 1995 1043
Dunwich 196 h78 691 268 Dutton 95 103 93
Southwold i1l 89 487 West Lotie 123 104 78
St. Thomas 996 1029 l
> 76 73
Dutton 79 .‘.] Rodney 88 79 73 91
Totals 2484 2109 2851 2680 Totals J188 1920 3386 2669
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1854 Dr. George Southwick (Lib.)
Edward Ermatinger (Con.)

Majority for Dr. Southwick
1868~ Dr. George Southwick (Con.)
Leonidas Burwell (Lib.) .

Majority for L. Burwe.l
1862 Leonidas Burwell (Lib.)
John MeCausland (Lib.)

Majority for L. Burwell
1863 Leonidas Burwell (Lib.)
Samuel Becles (Con.)

Majority for L. Burwe !
1867 Thomas M. Nairn (Lib.)
D. Luton (Con.)

Majority for D. Luton
1871 D. Luton (Con.) vaes
Dr. John H. Wilson (Lib.)

Majority for Dr. J. H. Wilson
18756 Thomas Arkell (Con.)
Dr. J. H. Wilson (Lib.)

1879 Thomas M. Nairn (Lib.)
Samuel Day (Con.)
Majority for T. M. Nairn

1883 — Edward Ermatinger (Con.)
Thomas M. Nairn (Lib.)

Fi

Majority for Dr. J. H. Wilson .

Majority for Edward Ermatinger

90

ures in Detail of East

1854 1858
Southwick Ermatinger Southwick Burwell
Bayham . \ 192 146 98 389
Yarmouth .. 261 149 324 s
Malahide 201 194 89 470
8. Dorchester .. 98 13 67 165
Vienna 45 17 10 113
St. Thomas . 56 52 174 50
Totals 863 591 762 1506
1862 1863
Burwell MeCausland Burwell  Eccles
Bayham .. 165 323 246
Yarmouth 309 38 345
Malahide 243 68 279
§. Dorchester 121 138 99
Vienna . . 34 62 30
8t. Thomas i“ 183 62 162
Totals 1336 1055 1261 1161

1886

1880

1894

1808

1899

1902

1905

1908

1911

1914

Provincial Elections East Elgin—Summary

Thomas M. Nairn (Lib.)
Dr. Chas. W. Marlatt (Con.)

Majority for T. M. Nairn
H. T. Godwin (Con.)
John €. Dance (Lib.)

Majority for H. T. Godwin
Charles A. Brower (Con.)
John €. Dance (Lib.)

W. N. Ford (Ind.)

Majority for (. A. Brower
. A. Brower (Con.)
Daniel Meclntyre (Lib.)

Majority for (. A. Brower
C. A, Brower (Con.) .....
Daniel MeIntyre (Lib.)

Majority for ('. A. Brower
. A. Brower (Con.)
Dr. €. Sinclair (Lib.)

Majority for C. A. Brower
. A. Brower (Con.)
John C. Dance (Lib.)

Majority for . A. Brower ..

C. A. Brower (Con.)
. W. Wonnacott (Lib.)

Majority for C. A. Brower ...

. A. Brower (Con.)
Daniel Melntyre (Lib.)

Majority for (. A. Brower
C. A. Brower (Con.)
N. 8. Cornell (Lib.)

Majority for ('. A. Brower

Elgin Provincial Elections

1867
Nairn Luton
Bayham, North. 144 203
Bayham, South 157 157
Yarmouth 404 400
Malahide, 2id 178 161
Malahide, 1st 217 131
§. Dorchester .. 161 172
Vienna 55 39
St. Thomas 92 168
Totals 1408 1431
1875
Arkell  Wilson

Bayhan

Yarmouth
Malahide
8. Dorchesicr

1, South. . 409

Aylmer

Vienna

Springfield

St. Thomas . 424 327
Totals 1900 1924

Luton

12

2127
1546

581
2234
1902

1871
Wilson

338

388

338
176
46
157
1442
1879
Day

387
500
409
163
104

28

44
H18
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>
Figures in Detail of East Elgin Provincial Elections  Condinued
1NN I8N0 o2 1905
¥ na | r M I i I l I we hane

Bay 4 i ) ' ‘ .9
Yarmou | X | r
Malahide 154 119 \ ' ' T
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\ V ' \

8 L | ' 64 1
Vienna \ 1 ' | \ . ' i f 6
pringfield ! [ 4 4

| 1 1
1HON 0
1800 1804 g
: r Vonna Brower felntyre
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VIEW OF ALMA COLLEGH
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St. Thomas Churches—(Continued from page 97)

The present new building is a stone and brick affair, four
storeys high. In the basement in the rear will be a swimming
tank, now nearly completed; also baths, bowling alleys and
billiard room.

E. A. Smith, at the present time one of the executive of
the building committee, and a former chairman of that
committee, was one of the chief workers during the whirlwind
campaign, and it was largely through his indefatigahle work
that the campaign was such a success,

The officers of the association at the time of Its organiza-
tion, forty-ore years ago, were:

President, Nelson Burns; vice-president, H. B. Pollock:
secretary, E. Mundella; treasurer, A. M. Hutchinson.

Meetings were held weekly in the “Grammar School,” for
several years, finally being discontinued, and twenty years
after the first instituting here. the Railroad branch of the
Y. M. €. A was organized with the following officers:

A. F. Howland, chairman: W. J. Orr, general secretary:
James McCrone, secretary; Joseph McAdam, treasurer

Rooms were leased on Talbot street and used by the
combined City and Railroad associations until January, 1901,

when the property opposite the ity hall was purchased. The
following are the present officers:
President, Dr. €. (. Lumley: vice-president. Arthur

Harbour; vice-president, E. R. Webh: treasurer, Walker C.
Caughell: recording secretary, J. MeK. Urie; general secretary,
R. J. Colville.

The board of directors is composed of the following
representaive citizens  men of nearly all walks of life,
sincerely interested in the welfare of the young men and the
flourishing association: F. W. Sutherland, F B Tlolthy, J. H
Vail, G. M. Baldwin, Fred Sutherland, Levi Crutts, David
Meadows, Dr. A. Voaden, W. V. MeDonald, James Bristow,
George J. Grant, Dr. (. B. Taylor, A. G. Sanders, George A
Anderson, Edward Long, F. W. Wright, D. M. Stirling, J.
Dowler and W. A. Melntyre.

The building committee at the present is composed as
follows: chairman, Lt.-Col. W, J. Green; treasurer, J. McK
Urie: secretary, R. J. Colville: executives, Messrs. E. A,
Smith, A. E. Ponsford, E. R. Webb, (". E. Taylor. G. A. Ander-
son, Dr. A, Voaden and Dr. ¢, ¢, Lumley

YOUNG

WOMEN'S CHRISTIAN  ASSOCIATION

An essential institution to any eity is a Young Woman's
Christian Association, the aim and object of all such being to
promote the social, intellectual, physical and spiritual welfare
of the young women- to do for the young women what the
Young Men's Christian Association is doing for the men and
hoys.

The St. Thomas association was organized in April, 1903,
50 will soon close its twelfth year. In January, 1905, mention
of buying the present building was first made, the advisory
hoard at that time being composed of Messrs, ). M. Tait, W. K.
Cameron, L. D. Marlatt and A. M. Hutchinson and the officers
were Mrs. Wood, president; Mrs, D. M. Talt, vice-president;
Miss McAdam, secretary, and Miss M. E. Love, treasurer.

The incorporation of the association was duly accom
plished in December, 1905, W. K. Cameron having given a
great deal of assistance in bringing this about.

At the hoard meeting on April 6th, 1906, a communica-
tion was read from Mr. Hodder, manager of the Merchants
Bank, that their terms for buying the building on the corner
of Queen and Talbot streets, owned by the bank, had been

accepted, ard the building was handed over to them on June
1. 1906. From that time the work has steadily increased
under various presidents and secretaries.

The present officers are: president, Miss H. E. McDougall;
general secretary and superintendent, Miss B. K. Gunn:
treasurer, Miss M. E. Love; recording secretary, Miss Eleanor
Hughes: convenors of committees, Miss E. L. Morgan, Mrs.
A. W. Graham, Mrs. L. Crutts, Mrs. D. M. Tait, Miss Sophie
Nash, Miss H. Robinson and Miss A. 8till.

ALMA COLLEGE

In the Province of Ontario, Canada, the state provides a
general public and high school training and crowns the whole
state system with a provincial university known as the
University of Toronto.

Besides its fine state system of education the Province of
Ontario fosters by charter and more or less of state recognition
the voluntary movements of the churches to provide additional
and complementary educational advantages and facilities.
Among the institutions of this voluntary class is Alma College,
situated in the city of St. Thomas, Ontario.

Alma College is a residential school for the training of
girls and young ladies, and was first opened in 1881, The
College does principally the curricula of the secondary
education. The College courses prepare candidates for Univer-
sity matriculation, part of Freshman year, for Normal College
entrance, and for diplomas in the various subjects of musie,
the fine arts, oratory and physical culture, of commercial
tra‘ning and domestic science and art.

The College was founded by Rev. Albert Carman, D.D.,
LL.D., the present General Superintendent of the Methodist
Church of Canada, and is owned and controlled by that body,
yet in spirit it is quite non-sectarian. Its student list represents
all the leading christian churches of this continent, about
one-half being Methodist. These students come from all parts
of Canada and from many of the States of the United States
of America.

The graduates of Alma College rank well in life’s calling.
Some have become prominent in the social, literary or art life
in Oxford, Leipsig. Paris, Boston and other centres, and very
many adorn with the graces of culture happy homes and
beautiful families.

A deep spirit of loyalty pervades students and alumnae,
This finds practical expression in many gifts to the College in
library, drawing room and campus decoration and adornment,
and in offer of prizes and medals amounting to thousands of
dollars.

A vigorous Y. W. C
practice.

A. promotes bible study and religious
Alma students have maintained missionaries in
many lands, at present are assisting to maintain a missionary
in Korea.  Other societies are the Athletic Association, Glee
Club, and the Almafilian Literary Society. This latter publishes
“The Almafilian,” the students magazine. The alumnae
soclety known as “Alma Daughters,” has branch organizations
in important centres and is doing excellent service to education
generally as well as to their Alma Mater. Alma Daughters
elect three members to the College General Board.

Such is a brief sketeh of one of Canada’s leading schools
for girls where 200 students are working out with gratifying
success in the life of the institution the aim g¢xpressed in the
architectural scheme of the noble scholastic buildings, namealy,
to combine the home, the church, and the school in helpful,
happy unity.
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